GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

250 ROSS LANE * MAIL: PO BOX 534, GRATON, CALIFORNIA 95444 « 707/823-1542 « FAX 707/823-3713

GRATON

community services district

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
Graton Community Services District (GCSD)
Meeting of the GCSD Board of Directors
Monday, June 21, 2021 at 6:00 PM
Various Locations- Teleconference Meeting Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20

Notice of Teleconferenced Meeting

Pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20 (dated March 17, 2020), members of the
Board of Directors may participate via teleconference. Teleconference locations are not open to
the public pursuant to California Governor Executive Order N-29-20. For this meeting, there will
be no physical location from which members of the public may observe/comment.

Board Members Teleconferencing: Dave Clemmer, Matt Johnson, Karin Lease, David Upchurch
and Jennifer Butler. Members of the Public may participate and provide public comments to
teleconference meetings as follows:

1. If you wish to submit a public comment on agenda items in advance of the meeting,
please send to joseortiz.gcsd@gmail.com. Emails received prior to the meeting will be
included in the public record. The Board President will read public comments at the
Board meeting, not to exceed three minutes (approximately 300 words).

If you wish to submit a public comment during the meeting, please use the following
information: Join URL:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83066915484?pwd=R1h1INVd10WJpMmVIT1RuS2VCZ2Q0QT09

2. ordial by your location _United States
Meeting ID: 830 6691 5484
Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android device:

In the event of a Zoom Bombing, the Zoom meeting will be terminated and a new meeting,
login credentials below, will be used to continue the District’s business. The log-in credentials
will not be made public and only written comments will be allowed for the remainder of the
meeting.

Public testimony will be taken at the direction of the Board President and members of the
public may only comment during times allotted for public comments. If you wish to request a
disability-related modification or accommodation, please contact the District by email at
lindamartinez.gcsd@gmail.com.

1. CALLTO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL - Determination of a Quorum


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83066915484?pwd=R1h1NVd1OWJpMmVlT1RuS2VCZ2Q0QT09

3. Board President, Dave Clemmer, ; Karin Lease, ; David Upchurch, ;
Board Secretary, Jennifer Butler

4. APPROVE ORDER OF THE AGENDA
Motion to approve the order of the agenda.

Board President, Dave Clemmer,
Secretary, Jennifer Butler

Karin Lease, ___; David Upchurch, __ ; Board

R—

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public are invited to address the Board on those items which fall under the authority of the
Board. The Public Comment section is intended to provide an opportunity for members of the public to address
the Board on items that are not on the Agenda. For items that are on the Agenda, speakers are encouraged to
provide comments at the time the item is taken up by the Board. For those wishing to address the Board on any
Agenda or non-agendized item, please complete a Speaker Card located at the entrance to the and submit it to
the Board President. Please be sure to indicate the Agenda Item # you wish to address or the topic of your
public comment. Comments will be limited to three minutes per speaker. Speakers should understand that
except in very limited situations, State law precludes the Board from taking action on or engaging in extended
deliberations concerning items of business which are not on the Agenda. GOVERNMENT CODE 54954.2. (2) No
action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by
persons exercising their public testimony rights under Section 54954.3. In addition, on their own initiative or in
response to questions posed by the public, a member of a legislative body or its staff may ask a question for
clarification, make a brief announcement, or make a brief report on his or her own activities. Furthermore, a
member of a legislative body, or the body itself, subject to rules or procedures of the legislative body, may
provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, request staff to report back to the body
at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or take action to direct staff to place a matter of business on
a future agenda.

6. CONSENT CALENDAR

All items listed on the consent calendar are considered to be routine and non-controversial
by staff. However, if discussion is required, the item(s) will be removed from the consent
agenda and will be discussed after the consent agenda is approved.

A. Confirm Expenditures and Revenue (Transactions) List for May 2021
B. Review May 2021 Operations & Construction Financial Summaries

C. Review and approval of Regular Meeting Minutes from May 17, 2021
D. Review and approval of Special Meeting Minutes from June 1, 2021
Motion to approve the items on the consent calendar.

Board President, Dave Clemmer, ___; Karin Lease, ___; David Upchurch, ___;
Board Secretary, Jennifer Butler



6. ACTION ITEMS

A. Resolution 210621A Review and approval of Revised Board Policy Documents
Motion to approve the revised policies

Board President, Dave Clemmer, __ ; Karin Lease, ___; David Upchurch, __ ; Board
Secretary, Jennifer Butler

B. Resolution 210621-B to approve the Fourth Amendment to the Consulting Services
Agreement with Meyers Nave for legal services

Motion to approve Resolution 210621B

Board President, Dave Clemmer, __ ; Karin Lease, __ ; David Upchurch, _ ; Board
Secretary, Jennifer Butler

C. Election of Board Vice President
Nominations of Board Vice President; Close of Nominations; Election of Vice President

Board President, Dave Clemmer, __ ; Karin Lease, __ ; David Upchurch, __ ; Board
Secretary, Jennifer Butler

7. DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Update on venture with Forestville Water District for recycled water deliveries
B. Proposed staffing plan until we hire another operator
C. Advertisement for Board vacancies

8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT TO THE BOARD

A. Treatment Plant Operations Update
e QOperations report
e Overtime report

B. Construction Update
e Report on Post Meeting Action ltems
e Meetings, Correspondence & Outreach

9. SUGGESTED ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA

a. Pending items/old business

b. Future items/new business



CLOSED SESSION

10. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: EXISTING LITIGATION
(Pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9)
Name of case: Graton Community Services v. Lescure Engineers

ADJOURNMENT



Expenditure Transactions

Criteria: Post On = 5/1/2021..5/31/2021; Fund = 77101,77103; Transaction Type = Actual; Accounting Period = 1..12

Posted Journal
Date Date Journal ID Fund Department Account TCA Amount Journal Header Description Line Description
Fund Code 77101 -- Graton CSD - Sanitation
Account Type 00005 -- All Expense/Expenditure Accts
Character 50000 -- Salaries and Employee Benefits
Category 50700 -- Local Bd Salaries and Wages
Account 50701 -- Perm Position - Local Bds
5/7/2021 ~ 5/5/2021  AP00236481 77101 62030100 50701 GCSD100 7,065.84 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 04-30-2021
5/28/2021  5/25/2021 AP00238449 77101 62030100 50701 GCSD100 6,363.33 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 05-15-2021
Total Perm Position - Local Bds 13,429.17
Account 50703 -- Overtime - Local Bds
5/7/2021  5/5/2021  AP00236481 77101 62030100 50703 GCSD100 378.24 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 04-30-2021
5/28/2021  5/25/2021 AP00238449 77101 62030100 50703 GCSD100 195.23 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 05-15-2021
Total Overtime - Local Bds 573.47
Account 50707 -- Standby Pay - Local Bds
5/7/2021  5/5/2021  AP00236481 77101 62030100 50707 GCSD100 1,277.08 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 04-30-2021
5/28/2021  5/25/2021 AP00238449 77101 62030100 50707 GCSD100 1,277.08 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 05-15-2021
Total Standby Pay - Local Bds 2,554.16
Account 50710 -- Sick Pay - Local Boards
5/28/2021  5/25/2021 AP00238449 77101 62030100 50710 GCSD100 591.48 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 05-15-2021
Total Sick Pay - Local Boards 591.48
Total Local Bd Salaries and Wages 17,148.28
Category 50750 -- Local Boards - Retirement
Account 50753 -- FICA Retirement - Local Bds
5/7/2021 5/5/2021  AP00236481 77101 62030100 50753 GCSD100 540.72 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 04-30-2021
5/28/2021  5/25/2021 AP00238449 77101 62030100 50753 GCSD100 522.49 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 05-15-2021
Total FICA Retirement - Local Bds 1,063.21
Account 50755 -- PERS - Local Bds
5/7/2021 5/5/2021  AP00236481 77101 62030100 50755 GCSD100 546.33 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 04-30-2021
5/28/2021  5/25/2021 AP00238449 77101 62030100 50755 GCSD100 537.74 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 05-15-2021
Total PERS - Local Bds 1,084.07
Account 50756 -- Medicare - Local Bds
5/7/2021 5/5/2021  AP00236481 77101 62030100 50756 GCSD100 126.46 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 04-30-2021
5/28/2021  5/25/2021 AP00238449 77101 62030100 50756 GCSD100 122.20 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 05-15-2021
Total Medicare - Local Bds 248.66
Total Local Boards - Retirement 2,395.94
Category 50800 -- Local Boards - Emp. Benefits
Account 50801 -- Health Ins - Local Bds
5/26/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238181 77101 62030100 50801 GCSD100 1,527.32 California Choice Health Ins. June 2021
Total Health Ins - Local Bds 1,5627.32
Account 50803 -- Dental - Local Bds
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100 50803 GCSD100 214.60 WOLFPACK INSURANCE SERVICES INC Dental & Vision Ins. May 2021
5/26/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238181 77101 62030100 50803 GCSD100 214.60 WOLFPACK INSURANCE SERVICES INC Dental & Vision Ins. June
Total Dental - Local Bds 429.20
Account 50805 -- Vision - Local Bds
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100 50805 GCSD100 20.60 WOLFPACK INSURANCE SERVICES INC Dental & Vision Ins. May 2021
5/26/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238181 77101 62030100 50805 GCSD100 20.60 WOLFPACK INSURANCE SERVICES INC Dental & Vision Ins. June
Total Vision - Local Bds 41.20
Total Local Boards - Emp. Benefits 1,997.72
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits 21,541.94
Character 51000 -- Services and Supplies
Cat y 51020 -- C Expense
A t 51021 -- C Expense
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100 51021 GCSD100 281.50 US Bank National Association Graton April Cal Card
Total Communication Expense 281.50
Total Communication Expense 281.50
Category 51060 -- Maintenance - Equipment
Account 51061 -- Maintenance - Equipment
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100 51061 GCSD100 88.71 US Bank National Association Graton April Cal Card
Total Maintenance - Equipment 88.71
Total Maintenance - Equipment 88.71
Cat y 51200 -- Prof | & Specialized
Account 51207 -- Client Accounting Services
5/26/2021  5/25/2021 0000237960 77101 62030100 51207 GCSD100 188.98 Client Acct Srvcs PPE 4-19-21 Client Acct Srves PPE 4-19-21
Total Client Accounting Services 188.98
Account 51212 -- Outside Counsel - Legal Advice
5/28/2021  5/24/2021 AP00238448 77101 62030100 51212 GCSD100 222.98 MEYERS NAVE RIBACK SILVER & WILSC Gen Advice, Occ. Wtr, & Plant
5/28/2021  5/24/2021 AP00238448 77101 62030100 51212 GCSD100 83.62 MEYERS NAVE RIBACK SILVER & WILSC Gen Advice, Waste Wtr & Plant
5/28/2021  5/24/2021 AP00238448 77101 62030100 51212 GCSD100 363.54 MEYERS NAVE RIBACK SILVER & WILSC Gen Advice, Waste Wtr & Plant
Total Outside Counsel - Legal Advice 670.14
Account 51231 -- Testing/Analysis
5/10/2021  5/5/2021  AP00236605 77101 62030100 51231 GCSD300 175.00 Soil Control Lab Inc Metals & Bacteria (Solids)
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100 51231 GCSD300 1,650.60 Brelje & Race Laboratories Inc Samples Submitted in March
5/26/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238181 77101 62030100 51231 GCSD300 1,144.80 Brelje & Race Laboratories Inc Samples Submitted in April
Total Testing/Analysis 2,970.40
Account 51237 -- Process Service
5/7/2021 5/5/2021  AP00236481 77101 62030100 51237 GCSD100 253.04 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 04-30-2021
5/28/2021  5/25/2021 AP00238449 77101 62030100 51237 GCSD100 116.34 Graton Community Services District GCSD Payroll PPE 05-15-2021
Total Process Service 369.38
Account 51244 -- Permits/License/Fees
5/26/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238181 77101 62030100 51244 GCSD100 2,332.00 COUNTY OF SONOMA Solid Waste Permit 4/yr
Total Permits/License/Fees 2,332.00
Total Professional & Specialized 6,530.90
Category 51800 -- Other Services
Account 51803 -- Other Contract Services
5/24/2021  5/14/2021 AP00237857 77101 62030100 51803 GCSD100 85.00 Brenda Phillips Website Work
Total Other Contract Services 85.00
Total Other Services 85.00



Category 51900 -- Interfund Expenses
Account 51902 -- Telecommunication Usage
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100
Total Telecommunication Usage
Total Interfund Expenses
Cat y 52060 -- Mai -E
Account 52061 -- Fuel/Gas/Qil
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100
Total Fuel/Gas/Oil
Total Maintenance - Equipment
Category 52070 -- Maintenance - Bldg & Improve
Account 52071 -- Materials and Supplies Expense
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100
Total Materials and Supplies Expense
Total Maintenance - Bldg & Improve
Category 52100 -- Other Supplies
Account 52101 -- Other Supplies
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100
Total Other Supplies
Total Other Supplies
Category 52110 -- Office Supplies Expense
Account 52111 -- Office Supplies
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100
Total Office Supplies
Account 52114 -- Freight/Postage
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100
Total Freight/Postage
Total Office Supplies Expense
Category 52140 -- Minor Equipment
Account 52141 -- Minor Equipment/Small Tools
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100
Total Minor Equipment/Small Tools
Total Minor Equipment
Category 52180 -- Transportation and Travel
A t 52181 -- Busil Meals/Suppli
5/25/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238028 77101 62030100
5/28/2021 5/24/2021 AP00238448 77101 62030100
Total Business Meals/Supplies
Total Transportation and Travel
Category 52190 -- Utilities Expense
Account 52191 -- Utilities Expense
5/7/2021  5/5/2021  AP00236481 77101 62030100
5/26/2021  5/14/2021 AP00238181 77101 62030100
Total Utilities Expense
Total Utilities Expense
Total Services and Supplies
Total All Expense/Expenditure Accts
Total Graton CSD - Sanitation
Fund Code 77103 -- Graton CSD - Sanitation Const.
Account Type 00001 -- All Asset Accounts
Character 19000 -- Capital Assets
Category 19800 -- Proprietary Capital Purchases
Account 19831 -- Acq-CIP-Bldg & Impr
5/28/2021  5/24/2021 AP00238448 77103 62030300
5/28/2021 5/24/2021 AP00238448 77103 62030300
5/28/2021  5/24/2021 AP00238448 77103 62030300
5/28/2021 5/24/2021 AP00238448 77103 62030300
5/28/2021  5/24/2021 AP00238448 77103 62030300
5/28/2021 5/24/2021 AP00238448 77103 62030300
5/28/2021  5/24/2021 AP00238448 77103 62030300
5/28/2021 5/25/2021 AP00238449 77103 62030300
Total Acq-CIP-Bldg & Impr
Total Proprietary Capital Purchases
Total Capital Assets
Total All Asset Accounts
Total Graton CSD - Sanitation Const.
Total

Run: 6/1/2021 9:11 AM Data Last Updated: 6/1/2021 5:32:36 AM

51902

52061

52071

52101

52111

52114

52141

52181
52181

52191
52191

19831
19831
19831
19831
19831
19831
19831
19831

GCsD100

GCsSD100

GCsD100

GCSD100

GCsD100

GCsSD100

GCsD100

GCSD300
GCSD100

GCsSD100
GCSD300

GCSD501
GCSD504
GCSD501
GCSD504
GCSD504
GCSD501
GCSD504
GCSD504

270.11
270.11
270.11

140.00
140.00
140.00

26.19
26.19
26.19

16.50
16.50
16.50

73.63
73.63

114.45
114.45
188.08

27.24
27.24
27.24

62.00
89.31

151.31
151.31

240.39

1,229.97
1,470.36
1,470.36
9,275.90
30,817.84
30,817.84

2,062.53
2,279.87
1,003.39
1,629.90
139.36
22,306.50
135.50
51,147.00
80,704.05
80,704.05
80,704.05
80,704.05
80,704.05

111,521.89

US Bank National Association Graton April Cal Card

US Bank National Association Graton April Cal Card

US Bank National Association Graton April Cal Card

US Bank National Association Graton April Cal Card

US Bank National Association Graton April Cal Card

US Bank National Association Graton April Cal Card

US Bank National Association Graton April Cal Card

US Bank National Association Graton April Cal Card

DAVID L CLEMMER Plaque for Matt Johnson
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Decom & Public Purpose Prog.
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC GEG/GNR1 GAS SVC MAY 2021
MEYERS NAVE RIBACK SILVER & WILS( Gen Advice, Occ. Wir, & Plant

MEYERS NAVE RIBACK SILVER & WILS(C Gen Advice, Occ. Wtr, & Plant

MEYERS NAVE RIBACK SILVER & WILSC Gen Advice, Waste Wtr & Plant
MEYERS NAVE RIBACK SILVER & WILS(C Gen Advice, Waste Wtr & Plant
MEYERS NAVE RIBACK SILVER & WILSC Gen Advice, Waste Wtr & Plant

GHD Inc OCC. Receive Station & Plant
GHD Inc OCC. Receive Station & Plant
CLAUDIA S HUTTNER Lescure Litigat Inv. 2005-15



Graton Community Services District
Summary Report

5-31-2021
OPERATIONS Estimates Actuals with

July-Sept Oct-Dec Jan-May June Year to Date Estimates Budget
Beginning Cash Balance: 614,355 343,785 652,372 774,050
Revenues
Property Taxes (32,299) 534,796 439,982 25,975 942,479 968,454 1,031,891
Sewer Fees 2,598 7,373 17,161 16,468 27,131 43,599 29,000
Disaster Reimbursement / Grants - - - - - - -
Sewer Permits - - - - - - -
Other Miscellaneous (3,549) 1,427 1,578 (16,468) (544) (17,012) 16,500
[Total Revenue (33,251) 543,597 458,721 25,975 969,066 995,041 1,077,391
Expenses
Salaries & Employee Benefits 42,820 85,230 112,916 32,458 240,966 273,424 352,200
Utilities 22,903 26,103 36,421 12,070 85,427 97,497 120,000
Legal Services - - - - - - -
Contract Services 8,978 38,791 8,455 40,095 56,224 96,319 102,000
Testing (Brelje & Race) 2,572 2,528 10,012 776 15,113 15,889 20,000
Chemicals 9,628 - 21,654 (701) 31,282 30,581 50,000
Accounting Services - 7,500 - - 7,500 7,500 12,600
Consulting Services 3,116 5,026 7,595 3,158 15,737 18,895 35,000
Depreciation - - - 157,494 - 157,494 475,000
Equipment - - - - - - (7,000)
Transfers Out (To Construction) - Debt Srvc 103,450 - 103,450 - 206,900 206,900 506,900
Other Miscellaneous 60,361 69,832 36,540 34,418 166,733 201,151 220,850
[Total Expenses 253,827 235,010 337,043 279,769 825,880 1,105,649 1,887,550
Other Cash Inflows/Outflows:
- SRF Loan Proceeds - - - -
- Audit Adjustment - PY SRF Loan proceeds - - -
Cash Adjustments (Accruals): 16,508 - - -
|Ending Cash Balance - Operations: 343,785 652,372 774,050 520,255

CONSTRUCTION Estimates Actuals with

July-Sept Oct-Dec Jan-May June Year to Date Estimates Budget
Beginning Cash Balance: 86,415 70,381 136,687 31,520
Revenues
Connection Fees 18,634 66,253 2,070 - 86,957 86,957 167,716
State Grant Revenue (adjusted to Revenue) - - - - - - -
Transfers In (From Operations) - Debt Service 103,450 - 103,450 - 206,900 206,900 506,900
Other Miscellaneous (499) 210 394 873 104 977 (500)




[Total Revenue 121,584 66,463 105,914 873 293,961 294,834 674,116
Expenses
Capital Asset Expenses 12,231 157 107,630 - 12,388 132,406 325,000
Interest Expense - Municipal Finance 25,315 - 46,620 - 25,315 97,250 94,585
Disposed Capital Asset - - - - - - -
[Total Expenses 37,546 157 154,250 - 37,703 229,656 419,585
Other Cash Inflows / Outflows:
- SRF Loan Proceeds - - - -
- Principal Payments - Municipal Finance (55,485) - (56,831) -
- Audit Adjustment - PY SRF Loan proceeds - - - -
Cash Adjustments (Accruals): (44,586.79) - - -
|[Ending Cash Balance - Construction: 70,381 136,687 31,520 32,394
Capital Project Summary Proj Balance | Yearto Date | Project Total
Project Title 7/1/2020 Expenses Life to Date
- Receiving Station (GCSD501) 117,287.08 49,754 167,041
- Plant Improvements (GCSD504) 10,057,967 67,234 10,125,202
- Groundwater Mointoring Wells (GCSD505) - 1,868 1,868
- Totals 10,175,254 118,856 10,294,110
Graton Community Services District - Debt Summary
Municipal Finance Corporation
- Interest Rate: 4.85%
- Maturity Date: 4/5/2033 Principal
- Outstanding Balance 6/30/20: $1,977,945.85 Balance
Payments: Jul- Sep Oct - Dec Jan - Mar Apr - Jun Totalsl YE .
- Principal 55,485 - 56,831 - 112,316 1,865,630
- Interest 47,965 - 46,620 21,364 94,585
Total MFC Payments 103,450 - 103,450 21,364 206,901




Revenue and Expenditure Balances YTD
Criteria: As Of = 5/31/2021 (92% of Year Elapsed); Fund = 77101,77103; Accounting Period = 1..12; Group = Report,Fund9,Account2,Account3,Account4,Account5

Original Adjusted Month-To-Date Quarter-To-Date Year-To-Date Year-To-Date Year-To-Date Year-To-Date
Account Title Budget Budget Actual Actual Actual Pre-Encumb. Encumbrances Remaining Balance
Fund Code 77101 -- Graton CSD - Sanitation
Account Type 00001 -- All Asset Accounts
Character 19000 -- Capital Assets
Category 19800 -- Proprietary Capital Purchases
19820 Acg-Machinery and Equipment 4,000.00 (7,000.00) - - - (7,000.00)
Total All Asset Accounts 4,000.00 (7,000.00) - - - (7,000.00)

Account Type 00004 -- All Revenues
40002 Prop Tax - CY,Secured - - - - 0.23 (0.23)
40003 Direct Charges - CY 995,000.00 1,005,391.00 - 436,116.83 960,728.43 44,662.57
40050 Property Tax Accrual 5,000.00 6,000.00 - - (23,861.31) 29,861.31
40101 Prop Taxes - CY, Unsecured - - - - 33.93 (33.93)
40111 Supplemental Prop Taxes - CY - - - - 47.97 (47.97)
40202 Direct Charges - Prior Year 20,000.00 20,000.00 - 3,865.02 5,529.90 14,470.10
40999 Penalties and Costs on Taxes 500.00 500.00 - - - 500.00
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 5,000.00 12,500.00 - 926.88 3,005.13 9,494.87
44050 Unrealized Gains and Losses 5,000.00 6,000.00 - - (3,549.08) 9,549.08
45221 Sewer/Water Usage Fees 15,000.00 29,000.00 - 17,003.09 27,131.48 1,868.52
46027 Insurance Claims Reimbursement - (1,000.00) - - - (1,000.00)
46040 Miscellaneous Revenue - (1,000.00) - - - (1,000.00)

Total All Revenues 1,045,500.00 1,077,391.00 - 457,911.82 969,066.68 108,324.32

Account Type 00005 -- All Expense/Expenditure Accts
50701 Perm Position - Local Bds 340,000.00 322,200.00 13,429.17 26,910.61 130,074.93 192,125.07
50703 Overtime - Local Bds - - 573.47 1,397.07 6,135.93 (6,135.93)
50706 Vacation Pay - Local Bds - - - 357.92 10,041.28 (10,041.28)
50707 Standby Pay - Local Bds - - 2,554.16 5,193.73 27,192.88 (27,192.88)
50710 Sick Pay - Local Boards - - 591.48 2,022.29 7,650.23 (7,650.23)
50711 Holiday Pay - Local Boards - - - 854.10 9,801.80 (9,801.80)
50753 FICA Retirement - Local Bds - - 1,063.21 2,277.63 11,835.62 (11,835.62)
50755 PERS - Local Bds 30,000.00 30,000.00 1,084.07 2,330.80 12,183.20 17,816.80
50756 Medicare - Local Bds - - 248.66 532.68 2,768.02 (2,768.02)
50757 HSA Reimbursement - Local Bds - - - - 782.49 (782.49)
50801 Health Ins - Local Bds - - 1,627.32 3,054.64 18,449.68 (18,449.68)
50803 Dental - Local Bds - - 429.20 429.20 2,901.13 (2,901.13)
50805 Vision - Local Bds - - 41.20 41.20 280.60 (280.60)
50806 Unemployment - Local Bds - - - - 868.00 (868.00)
51021 Communication Expense 8,500.00 5,150.00 281.50 758.32 6,992.89 (1,842.89)
51031 Waste Disposal Services 3,500.00 3,700.00 - - 927.64 2,772.36
51042 Insurance - Premiums 37,000.00 49,000.00 - - 37,963.24 11,036.76
51061 Maintenance - Equipment 25,000.00 25,000.00 88.71 4,307.85 27,834.38 (2,834.38)
51071 Maintenance - Bldg & Improve 8,000.00 13,300.00 - - 4,099.30 9,200.70
51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 12,600.00 12,600.00 - - 7,500.00 5,100.00
51207 Client Accounting Services 34,000.00 34,000.00 188.98 3,641.18 28,750.86 5,249.14
51212 Outside Counsel - Legal Advice 18,000.00 26,000.00 670.14 1,893.76 15,743.18 10,256.82
51225 Training Services 1,500.00 (1,000.00) - - - (1,000.00)
51226 Consulting Services 35,000.00 35,000.00 - 2,888.00 15,736.68 19,263.32
51231 Testing/Analysis 20,000.00 20,000.00 2,970.40 2,970.40 15,112.53 4,887.47
51237 Process Service 2,800.00 3,600.00 369.38 738.56 3,007.40 592.60
51244 Permits/License/Fees 9,000.00 8,000.00 2,332.00 2,332.00 14,058.75 (6,058.75)
51301 Publications and Legal Notices 600.00 1,200.00 - 420.00 1,408.00 (208.00)



51401 Rents and Leases - Equipment 2,000.00 4,500.00 - - 153.00 - - 4,347.00

51402 Rents and Leases - Heavy Eqt - 1,200.00 - - - - - 1,200.00
51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 1,200.00 - - - - - - -
51601 Training/Conference Expenses 1,500.00 2,000.00 - - 225.39 - - 1,774.61
51602 Business Travel/Mileage 2,500.00 1,000.00 - - - - - 1,000.00
51801 Other Services 8,900.00 9,300.00 - - 8,937.96 - - 362.04
51803 Other Contract Services 96,000.00 102,000.00 85.00 85.00 56,223.67 - - 45,776.33
51902 Telecommunication Usage - - 270.11 540.22 540.22 - - (540.22)
51916 County Services Chgs 7,500.00 7,500.00 - - - - - 7,500.00
51934 ERP System Charges - - - - 454.80 - - (454.80)
51935 Unclaimable ERP System Charges - - - - 10.62 - - (10.62)
52021 Clothing, Uniforms, Personal 1,500.00 1,500.00 - - 422.67 - - 1,077.33
52041 Household Supplies Expense - - - - 138.28 - - (138.28)
52042 Janitorial Supplies 500.00 500.00 - - 116.64 - - 383.36
52043 Safety Supplies/Equipment - - - - 85.74 - - (85.74)
52061 Fuel/Gas/Oil 3,000.00 3,000.00 140.00 264.00 1,350.54 - - 1,649.46
52062 Tires/Lubes - - - - 46.55 - - (46.55)
52063 Vehicle Parts - 2,400.00 - 117.20 3,308.02 - - (908.02)
52071 Materials and Supplies Expense - - 26.19 26.19 26.19 - - (26.19)
52072 Chemicals 60,000.00 50,000.00 - 4,157.39 31,282.02 - - 18,717.98
52081 Medical/Laboratory Supplies 500.00 500.00 - - 605.37 - - (105.37)
52091 Memberships/Certifications 5,000.00 5,000.00 - - 3,861.00 - - 1,139.00
52101 Other Supplies 1,500.00 1,500.00 16.50 41.25 686.87 - - 813.13
52111 Office Supplies 2,000.00 500.00 73.63 195.57 1,122.91 - - (622.91)
52114 Freight/Postage - - 114.45 114.45 129.60 - - (129.60)
52117 Mail and Postage Supplies - - - 102.10 102.10 - - (102.10)
52141 Minor Equipment/Small Tools 3,000.00 2,000.00 27.24 91.14 1,479.20 - - 520.80
52142 Computer Equipment/Accessories - 5,000.00 - - - - - 5,000.00
52162 Special Department Expense - - - 1,992.00 1,992.00 - - (1,992.00)
52181 Business Meals/Supplies 750.00 500.00 151.31 151.31 151.31 - - 348.69
52191 Utilities Expense 105,000.00 120,000.00 1,470.36 3,283.74 85,426.81 - - 34,573.19
53402 Depreciation Expense 475,000.00 475,000.00 - - - - - 475,000.00
54333 Computer Equipment 5,000.00 5,000.00 - - - - - 5,000.00
57011 Transfers Out - within a Fund 356,900.00 506,900.00 - - 206,900.00 - - 300,000.00
Total All Expense/Expenditure Accts 1,724,750.00 1,894,550.00 30,817.84 76,513.50 825,880.12 - - 1,068,669.88
Total Graton CSD - Sanitation 683,250.00 810,159.00 30,817.84 (381,398.32) (143,186.56) - - 953,345.56
Fund Code 77103 -- Graton CSD - Sanitation Const.
Account Type 00001 -- All Asset Accounts
19831 Acq-CIP-Bldg & Impr 215,000.00 325,000.00 80,704.05 87,369.82 120,018.07 - - 204,981.93
19832 Acq-CIP-Infrastructure 175,000.00 350,000.00 - - - - - 350,000.00
Total All Asset Accounts 390,000.00 675,000.00 80,704.05 87,369.82 120,018.07 - - 554,981.93
Account Type 00004 -- All Revenues
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash - (500.00) - 222.06 603.32 - - (1,103.32)
44050 Unrealized Gains and Losses - - - - (499.26) - - 499.26
46024 Connection Fees 186,350.00 167,716.00 - - 86,956.80 - - 80,759.20
47101 Transfers In - within a Fund 356,900.00 506,900.00 - - 206,900.00 - - 300,000.00
Total All Revenues 543,250.00 674,116.00 - 222.06 293,960.86 - - 380,155.14
Account Type 00005 -- All Expense/Expenditure Accts
53103 Interest on LT Debt 104,850.00 94,585.00 - - 71,934.63 - - 22,650.37
59004 Administrative Control Account 102,051.00 102,051.00 - - 112,315.74 - - (10,264.74)
59005 Admin Control Acct Clearing (102,051.00) (102,051.00) - - (112,315.74) - - 10,264.74
Total All Expense/Expenditure Accts 104,850.00 94,585.00 - - 71,934.63 - - 22,650.37
Total Graton CSD - Sanitation Const. (48,400.00) 95,469.00 80,704.05 87,147.76 (102,008.16) - - 197,477.16
Total 634,850.00 905,628.00 111,521.89 (294,250.56) (245,194.72) - - 1,150,822.72

Run: 6/1/2021 9:16 AM Data Last Updated: 6/1/2021 5:32:36 AM



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

250 ROSS LANE * MAIL: PO BOX 534, GRATON, CALIFORNIA 95444 « 707/823-1542 « FAX 707/823-3713

GRATON

community services district

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Graton Community Services District (GCSD)
Meeting of the GCSD Board of Directors
Monday, May 17, 2021 at 6:00 PM
Various Locations — Teleconference Meeting Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20

1. CALLTO ORDER 6:02 PM
2. ROLL CALL - Determination of a Quorum

Board President, Dave Clemmer, H ; Board Vice President, Matt Johnson, H ; Karin
Lease, A ; David Upchurch, H ; Board Secretary, Jennifer Butler H .

3. APPROVE ORDER OF THE AGENDA
Jennifer Butler Motioned to approve the order of the agenda and Dave Upchurch seconded.

Board President, Dave Clemmer, _Y__; Board Vice President, Matt Johnson, _Y ; Karin Lease,
_A; David Upchurch, _Y ; Board Secretary, Jennifer Butler, _Y .

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public are invited to address the Board on those items which fall under the authority of the
Board. For those wishing to address the Board on any Agenda or non-agendized item, please complete a
Speaker Card located at the entrance to the and submit it to the Board President. Please be sure to indicate the
Agenda Item # you wish to address or the topic of your public comment. Comments will be limited to three
minutes per speaker. Speakers should understand that except in very limited situations, State law precludes the
Board from taking action on or engaging in extended deliberations concerning items of business which are not
on the Agenda. GOVERNMENT CODE 54954.2. (2) No action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not
appearing on the posted agenda, except that members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to
statements made or questions posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under Section 54954.3.
In addition, on their own initiative or in response to questions posed by the public, a member of a legislative
body or its staff may ask a question for clarification, make a brief announcement, or make a brief report on his
or her own activities. Furthermore, a member of a legislative body, or the body itself, subject to rules or
procedures of the legislative body, may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information,
request staff to report back to the body at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or take action to
direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.

DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability which requires an accommodation, an alternative format or requires
another person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact staff at the Graton Community Services District office
at (707) 823-1542 as soon as possible (no later than 10 days before the scheduled meeting) to ensure that arrangements for
accommodation may be provided.

Board Meeting 05/17/2021 1of4



5. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. Confirm Expenditures and Revenue (Transactions) List for March 2021
B. Review March 2021 Operations & Construction Financial Summaries
C. Review and approval of Regular Meeting Minutes from March 15, 2021
D. Confirm Expenditures and Revenue (Transactions) List for April 2021
E. Review April 2021 Operations & Construction Financial Summaries
F. Review and approval of Special Meeting Minutes from March 29, 2021
G. Review and approval of FWD-GCSD Standing Committee Minutes from May 6, 2021
H. Review and approval of Special Meeting Minutes from May 10, 2021

Matt Johnson Motioned to approve the items on the consent calendar and Jennifer Butler
seconded.

Board President, Dave Clemmer, _ Y ; Board Vice President, Matt Johnson, _Y ;, Karin
Lease, A ; David Upchurch, Y ; Board Secretary Jennifer Butler _Y .

6. ACTION ITEMS

A. Review and approve Auditor’s Report for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2020

Dave Upchurch Motioned to approve Auditor’s Report for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2020
and Matt Johnson seconded

Board President, Dave Clemmer, _ Y ; Board Vice President, Matt Johnson, _Y ;, Karin
Lease, _A ; David Upchurch, _Y ; Board Secretary Jennifer Butler _Y .

B. Resolution 210517A to approve the Occidental Wastewater Transport and Treatment
project

Dave Upchurch Motioned to approve Resolution 210517A and Matt Johnson seconded

Board President, Dave Clemmer, _ Y ; Board Vice President, Matt Johnson, _Y ;, Karin
Lease, _A ; David Upchurch, _Y ; Board Secretary Jennifer Butler _Y .

C. Resolution 210517B to approve the preliminary budget for fiscal year 2021-2022
Dave Upchurch Motioned to approve Resolution 210517B and Matt Johnson seconded

Board President, Dave Clemmer, _ Y ; Board Vice President, Matt Johnson, _Y ;, Karin
Lease, _A ; David Upchurch, _Y ; Board Secretary Jennifer Butler _Y .

Board Meeting 05/17/21 20f4



D. Resolution 210517C to approve the Fourth Amendment to the Consulting services
agreement with GHD INC. for preliminary engineering & CEQA Consulting Services for
Occidental /Graton wastewater transportation project.

Dave Upchurch Motioned to approve Resolution 210517C and Matt Johnson seconded

Board President, Dave Clemmer, __Y ; Board Vice President, Matt Johnson, _Y ;, Karin
Lease, _A ; David Upchurch, _Y ; Board Secretary Jennifer Butler _Y .

7. DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. Proposed venture with Forestville Water District for recycled water deliveries

The Board discussed the possibilities of receiving revenue by selling treated water. It was
estimated that treated water could sell for approximately 40% less than the current water
rates. The issue of transporting the water was discussed. Dave Clemmer mentioned the
transportation of water would be brought up at their next Standing Committee meeting.

The Board members stated they liked the idea and would like to see more information on

this subject.

8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT TO THE BOARD
A. Treatment Plant Operations Update

e Operations Report
e QOvertime report

The Overtime and Operations reports were reviewed and discussed. Questions were asked
and answers were provided.

B. Construction Update

e Report on Post Meeting Action Items
Nothing to report at this time.
e Meetings, Correspondence & Outreach

None
9. SUGGESTED ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA
A. Pending items/old business

None
Board Meeting 05/17/21 30f4



B. Future items/new business

Matt Johnson advised the Board tonight was his last meeting on the GCSD Board. He is
resigning after serving five years of service. The Board thanked Matt for all his time
serving on the Board and presented him with a plaque as a token of their appreciation.

Entered Closed Session at 8:02 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION

10. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: EXISTING LITIGATION

(Pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9)
Name of case: Graton Community Services v. Lescure Engineers

Direction given/ No action taken

9. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 8:40 p.m.

Dave Upchurch Motioned that we adjourn the meeting Matt Johnson seconded.

ADJOURNMENT 8:42 PM

Minutes Approved Date

Board Meeting 05/17/21 40f4



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

250 ROSS LANE * MAIL: PO BOX 534, GRATON, CALIFORNIA 95444 « 707/823-1542 « FAX 707/823-3713

GRATON

community services district

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
Graton Community Services District (GCSD)
Meeting of the GCSD Board of Directors
Tuesday, June 1, 2021 at 6:00 PM
Various Locations — Teleconference Meeting Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20

1. CALLTO ORDER 6:14PM
2. ROLL CALL - Determination of a Quorum

Board President, Dave Clemmer, H ; Board Vice President, Matt Johnson, _A_; Karin Lease,
_A ; David Upchurch, H ; Board Secretary, Jennifer Butler, H

3. APPROVE ORDER OF THE AGENDA
Dave Upchurch Motioned to approve the order of the agenda Jennifer Butler seconded.

Board President, Dave Clemmer, _Y__; Board Vice President, Matt Johnson, _A_; Karin Lease,
_A; David Upchurch, _Y ; Board Secretary, Jennifer Butler, _Y .

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public are invited to address the Board on those items which fall under the authority of the
Board. For those wishing to address the Board on any Agenda or non-agendized item, please complete a Speaker
Card located at the entrance to the and submit it to the Board President. Please be sure to indicate the Agenda
Item # you wish to address or the topic of your public comment. Comments will be limited to three minutes per
speaker. Speakers should understand that except in very limited situations, State law precludes the Board from
taking action on or engaging in extended deliberations concerning items of business which are not on the
Agenda. GOVERNMENT CODE 54954.2. (2) No action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not
appearing on the posted agenda, except that members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to
statements made or questions posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under Section 54954.3.
In addition, on their own initiative or in response to questions posed by the public, a member of a legislative body
or its staff may ask a question for clarification, make a brief announcement, or make a brief report on his or her
own activities. Furthermore, a member of a legislative body, or the body itself, subject to rules or procedures of
the legislative body, may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, request staff to
report back to the body at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or take action to direct staff to place a
matter of business on a future agenda.

DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability which requires an accommodation, an alternative format or requires
another person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact staff at the Graton Community Services District office
at (707) 823-1542 as soon as possible (no later than 10 days before the scheduled meeting) to ensure that arrangements for
accommodation may be provided.

Board Meeting: 06/01/21 1of2



PUBLIC COMMENT (CONTINUED)

There was one member of the public that attended the meeting and spoke.

Melissa Hall stated she lives at 8910 Green Valley Road. Melissa Hall asked the Board to consider
re-voting and postponing the planned project for Occidental Wastewater. She also asked the
Board to postpone the timeline.

She told the Board she expected a rate increase after not having received one in 6-7 years. Her
last concern was to have the Board reconsider their plan so Graton funds would not be used up
in litigation against the project.

The Board thanked Melissa for her comment and went into Closed Session at 6:19 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION

5. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS

(Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6) Agency designated representative: District
General Manager; Employee organization: International Order of Operating Engineers, Local 39
Returned to Open Session at 7:27 p.m.

Direction giving / No action taken

David Upchurch motioned to adjourn the meeting and Jennifer Butler seconded.

ADJOURNMENT 7:30 PM

Minutes Approved Date

Board Meeting 06/01/21 20f2



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICTA%\

250 ROSS LANE * MAIL: PO BOX 534, GRATON, CALIFORNIA 95444 « 707/823-1542 » FAX 707/823-3713
GRATON CSD

WASTEWATER
PARKS & RECREATION

06/16/21
RESOLUTION NO. 210621A

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE GRATON
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING AND ADOPTING REVISED
DISTRICT/BOARD POLICY DOCUMENTS

WHEREAS, the Graton Community Services District (“District”) desires to revise
current District/Board of Directors (“Board”) policy documents contained in the District’s

Policy Manual,

WHEREAS, the District has made certain revisions to such policy documents as
reflected in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Graton Community Services
District Board of Directors that:

Section 1. Approval of Revised Policies.

The Board of Directors hereby approves the revised District/Board policy documents in
Exhibit A. The revised policies shall become effective upon approval.

Section 2. Effective Date

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT/ﬁ

250 ROSS LANE ¢ MAIL: PO BOX 534, GRATON, CALIFORNIA 95444  707/823-1542 ¢ FAX 707/823-3713
GRATON CSD

WASTEWATER
PARKS & RECREATION

DIRECTORS:

[ ]CLEMMER [ _]LEASE [ JUPCHURCH [ ]BUTLER
AYES __;NOES __ ; ABSTAIN __ ; ABSENT ___
WHEREUPON, the President declared the above and foregoing Resolution duly adopted

and

SO ORDERED.

Approved:

Dave Clemmer
President, Board of Directors
Graton Community Services District

Attest:

Jennifer Butler
Secretary, Board of Directors
Graton Community Services District



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
[EE LA RIS deinn GENERAL
POLICY TITLE: Adoption/Amendment of Policies

POLICY NUMBER: 1000

It is the intent of the Board of Directors of the Graton Community Services District to maintain a Manual of
Policies. Contained therein shall be a comprehensive listing of the Board's current policies, being the rules
and regulations enacted by the Board from time to time. The Manual of Policies will serve as a resource for
Directors, staff and members of the public in determining the way matters of District business are to be
conducted.

If any policy or portion of a policy contained within the Manual of Policies conflicts with rules, regulations or
legislation having authority over Graton Community Services District, said rules, regulations or legislation
shall prevail.

1000.1  Consideration by the Board of Directors to adopt a new policy or to amend an existing policy may be
initiated by any Director or the General Manager. The proposed adoption or amendment shall be initiated by a
Director or the General Manager by submitting a written draft of the proposed new or amended policy to the
Board Chairperson and the General Manager, which may be submitted in person or by any communication for
which there is a record accessible to all appropriate entities, and requesting that the item be included for consid-
eration on the agenda of the next appropriate regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

1000.2  Adoption of a new policy or amendment of an existing policy shall be accomplished at a regular meet-
ing of the Board of Directors in accordance with the District's state statutes regarding the constitution of a majori-
ty vote.

1000.3  Copies of the proposed new or amended policy shall be included in the agenda-information packet for
any meeting in which they are scheduled for consideration (listed on the agenda). A copy of the proposed new or
amended policy(ies) shall be made available to each Director for review at least 72 hours, per the Brown Act,
prior to any meeting at which the policy(ies) are to be considered.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM

GENERAL

POLICY TITLE: Association Memberships
POLICY NUMBER: 1005

Purpose: This policy sets forth the rules for membership in associations and establishes who may represent the
District.

1005.1  Appropriate Memberships. To take advantage of in-service training opportunities, the District may hold
membership in industry related associations. Board Members and staff may attend meetings of national, state,
and local associations directly related to the purposes and operations of the District. Decisions to continue, dis-
continue, or add new memberships shall occur through the annual budget process.

1005.2  Appointment of Representatives. The President shall appoint Board Members as representatives and
alternates, as appropriate, to serve as contacts between the District, stakeholder groups, associations and oth-
ers. The representatives and alternates shall report to the Board in a timely manner on their activities involving
these associations. In some cases members may be allowed certain expenses for travel and membership in
such associations. This shall be determined and approved by the full Board.

1005.3  District Manager Memberships. The President may designate the District Manager as the appropriate
representative or alternate in connection with memberships in any association. The District Manager may desig-
nate those associations or industry specific organizations with which his/her association is necessary or desired.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON, CALIFQERIN Taddd o J077A1 =143 = FAX T07811-973

GRATOM
EEERIE S 8T=C Pl ANITIT GENERAL

POLICY TITLE: Basis of Authority
POLICY NUMBER: 1010

1010.1  The Board of Directors is the legislative body and unit of authority within the District. Power is central-
ized in the elected Board collectively and not in an individual Director. Apart from his/her normal function as a
part of this unit, Directors have no individual authority except in cases where the Board has delegated individual
authority to a specific Director. Examples of individual authority are administration tasks such as approving in-
voice voucher processing and executing agreements on behalf of the District, typically by Board resolutions. As
individuals, Directors may not commit the District to any policy, act, or expenditure.

1010.2  Directors do not represent any fractional segment of the community but are, rather, a part of the body
that represents and acts for the community as a whole. Routine matters concerning the operational aspects of
the District are delegated to District staff members.



FEATDNEUMMUNIT‘H SERVICES DISTRICT

230 HCIES LAME = MaAlL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFOERIA Thddd o JB77A11=1 543 « FAX T0TA811-39 1%

GRATOMN
R -hofir GENERAL
POLICY TITLE: Board Secretary
POLICY NUMBER: 1015

1015.1  The position of Secretary of the Board of Directors is required by state law. The Secretary performs
duties including recording of minutes and actions of the Board of Directors and certifying all actions and
resolutions of the Board.

1015.2  Iffor any reason the President and Vice-President resign or are absent or disabled, the Secretary
shall perform the President's duties until the position of President is filled.

1015.3  Iffor any reason the President and Vice-President disqualify themselves from participating in an
agenda item or become partisan in the debate on any such item, the Secretary shall perform the duties of the
presiding officer.

1015.4  Duties of the Secretary
The Secretary of the Governing Board shall have the following duties:
a) Certify or attest to actions taken by the Board when required;
b) Sign the minutes of the Board meeting following their approval;
c) Sign the documents as directed by the Board on behalf of the Authority, and sign all other items which
require the signature of the Secretary;
d) Perform any other duties assigned by the Board and the General Manager; and
e) Perform any other duties required under law.

1015.5  Responsibilities of the Secretary
The duties of the Secretary, with assistance of the General Manager, are:

a) Respond to routine correspondence;

b) Prepare for Board meetings, including preparing the agenda with the advice of the General Manager
and providing public notice of Board meetings in accordance with state law;

c) Attend all Board meetings and ensure minutes of the Board of Directors meetings are recorded. These
recordings are for use by the Secretary only for the purpose of preparing minutes for adoption at the
next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. Upon adoption of these minutes the recording media will
be reused;

d) Ensure accurate Minutes of each Board meeting are prepared and maintained;

e) Maintain Board records and other documents and reports as required by law; and

f) Disseminate correspondence to Board officers addressed to them.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
A nd e cbre deinn GENERAL
POLICY TITLE: Board/Staff Communications
POLICY NUMBER: 1020
Objectives: Effective governance of the District relies on the cooperative efforts of the agency’s elected

Board, who set policy and priorities, and the District’s staff members, who analyze problems and issues, to make
appropriate recommendations, and implement and administer Board policies. It is the responsibility of District
staff to ensure Board members have access to information and to insure such information is communicated
completely and with candor to those making the request. However, Board members should avoid intrusion into
those areas that are the responsibility of District staff. Individual Board members must avoid intervening in staff
decision-making, the development of staff recommendations, scheduling of work, and executing department
priorities without the prior knowledge and approval of the General Manager and Board as a whole. This is nec-
essary to protect District staff from undue influence and pressure from individual Board members and to allow
staff to execute priorities given by management and the Board without fear of reprisal.

Role of the Board:  As the legislative body for the agency, the Board is responsible for approving the District's
budget, setting policy goals and objectives and adopting strategic plans. The primary functions of the District
staff members are to execute Board policy and other Board actions and to keep the Board well informed.

Individual members of the Board should not make attempts to pressure or influence staff decisions, recommen-
dations, workloads, schedules, and department priorities, without the prior knowledge and approval of the Board
as awhole. If a Board member wishes to influence the actions, decisions, recommendations, workloads, work
schedule, and priorities of staff, that member must prevail upon the Board to do so as a matter of Board policy.

Board members also have a responsibility of information flow. It is critical that they make extensive use of staff
and agency reports and Board meeting minutes. Board members should come to meetings prepared; having
read the agenda packet materials and supporting documents, as well as any additional information or memo-
randa provided on agency projects or evolving issues. Additional information may be requested from staff, if
necessary.

Individual Board members, as well as the Board as a whole, are permitted complete freedom of access to any
information requested of staff and shall receive the full cooperation and candor of staff in being provided with any
requested information. The General Manager or Legal Counsel will pass critical information to all Board mem-
bers.

There are limited restrictions when information cannot be provided. Draft documents (e.g. staff reports in pro-
gress, etc.) are under review and not available for release until complete and after review by District staff. In
addition, there are legal restrictions on the agency'’s ability to release certain personnel information



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
A nd e cbre deinn GENERAL
even to members of the Board. Any concerns Board members may have regarding the release of information or

the refusal of staff to release information, should be discussed with Legal Counsel for clarification.

Policies:  There shall be mutual respect from both staff and Board members of their respective roles and re-
sponsibilities at all times. There is a need for access to staff by Directors and at the same time, unlimited access
could result in work priority conflicts for staff.

Purpose: The purpose of the policies listed below is to facilitate Board/staff communications consistent with
these principles.

1020.1  All requests for information or questions by the Board to staff outside of a Board or Committee meet-
ing, shall be directed to the General Manager, Legal Counsel, or the Clerk of the Board as appropriate and shall
include the desired time and date for receiving the information. Staff will confirm the date they can provide the
information. So that all Board members are equally informed, all written informational material requested by any
Director shall be submitted by staff to all Board members with the notation indicating which Board member re-
quested the information. If a Board member requests information from any other member of the staff, staff may
either direct the matter to the General Manager or may ask the Board member to contact the General Manager
directly.

1020.2  Individual Directors cannot directly assign work to staff members. Board initiated projects will follow
organizational channels, through the General Manager, unless there is an emergency. As no formal procedure
will answer all cases, the following should be considered as a guide and used with restraint and judgment:

a) Directors should clear all short-term requests of Staff with the General Manager prior to contacting indi-
vidual members of the staff and, in most cases, the General Manager should direct and handle the re-
quest for the Director.

b) Forlong-term, involved studies or where the matter includes confidential material, the General Manager
should be contacted and the subject matter discussed with the full Board at a Board meeting prior to
staff working on the assignments.

¢) Inthe event that staff is a participant or representative of a Committee or Work Group of the Board, the
Board may contact the staff member directly to request or provide information or confer regarding mat-
ters of the Committee or Work Group.

1020.3 At Board meetings and other public meetings, respectful communication is expected. Staff is encour-
aged to give their professional recommendations, and the Board should recognize that staff may make recom-
mendations that could be viewed as unpopular with the public and with individual Board members. Board mem-
bers may request clarification and ask questions of staff at public meetings, and Directors are encouraged to
participate in healthy discussions amongst each other regarding items under discussion on the Agenda. How-
ever, Directors should refrain from debate with staff at Board meetings about staff recommendations or other
items being discussed. Staff must recognize that the Board, as the decision maker, is free to reject or modify a
staff recommendation and that the Board’s wishes will be implemented by staff even if it was contrary to a staff
recommendation.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
gty GENERAL
1020.4  Directors shall not attempt to coerce or influence staff, included in the making of recommendations,
the awarding of contracts, the selection of consultants, the processing of any projects or applications, or the
granting of permits. Directors shall not attempt to change or interfere with the operating policies and practices of
any district department through interaction with staff. Individual Directors may discuss these items with the Gen-

eral Manager to get clarification or raise concems.

1020.5  Board members should not make public comments critical of the performance of a District staff mem-
ber. Any concerns by a Director over the behavior or work of a district employee during a Board meeting should
be directed to the General Manager privately to ensure the concern is resolved. All complaints about employees
from Directors should be submitted privately to the General Manager or, if a complaint concerns the General
Manager, to Legal Counsel.

1020.6  Staff will respect the right of Directors to refuse to provide information or answers to staff and recog-
nize that Directors may be bound by other rules of law or procedure that do not permit the Director to speak
about the subject matter presented. If a Director violates any of the policies regarding communications as stated
in this policy, any member of staff has the right to request that the Director speak directly with the General Man-
ager about the subject matter presented without any fear of reprisal.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
[EE LA RIS deinn GENERAL
POLICY TITLE: Claims against the District

POLICY NUMBER: 1025

Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to provide direction to District staff for processing and resolving (if possi-
ble) account adjustment requests and property damage claims against the District. Inherent in this policy is the
recognition that every adjustment request or claim will be unique, and that guidelines cannot be written to ac-
commodate every case. Therefore, staff must use discretion and good sense in handling each claim.

1025.1 Property (Land and Improvements) Damage Claims

In the course of the District’s operations — [list several examples of routine district operations or services] — dam-
age to land and improvements thereon occasionally occurs due to the proximity of the District’s facilities to pri-
vate property. When District employees are aware that property has been damaged in the course of their work,
restorative measures are to be taken to return the property as close to its original condition as possible.

When a property owner informs a District employee of damage to their property (by telephone or in person), the
employee receiving the claim will document in writing the time and date and a description of the stated circum-
stances and allegations. Employees should respond to questions, be cordial and respectful, but refrain from
commenting on liability questions.

As soon as possible after information about the damage has been received, it shall be given to the appropriate
division manager [replace position title with appropriate position title for your district]. The division manager, or
his/her designee, shall investigate the property owner's allegations.

If the owner of damaged property informs a member of the Board, the information will be given to the General
Manager. Directors should not independently investigate claims or make any representations to the property
owner, but may go with staff to observe.

Investigations shall be done in a timely fashion and documented with a written report, including photographs
and/or interviews, when appropriate. A copy of the report shall be submitted to the General Manager.

If the investigating staff person is convinced that the damage was caused by District personnel, equipment, or
infrastructure, he/she shall prepare a work order to have the damage repaired, subject to the following condi-
tions:

General Manager approves the work order;

Property owner agrees that the proposed repairs are appropriate and adequate;

Property owner agrees to allow District personnel access to their property to perform the repair work;
District personnel have the necessary tools, equipment, and expertise to perform the necessary work;
Repair work can be accomplished within a reasonable amount of time; and

Cost of material for the repairs will not exceed five hundred dollars ($500).

IR R IR S



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
A nd e cbre deinn GENERAL
If the cost of material for repairs is stated by claimant or estimated by staff to exceed five hundred dollars ($500),

the owner will be asked to submit their claim in writing on a District claim form.

The General Manager shall review the damage claim and the proposed repair work within a reasonable amount
of time. If he/she determines that the damage is the District’s responsibility and that the proposed repair work is
appropriate, he/she may authorize the work if the cost of material for the repairs will not exceed one thousand
five hundred dollars ($1,500). A report shall be submitted to the Claims Committee [standing board committee
assigned to review claims of this nature] describing the damage claim, including a description of the manner in
which it was resolved. The claimant shall be notified of any action by the Committee regarding their claim.

If the cost of material for repairs is stated by claimant or estimated to exceed one thousand five hundred dollars
(81,500, the claim will be submitted to the Claims Committee. The Claims Committee shall review the claim and
receive input from staff in closed session [qualifies as “anticipated litigation” under the Brown Act]. After review-
ing the damage claim, the Committee may authorize the work if the cost of material for the repairs will not ex-
ceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) or may make a recommendation to the Board of Directors. A report shall
be submitted to the Board describing the damage claim, including a description of the manner in which it was
resolved, or a recommendation for Board action. The claimant shall be notified of any action by the Committee
regarding their claim.

If the cost of material for repairs is stated by claimant or estimated to exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000), the
claim will be submitted to the Board of Directors for its consideration. The Board will consider the claim during a
closed session [“anticipated litigation”] of a regular or special meeting. Action to accept or reject the claim may
be taken in open or closed session. The claimant shall be notified of the Board’s action regarding their claim.
Notification that a claim has been rejected shall be accompanied by proof of service.

The Board will not consider a claim of an amount in excess of the [insurance deductible] 00), including the cost
of investigation, without prior written approval of the District's insurance company.

Claims in excess of the District’s insurance deductible shall be forwarded to the insurance company, and the
claimant shall be advised of this action.

Claims for personal injury/wrongful death shall not be investigated by District staff or directors but shall be imme-
diately forwarded to the District’s insurance company.

1025.2 Property (Vehicles and Unsecured Property) Damage Claims

All claims of damage to vehicles, or other unsecured property, shall be submitted to the General Manager.
He/she shall review the damage claim and the requested restitution. If he/she determines that the damage is the
District’s responsibility, he/she may authorize repairs or reimbursement of expenses to an amount not to exceed
one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500). A report shall be submitted to the Claims Committee describing the
damage claim, including a description of the manner in which it was resolved.

The claim will be processed as described above if the cost of material for repairs is estimated to exceed the ap-
plicable thresholds.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
A nd e cbre deinn GENERAL
1025.3  Property Damage Claims on District Form
Except for damage to land and improvements estimated to cost less than five hundred dollars ($500), all dam-
age claims must be submitted in writing on a District claim form. This will ensure that a claim is valid and protect

important rights of the District.

If an individual does not wish to file a claim on the District form, he/she may present the claim by letter if it con-
forms to Section 910 and Section 910.2, of the California Government Code. Section 910 specifies that a claim
needs to show all of the following:
a) The name and post office address of the claimant;
b) The post office address to which the person presenting the claim desires notices to be sent;
c) The date, place, and other circumstances of the occurrence or transaction which gave rise to the claim
asserted;
d) A general description of the indebtedness, obligation, injury, damage or loss incurred so far as it may be
known as the time of presentation of the claim;
e) The name or names of the public employee or employees causing the injury, damage, or loss, if known;
and
f)  The amount claimed if it totals less than ten thousand dollars ($10,000) as of the date of presentation of
the claim, including the estimated amount of any prospective injury, damage, or loss, insofar as it may
be known at the time of the presentation of the claim, together with the basis of computation of the
amount claimed. If the amount claimed exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000), no dollar amount shall
be included in the claim. However, it shall indicate whether the claim would be a limited civil case.

Section 910.2 of the California Government Code specifies the following:

The claim shall be signed by the claimant or by some person on his behalf. Claims against local public entities
for supplies, materials, equipment or services need not be signed by the claimant or on his behalf if presented on
a billhead or invoice regularly used in the conduct of the business of the claimant.

If the filed letter/claim does not meet the requirements of the California Government Code Section 910 and Sec-
tion 910.2, then a letter shall be sent to the claimant informing them of this fact.

District staff shall provide no assistance to the claimant in filling out the claim form. Claimant must fill out the
claim form in its entirety and submit it via mail, fax or personal delivery to the District office. Upon receipt, office
staff shall date-stamp the document.

1025.4  Account Adjustment Requests (Appropriate for Utility-Type Districts)
The General Manager or the Finance Division Manager [Business Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer or
other appropriate position title], in his/her absence, is authorized to adjust a customer’s water service [sewer,
garbage, electricity, etc.] account when their bill reflects usage that is significantly greater than normal, due to
accidental loss of water through broken pipes or when faucets are turned on in the owner’s absence, etc. [or
other type of abnormal account cost], subject to the following conditions:

a) The customer requests the account adjustment in writing;

b) A similar request has not been made within the past 12 months; and

¢) The account shows no record of being delinquent for more than 60 days during the past 24 months.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 & FAX T07811-3713

GRATOM
A nd e cbre Anily GENERAL
POLICY TITLE: Code of Ethics
POLICY NUMBER: 1030

1030.1 Background information:

GCSD designed its Code of Ethics & Values (the “Code”) to provide clear, positive statements of ethical behav-
ior reflecting the core values of the District and the communities it serves. The Code includes practical strategies
for addressing ethical questions and a useful framework for decision-making and handling the day-to-day opera-
tions of the District. The Code is developed to reflect the issues and concerns of today's complex and diverse
society.

1030.2  Goals of the code of ethics & values:

a) Tomake GCSD a better District built on mutual respect and trust.

b) To promote and maintain the highest standards of personal and professional conduct among all in-
volved in District government, District staff, volunteers and members of the District's Board. All elected
and appointed officials, officers, employees, members of advisory committees, and volunteers of the
District, herein called “Officials” for the purposes of this policy.

c) The Code is a touchstone for members of District Board and staff in fulfilling their roles and responsibili-
ties.

1030.3  Preamble:

a) The proper operation of democratic government requires that decision-makers be independent, impar-
tial and accountable to the people they serve. GCSD has adopted this Code to promote and maintain
the highest standards of personal and professional conduct in the District's government.

b) All Officials, and others, who participate in the District's government are required to subscribe to this
Code, understand how it applies to their specific responsibilities and practice its eight core values in
their work. Because we seek public confidence in the District's services and public trust of its decision-
makers, our decisions and our work must meet the most demanding ethical standards and demonstrate
the highest levels of achievement in following this Code.

1030.4  Applicability:
This Code shall apply to all District Officials as defined in 1030.2 b.

1030.5  Core Value:
As participatory Officials in the District's government, we subscribe to the following Core Values:

1030.6  As a representative of GCSD, | will be ethical.
In practice, this value looks like:



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 & FAX T07811-3713

GRATOM
sty st AN GENERAL
a) lam trustworthy, acting with the utmost integrity and moral courage. | am truthful. | do what | say | will

do. | am dependable.

b) | make impartial decisions, free of bribes, unlawful gifts, narrow political interests, financial, and other
personal interests that impair my independence of judgment or action.

¢) lamfair, distributing benefits and burdens according to consistent and equitable criteria.

d) lextend equal opportunities and due process to all parties in matters under consideration. If | engage in
unilateral meetings and discussions, | do so without making voting decisions or any improper or unau-
thorized representations on behalf of the District.

e) |show respect for persons, confidences, and information designated as "confidential."

f)  Iuse my title(s) only when conducting official District business for information purposes or as an indica-
tion of background and expertise carefully considering whether | am exceeding or appearing to exceed
my authority.

g) lwill avoid actions that might cause the public or others to question my independent judgment.

h) I maintain a constructive, creative, and practical attitude toward the District’s affairs and a deep sense of
social responsibility as a trusted public servant.

1030.7  As a representative of GCSD, | will be professional.
In practice, this value looks like:
a) lapply my knowledge and expertise to my assigned activities and to the interpersonal relationships that
are part of my job in a consistent, confident, competent and productive manner.
b) |approach my job and work-related relationships with a positive, collaborative attitude.
c) |keep my professional education, knowledge, and skills current and growing.

1030.8  As a Representative of GCSD, | will be service-oriented.

In practice, this value looks like:
a) | provide friendly, receptive, courteous service to everyone.
b) |attune to and care about the needs and issues of citizens, public Officials and District workers.
¢) Inmy interactions with constituents, | am interested, engaged and responsive.

1030.9  As arepresentative of GCSD, | will be fiscally responsible.
In practice, this value looks like:
a) | make decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, taking into account the long-term
financial needs of the District, especially its financial stability.
b) | demonstrate concem for the proper use of District assets (e.g., personnel, time, property, equipment,
funds) and follow established procedures.
¢) | make good financial decisions that seek to preserve programs and services for District residents.
d) I'have knowledge of and adhere to the District's Purchasing and Contracting and Allocation of Funds
Policies.

1030.10 As a representative of GCSD, | will be organized.
In practice, this value looks like:



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 & FAX T07811-3713

GRATOM
A nd e cbre deinn GENERAL
a) lactin an efficient manner, making decisions and recommendations based upon research and facts,
taking into consideration short and long term goals.
b) | follow through in a responsible way, keeping others informed and responding in a timely fashion.

c) |am respectful of established District processes and guidelines.

1030.11  As a representative of GCSD, | will be communicative.
In practice, this value looks like:
a) | positively convey the District's care for and commitment to its citizens.
b) | communicate in various ways, that | am approachable, open-minded, and willing to participate in dia-
log.
c) lengage in effective two-way communication, by listening carefully, asking questions, and determining
an appropriate response which adds value to conversations.

1030.12  As a representative of GCSD, | will be collaborative.
In practice, this value looks like:
a) lactina cooperative manner with groups and other individuals, working together in a spirit of tolerance
and understanding.
b) | work towards consensus building and gain value from diverse opinions.
c) laccomplish the goals and responsibilities of my individual position, while respecting my role as a
member of a team.
d) I consider the broader regional and state-wide implications of the District's decisions and issues.

1030.13  As a representative of GCSD, | will be progressive.
In practice, this value looks like:
a) |lexhibit a proactive, innovative approach to setting goals and conducting the District's business.
b) |display a style that maintains consistent standards; but is also sensitive to the need for compromise,
"thinking outside the box" and improving existing paradigms when necessary.
c) | promote intelligent and thoughtful innovation in order to forward the District's policy agenda and District
services.

1030.14  Enforcement:

Any Official found to be in violation of this Code may be subject to Censure by the District Board. Any member of
any advisory Committee found in violation may be subject to dismissal from the Committee. In the case of an
employee, appropriate action shall be taken by the General Manager or by an authorized designee.



FEATDNEUMMUNIT‘H SERVICES DISTRICT

230 WOSE LAME = NaIL PO BOK 514 GEATOR. CALIFORRIA US40d » JETAT1=1 547 & FAX 1031213

GRATON
T GENERAL

POLICY TITLE: Conflict of Interest
POLICY NUMBER: 1035

1035.1  The Political Reform Act, Government Code §81000, et seq., requires state and local government
agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict-of-interest codes. The Fair Political Practices Commission (“FPPC”)
has adopted a regulation (2 Cal. Code of Regs. §18730) which contains the terms of a standard conflict of inter-
est code. It can be incorporated by reference and may be amended by the FPPC after public notice and hear-
ings to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act. The Board approved and adopted the FPPC’s stand-
ard conflict of interest on [insert meeting date or year]. Therefore, the terms of 2 Cal. Code of Regs. §18730 and
any amendments to it duly adopted by the FPPC are hereby incorporated by reference and, along with the at-
tached Appendix , in which members of the Board of Directors and employees are designated, and in which dis-
closure categories are set forth, constitute the conflict of interest code of the District.

1035.2 Designated employees shall file statements of economic interests with the Clerk of the County of
Sonoma.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
[EE LA RIS dhille GENERAL

POLICY TITLE: Correspondence to the Board
POLICY NUMBER: 1040

1040.1  All written or electronic correspondence addressed to the Board of Directors is to be sent to the District
office. Copies of the written or electronic correspondence and written responses in reply thereto, if any, shall be
distributed to each member of the Board, together with the next regular agenda or at the next regular meeting of
the Board, depending on date of receipt or response. Individual Board members may receive correspondence
addressed to him or her in his or her official capacity. However, Board members are not permitted to use agency
resources for sending or receiving personal correspondence.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON, CALIFQERIN Taddd o J077A1 =143 = FAX T07811-973

GRATON
—_— ' GENERAL
POLICY TITLE: Legal Counsel and Auditor
POLICY NUMBER: 1045

1045.1 The Board of Directors shall appoint a Legal Counsel to assist the Board and District in all applicable
issues and activities.

1045.2 Legal Counsel shall be the legal adviser of the District, including the Board as a whole, the General
Manager and department heads. Legal Counsel shall perform such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of
Directors. Such duties include, but are not limited to, providing legal assistance necessary for formulation and
implementation legislative policies and projects; represent the District’s interests, as determined by the District, in
litigation, administrative hearings, negotiations and similar proceedings; and to keep the Board and District staff
apprised of court rulings and legislation affecting the legal interest of the District. Legal Counsel is required to
review and approve as to form District legal documents, i.e. contracts, agreements, etc. The Legal Counsel shall
present and report on all legal issues and Closed Session items before the Board. The Legal Counsel shall
serve at the pleasure of the Board and shall be compensated for services as determined by the Board.

a) The Legal Counsel reports to the Board as a whole but is available to each Director for consultation re-
garding legal matters particular to that Board member’s participation. No Board member may request a
legal opinion of legal counsel without concurrence by the Board, except as such requests relate to
questions regarding that member’s participation. The Legal Counsel shall be available to the District
General Manager for consultation on applicable issues and activities.

1045.3 The District Auditor shall be appointed by the Board by a majority vote in a public meeting. The Board
shall determine the duties and compensation of the Auditor. The Auditor shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.
Selection of the Auditor shall be done in a noticed public meeting and at least every five years.

a) The Board may appoint a committee to oversee the work of an independent auditor, who will report to
the Board, to conduct an annual audit of the District’s books, records, and financial affairs in accordance
with state law and the Finance Committee Charter for Audit Compliance. The Chief Financial Of-
ficer/General Manager will install and maintain an accounting system that will completely, and at all
times, show the financial condition of the District.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON, CALIFQERIN Taddd o J077A1 =143 = FAX T07811-973

GRATON
—_— GENERAL

POLICY TITLE: Overview of the General Manager’s Role
POLICY NUMBER: 1050

1050.1 The General Manager is an employee of the District and has an employment agreement which speci-
fies his or her terms of employment. The General Manager is the administrative head of the District under the
direction of the Board of Directors. He or she shall be responsible for the efficient administration of all the Dis-
trict's affairs which are under the General Manager’s control. The General Manager plans, organizes, directs,
coordinates and evaluates all District operations, programs, and resources in accordance with short and long
range goals, policy statements, and directives from the Board.

1050.2 The General Manager’s Duties
The District's General Manager shall be responsible for:

a) The implementation of policies established by the Board of Directors for the operation of the District;

b)  The planning, direction, and coordination of the day-to-day operations of the District through the ap-
propriate department heads or managers including administration, financing, maintenance,
engineering, human resources, and others to effect operational efficiency;

c) The appointment, supervision, discipline, and dismissal of the District's employees, consistent with the
employment policies established by the Board of Directors;

d) Attend and participate in District Board meetings, prepare and present reports as necessary, represent
the Board before external organizations including other agencies, governmental and regulatory enti-
ties, business and community groups;

e) The supervision of the District’s facilities and services; and

f)  The supervision of the District’s finances.

1050.3 The District's General Manager serves at the pleasure of the Board. The Board will provide policy di-
rection and instruction to the General Manager on matters within the authority of the Board during duly-convened
board meetings. Members of the Board will deal with matters within the authority of the General Manager
through the General Manager and not through other District employees. Members of the Board will refrain from
making requests directly to District employees (other than the General Manager) to undertake analyses, perform
other work assignments, or change the priority of work assignments. As members of the public, Directors may
request non-confidential, factual information regarding District operations from District employees. If requesting
public records, Directors must follow the District’s Request for Public Records Policy.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
i TI TR deili GENERAL
POLICY TITLE: Annexation Procedures
POLICY NUMBER: 1055

1055.1  Property must be annexed to the District prior to receiving sewer services. Furthermore, unconditional
commitments to provide service to property and/or proposed developments will not be granted until said property
is annexed to the District.

1055.2  In conformance with Policy #6040, District approval of residential, commercial, industrial or other types

of development projects will not be granted by the Board of Directors until the entire site has been annexed to the
District or will be granted with the condition that the entire project site be successfully annexed to the District.

1055.3 Annexation Procedures.

1055.3.1  Determine suitability. Property owners or project developers desiring annexation to the Dis-
trict should first determine several factors regarding their property's suitability for sewer services:

1055.3.1.1 Is the property presently not within the District's boundaries?

1055.3.1.2 Is the property within the sphere of influence established for the District by the
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)?

1055.3.1.3  Where are the District's existing sewer facilities relative to the property?

1055.3.1.4 Is the excess capacity in the District's existing facilities adequate for the prop-
erty's proposed development density?

1055.3.1.5 Information regarding District annexation, sphere of influence, and the location
of existing sewer facilities and available excess capacity will be provided by District staff up-
on request. Determination of the property's suitability for development and/or connection to
the sewer system is the responsibility for the property owner, and his/her use of professional
engineering and/or development consultants is encouraged.

1055.3.2  Application to LAFCO. LAFCO has been established by the State Legislature to, among
other duties, review and approve or disapprove proposals for annexation of territory to special districts.
Approval by LAFCO of any annexation proposal is required before the District can approve the annexa-
tion and provide sewer services.

1055.3.2.1 To initiate the LAFCO application procedure, owners of the property proposed
for annexation, or the registered voters residing within the area proposed for annexation,
shall submit a petition (§56704, Ca. Gov. Code) to LAFCO. The contents of the petition,
itemized below, shall conform to §56700 of the California Government Code.



1055.3.2.2  With the petition, annexation proponents shall submit to LAFCO a map and
legal description of the proposal. The contents of the map and legal description, itemized
below, shall conform to LAFCO and the State Board of Equalization requirements.

1055.3.2.3 Also with the petition, annexation proponents shall submit to LAFCO a com-
pleted application form and appropriate filing and environmental review fees.

1055.3.3  Application to District. If annexation proponents desire to receive confirmation of District
acceptance of their proposal prior to initiating the LAFCO application, the petition, map, legal description
and LAFCO application form, discussed in 1055.3.2.3 above, should be submitted to the District office.
A deposit of $1,800 minimum must also accompany said submittal to cover LAFCO's filing and envi-
ronmental review fees, State Board of Equalization fees, and District processing costs. When the an-
nexation process is complete or terminated, cost overruns will be billed to the applicant, and underruns
will be refunded.

1055.3.3.1 The Board of Directors will consider the annexation proposal at a regularly
scheduled meeting. Acceptance by the Board of the proposed annexation shall be formal-
ized by the adoption of a resolution. Said resolution shall contain the following:

(a) all of the information required in the petition, as itemized below, excepting provisions
regarding signatories and signatures;

(b) the annexation map and legal description as attachments;

(c) verification that the District desires to annex the subject territory;

(d) authorization for the resolution to be submitted as an application for annexation ap-
proval by LAFCO; and,

(e) arequest that LAFCO approve and authorize the District to conduct proceedings for the
annexation without notice and hearing and without an election (only if the petition has
been signed by all of the owners of land within the boundaries of the proposed annexa-
tion).

1055.3.4  District Approval of Annexation. If LAFCO accepts the annexation proposal it will adopt a
resolution and forward same to the District. After confirmation of LAFCO acceptance, and after the an-
nexation proponent(s) tenders to the District applicable annexation fees (discussed below) and appro-
priate recording and State Board of Equalization fees, as determined by LAFCO, the District's Board of
Directors, at a regularly scheduled meeting, will consider approval of the proposed annexation. Approv-
al by the Board of the proposed annexation shall be formalized by the adoption of a resolution.

1055.3.4.1 Said resolution shall contain the following provisions:

(@) Thata description of the annexed lands shall be attached to said resolution;

(b) The annexed land shall be subject to the District's policies, rules and regulations,
charges made, and assessments levied pursuant to the provisions of the laws pertain-
ing to community service districts to pay for outstanding obligations of said district, and
also shall be subject to all and any combination of assessments, tolls and charges as
may exist at the adoption of the resolution and as thereafter may be established and/or
levied by the County of Sonoma and/or the District for any District purpose;

(c) The District shall be under no obligation to install a sewer system or any facilities in
connection with the subject annexation and the owners of the land to be annexed shall
install, as and when sewer service is desired, without cost, charge or obligation to the



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
sty st AN GENERAL
District, a complete sewer system as may be specified by the District, in accordance

with plans and specifications approved by the General Manager and/or Consulting En-
gineer in a manner meeting his/her approval, and shall convey, at no cost to the District,
all of said sewer system, including rights of way over all parts thereof, to the District;
and,

(d) The project developers and/or owners of the annexed property, and their heirs, succes-
sors and assigns shall agree to abide by all Board policies, rules and regulations of the
District presently established and as shall be established by the Board in the future.

1055.3.4.2 After adoption of said resolution of approval by the Board of Directors, it shall
be sent to LAFCO along with necessary fees, for processing of State filings, local record-
ings, and filing with the State Board of Equalization.

1055.3.5  Annexation Petition. In accordance with §56700 of the California Government Code, the
petition proposing annexation of property to the District shall do all of the following:

1055.3.5.1 State that the proposal is made pursuant to said §56700;

1055.3.5.2 State the nature of the proposal (i.e., annexation of property to Graton Com-
munity Services District;

1055.3.5.3 Include a description of the boundaries of the affected territory accompanied
by a map showing the boundaries;

1055.3.5.4 State any proposed terms and conditions;
1055.3.5.5 Explain the reason for the proposal (e.g., to receive sewer services;
1055.3.5.6 State whether the petition is signed by registered voters or owners of land;

1055.3.5.7 Designate no more than three persons as chief petitioners, including their
names and mailing addresses;

1055.3.5.8 Request that proceedings be taken for the proposal pursuant to said §56700;
and,

1055.3.5.9 State whether the proposal is consistent with the sphere of influence designat-
ed by LAFCO for the District.

1055.3.6  Descriptions and Maps. In accordance with State Board of Equalization and District re-
quirements, annexation descriptions and maps shall conform to the following conditions:

1055.3.6.1  All documents must be capable of producing a readable photographic image;



1055.3.6.2 Every description must be self-sufficient within itself and without the necessity
of reference to any extraneous document, with references to deeds of record used only as a
secondary reference;

1055.3.6.3 When writing a metes and bounds description of a contiguous annexation, all
details of the contiguous portion(s) of the boundary may be omitted, with the points of de-
parture from the existing boundary clearly established;

1055.3.6.4 A specific parcel description in sectionalized land is permissible without a
metes and bounds description of the perimeter boundary;

1055.3.6.5 A parcel description making reference only to a subdivision or a lot within a
subdivision is not acceptable, unless all dimensions needed to plot the boundaries are given
on an accompanying plat, and the relationship of lot lines with street rights of way must be
clearly indicated;

1055.3.6.6 Every map must clearly indicate all existing streets, roads and highways within
and adjacent to the lands to be annexed, together with the current names of these thor-
oughfares;

1055.3.6.7 Every map shall be a scale and a north point;
1055.3.6.8 The point of beginning of the legal description must be shown on the map;

1055.3.6.9 The boundaries of the lands to be annexed must be distinctively shown on the
map without obliterating any essential geographic or political features;

1055.3.7  Allmaps must be professionally drawn or copies (rough sketches of maps or plats will not
be accepted); and,

1055.3.7.1  All descriptions must be prepared by a surveyor or civil engineer licensed in
the State of California, and his/her stamp and signature shall be affixed to said description.

1055.3.8  Inaddition to LAFCO filing, environmental review, State filing, recording, State Board of
Equalization and any other applicable non-District fees, an annexation fee shall be paid to the District
prior to adoption by the Board of Directors of the resolution approving any annexation. Said annexation
fee is presently established at $1500 minimum or $1,500 per acre, and may be adjusted from time to
time by the Board of Directors.



_GRATDNCUMMUMJT‘H SERVICES DISTRICT

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

GRATOMN
SRR ADMINISTRATION

POLICY TITLE: Electronic Document Retention Policy
POLICY NUMBER: 2430

The Electronic Document Retention Policy of the Graton Community Services District governs the retention of text
messages, voicemail messages, social media posts, and email messages sent or received in the conduct of Dis-

trict business.
2430.1 Definitions

a) Email Message: An electronic communication sent and received via web mail or email client.

b) Social Media: Information posted to websites and applications that enable users to create and share
content or to participate in social networking, including Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Snapchat, and
LinkedIn.

c) TextMessage: An electronic, written communication sent and received via telephone or Internet connec-
tion.

d) Voicemail Message: An electronic, aural communication sent or received via telephone or Internet con-
nection.

2430.2 Text Messages, Voicemail Messages, and Social Media

Text messages, voicemail messages, and social media posts not saved to an archive or a more permanent me-
dium are intended to be ephemeral documents, not preserved in the ordinary course of business. Accordingly,
they do not constitute disclosable public records, as that term is defined by Government Code section 6252, sub-
division (e). Directors and District staff are not required to retain these electronic documents. Business done on
behalf of the District that requires the creation and preservation of records should be conducted in other media.

2430.3
a)

Email Messages

Email messages sent or received by the District’s computer systems from the date this policy is adopted
will be preserved for two years and made available for public inspection on the same terms as other
District records.

Except as provided in point 3 below, Directors and District staff are required to use (or copy to an address
on) the District's computer systems for all email messages regarding District business. Such email mes-
sages fall within point 1 above, i.e., they will be preserved for two years and made available for public
inspection on the same terms as other District records.

The District will continue to comply with Government Code § 54957.5 which deems to be a public record
any document communicated to a majority of the Directors, whether at the same time or seriatim, with
respect to an item of District business regardless of the means of that communication, including via non-
District email accounts. Directors are encouraged to forward such email messages not received by the
District's computer systems nor copied to its staff or to an email address designated for that purpose so
they can be preserved in the District’'s email retention system, relieving individual Directors of any duty to
preserve such email messages or make them available for public inspection.

This policy applies only to the conduct of District business that is subject to the Public Records Act. It has
no application to communications to or from Directors in their other public and private capacities or com-
munications to or from District staff that are personal, private or otherwise not District business.



E}RATDNCGMMUMW SERVICES DisTRICT

230 ROESE LANE = ML PO RGN S0, GEATOM, CALIFONN N §5484 o DI 1= 1945 o« FAX MTE21:0F18

ADMINISTRATION

POLICY TITLE: Accounts Receivable Policy
POLICY NUMBER: 2100
2100.1 Itis the policy of the District that accounts receivable be reviewed monthly, as it is critical to the cash
flow of the District and requires continued follow-up and attention.
2100.2 Procedures:

a) The accounts receivable balances are reviewed monthly by the District's Board President or

General Manager.
b) At month-end closing, an accounts receivable schedule is prepared, reviewed, and reconciled to

the General Ledger. The trial balance report is compared to the General Ledger for accuracy.

C) An allowance for bad debt is not carried on the Balance Sheet as all accounts receivable
are deemed collectible. At year-end it is determined if there are uncollectible items and, if
so, those are written off by the District's accountants, upon approval by the Board Presi-
dent or General Manager.



_GHﬂTDNCDMMUN!W SERVICES DISTRICT

) ROSE LAraL = HAR PO ROKE 914, GRATOH, CALIFONNIE §5488 o TO7MI B=0540 = FdR TOWRTL 2510

POLICY TITLE:

SEEEEETTT ADMINISTRATION

Asset Protection and Fraud in the Workplace

POLICY NUMBER: 2105

21051 Purpose and Scope: To establish policy and procedures for clarifying acts that are considered
to be fraudulent, describing the steps to be taken when fraud or other dishonest activities are suspected,
and providing procedures to follow in accounting for missing funds, restitution and recoveries.

2105.2 The District is committed to protecting its assets against the risk of loss or misuse. Accordingly,
it is the policy of the District to identify and promptly investigate any possibility of fraudulent or related dis-
honest activities against the District and, when appropriate, to pursue available legal remedies.

2105.3 Definitions:

a) Fraud - Fraud and other similar irregularities include, but are not limited to:

1. Claim for reimbursement of expenses that are not job-related or authorized by Dis-
trict policy;

2. Forgery, falsification, or unauthorized alteration of documents or records (including
but not limited to checks, promissory notes, time sheets, independent contractor
agreements, purchase orders, budgets, etc.);

3. Misappropriation of District assets (including but not limited to funds, securities,
supplies, furniture, equipment, etc.);

4, Inappropriate use of District resources (including but not limited to labor, time, and
materials);

d. Improprieties in the handling or reporting of money or financial transactions;

6. Authorizing or receiving payment for goods not received or services not per-
formed;

7. Computer-related activity involving unauthorized alteration, destruction, forgery, or
manipulation of data or misappropriation of District-owned software;

8. Misrepresentation of information;

9. Theft of equipment or goods;

10. Any apparent violation of federal, state, or local laws related to dishonest activities
or fraud;

1. Seeking or accepting anything of material value from those doing business with

the District including vendors, consultants, contractors, lessees, applicants, and
grantees. Materiality is determined by the District's Conflict of Interest Code which
incorporates the Fair Political Practices Commission's regulations;



12. Any other conduct, actions or activities treated as fraud or misappropriation under
any federal or state law, rule or regulation.

b) Employee — In this context, employee refers to any individual or group of individuals who
receive compensation, either full or part-time, including members of the Board of Directors,
from the District. The term also includes any volunteer who provides services to the District
through an authorized arrangement with the District or a District organization.

C) Management — In this context, management refers to any manager, supervisor, or other desig-
nated individual who manages or supervises District’s resources or assets.

d) Internal Audit Committee — In this context, if the claim of fraud involves anyone other than the
Districts General Manager, the Internal Audit Committee shall consist of the General Manager,
the District’'s Legal Counsel and any other persons appointed to the Internal Audit Committee by
the General Manager. If the claim of fraud involves the District's General Manager, the Internal
Audit Committee shall consist  of the President of the Board of Directors of the District, the
District's Legal Counsel and those persons appointed to the Internal Audit Committee by the
President of the Board. Nothing contained in this policy shall be construed as requiring the
General Manager or the President of the Board to appoint other persons to the Internal Audit
Committee. Individuals appointed to the Internal Audit Committee by the General Manager or
the President of the Board other than the District's Legal Counsel shall serve at the pleasure of
the General Manager or the President of the Board.

e) External Auditor — In this context, External Auditor refers to independent audit professionals who
perform annual audits of the District’s financial statements and are appointed by the District's
Board of Directors.

2105.4 It is the District's intent to fully investigate any suspected acts of fraud, misappropriation, or other
similar irregularity. An objective and impartial investigation will be conducted regardless of the position, title, and
length of service or relationship with the District of any party who might be or become involved in or becomes the
subject of such investigation. An employee being investigated for fraud may request representation by a repre-
sentative of any recognized bargaining unit that represents the employee.

2105.5 Each department of the District is responsible for instituting and maintaining a system of internal
controls to provide reasonable assurance of the prevention and detection of fraud, misappropriations, and other
iregularities. Management staff should be familiar with the types of improprieties that might occur within their ar-
eas of responsibility and be alert for any indications of such conduct.

2105.6 For claims of fraud not involving the General Manager, the General Manager or an Internal Audit
Committee appointed by the General Manager shall have primary responsibility for investigation of activity cov-
ered by this policy. For claims of fraud involving the General Manager, the President of the Board or an Internal
Audit Committee appointed by the President shall have primary responsibility for investigation of activity covered
by this policy. The District's General Counsel shall advise the Committee, the General Manager or the Board
President on all such investigations.

2105.7 Throughout the investigation, the Internal Audit Committee will inform the General
Manager of pertinent investigative findings.



2105.8 An employee will be granted whistle-blower protection when acting in accordance with this policy so
long as her or she has not engaged in activity that violates this policy. When informed of a suspected impropriety,
neither the District nor any person acting on its behalf shall:

a) Dismiss or threaten to dismiss an employee providing the information,

b) Discipline, suspend, or threaten to discipline or suspend such an employee,
C) Impose any penalty upon such an employee, or

d) Intimidate or coerce such an employee.

Violations of this whistle-blower protection policy will result in discipline up to and including termination.

2105.9 Upon conclusion of the investigation, the results will be reported to the General Manager or, if the
investigation involves the General Manager, the Board President, who shall advise the Board of Directors.
210510  Following review of investigation results, the General Manager or the Board President, as the case
may be, will take appropriate action regarding employee misconduct. Disciplinary action can include termination,
referral of the case for criminal prosecution, or both.

210511 The General Manager or the General Counsel will pursue every reasonable effort, including court-
ordered restitution, to obtain recovery of District losses from the offender, other responsible parties, insurers, or
other appropriate sources.

2105.12 Procedures:

2105.12.1 Board of Directors Responsibilities

a) If a Board Member has reason to suspect a fraud has occurred, he or she shallimmediately con-
tact the General Manager or the Board President, if the activity involves the General Manager,
and the District's Legal Counsel.

b) The Board Member shall not attempt to investigate the suspected fraud or discuss the matter
with anyone other than the General Manager or Board President, as the case may be, and the
District's Legal Counsel.

C) The alleged fraud or audit investigation shall not be discussed with the media by any person
other than the General Manager or the Board President after consultation with the District’s Le-
gal Counsel and any Internal Audit Committee appointed as to the matter.

2105.12.2 Management Responsibilities

a) Management staff are responsible for being alert to, and reporting fraudulent or related dishon-
est activities in their areas of responsibility.
b) Each manager should be familiar with the types of improprieties that might occur in his or her

area of responsibility and be alert for any indication that improper activity, misappropriation, or
dishonest activity did occur or is occurring.

C) When an improper activity is detected or suspected, management should determine whether an
error or mistake has occurred or if there may be dishonest or fraudulent activity.



If a manager determines a suspected activity may involve fraud or related dishonest activity, he
or she should contact his or her immediate supervisor or the District's General Manager. If the
activity involves the General Manager, it shall be reported to the Board President or the District's
Legal Counsel.

Managers should not attempt to conduct individual investigations, interviews, or interrogations
other than as directed by the General Manager or General Counsel. However, manage staff are
responsible for taking appropriate corrective actions to implement adequate controls to prevent
recurrence of improper actions.

Management staff should support the District's responsibilities and cooperate fully with the Inter-
nal Audit Committee, other involved departments, and law enforcement agencies in the detec-
tion, reporting, and investigation of criminal acts, including the prosecution of offenders.
Management staff must give full and unrestricted access to all necessary records and personnel
to those responsible for identifying, investigating and remedying fraud and related dishonest
acts. All District assets, including furniture, desks, and computers, are open to inspection at any
time. No District officer, agent or employee has a reasonable expectation of privacy in District
property and other resources to preclude such inspection.

In dealing with suspected dishonest or fraudulent activities, great care must be taken. Therefore,
management staff should avoid the following:

1. Incorrect accusations;

2. Alerting suspected individuals that an investigation is underway;

3. Treating employees unfairly; and

4. Making statements that could lead to claims of false accusations or other offenses.

In handling dishonest or fraudulent activities, managers have the responsibility to:

1. Make no contact (unless requested) with the suspected individual to determine facts or

demand restitution. Under no circumstances should there be any reference to "what
you did", "the crime", "the fraud", "the misappropriation", etc;

2. Avoid discussing the case, facts, suspicions, or allegations with anyone outside the Dis-
trict, unless specifically directed to do so by the General Manager; and
3. Avoid discussing the case with anyone inside the District other than employees who

have a need to know such as the General Manager, Internal Audit Committee, the Dis-
trict's Legal Counsel or law enforcement personnel.

4, Direct all inquiries from the suspected individual, or his or her representative, to the
General Manager, the Board President, or the District's Legal Counsel. All inquiries by
an attorney of the suspected individual should be directed to the General Manager or
the District's Legal Counsel. All inquiries from the media should be directed to the Gen-
eral Manager or the Board President, if the activity involves the General Manager.

S. Take appropriate corrective and disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, after
consulting with the [position or department] and Legal Counsel, in conformance with
District policy and applicable law.

2105.12.3 Employee Responsibilities

a)

A suspected fraudulent incident or practice observed by, or made known to, an employee must
be reported to the employee's supervisor for reporting to the proper management official.



When an employee believes his or her supervisor may be involved in inappropriate activity, the
employee shall make the report to the next higher level of management and/or the General
Manager. If the activity involves the General Manager, it shall be reported to the Board President
or the District's Legal Counsel.

A reporting employee shall refrain from further investigation of the incident, confrontation with the
alleged violator, or further discussion of the incident with anyone, unless requested by the Gen-
eral Manager, Internal Audit Committee, the District's Legal Counsel, or law enforcement per-
sonnel.

2105.12.4 Internal Audit Committee Responsibilities

a)

b)

Upon assignment by the General Manager or the Board President, an Interal Audit Committee
will promptly investigate the fraud.

In all circumstances where there is reason to suspect a criminal fraud has occurred, the Internal
Audit Committee, in consultation with the District General Manager, or the Board President and
Legal Counsel if the General Manager is suspected of involvement in the fraud, will contact the
appropriate law enforcement agency.

The Internal Audit Committee shall be available and receptive to relevant, confidential infor-
mation to the extent allowed by law after consultation with the District's Legal Counsel.

If evidence is uncovered showing possible dishonest or fraudulent activities, the Internal Audit
Committee will:

1. Discuss the findings with management and the General Manager;

2. Advise management, if the case involves District staff members, to meet with the [posi-
tion title] (or his/her designated representative) to determine if disciplinary action should
be taken;

3. Report to the External Auditor such activities to assess the effect of the illegal activity on
the District's financial statements;

4. Coordinate with the District's risk manager regarding notification to insurers and filing of
insurance claims;

5. Take immediate action, after consultation with the Legal Counsel, to prevent the theft,

alteration, or destruction of evidence. Such action shall include, but is not limited to:

a) Removing relevant records and placing them in a secure location, or limiting
access to those records

b) Preventing the individual suspected of committing the fraud from having ac-
cess to the records.

6. In consultation with the District Legal Counsel and the local law enforcement agency,
the Internal Audit Committee may disclose particulars of the investigation with potential



10.

210513  Exceptions

witnesses if such disclosure would further the investigation.

If the Internal Audit Committee is contacted by the media regarding an alleged fraud or
audit investigation, the Internal Audit Committee will refer the media to the General
Manager or Board President, if the activity involves the General Manager.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the Internal Audit Committee will document the
results in a confidential memorandum report to the General Manager or the Board
President for action. If the report concludes that the allegations are founded and the
District's Legal Counsel has determined that a crime has occurred, the report will be
forwarded to the appropriate law enforcement agency.

The Internal Audit Committee shall make recommendations to the appropriate depart-
ment as to the prevention of future similar occurrences.

Upon completion of the investigation, including all legal and personnel actions; all rec-
ords, documents, and other evidentiary material, obtained from the department under
investigation will be retuned by the Internal Audit Committee to that department.

There will be no exceptions to this policy unless provided and approved in writing by the General Manager or the
Board President and the District Legal Counsel. The Board of Directors reserves the right to amend, delete, or
revise this policy at any time by formal action of the Board of Directors.



_GEATD NCoMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 KOS LAKE = WAL PO ROK 50, GEATOM, CALIFQES L 954dd o TOTRII=154T o FAX MILEI1-EF]

SR ADMINISTRATION

POLICY TITLE: Budget Preparation
POLICY NUMBER: 2110

21101 An annual preliminary budget shall be prepared by the General Manager.

2110.2 The District Board’s Budget Committee will review the preliminary budget and discuss with the Gen-
eral Manager prior to the presentation of the preliminary budget at a Board meeting.

2110.3 The preliminary budget proposal, as reviewed and amended by the Board’s Budget Committee, shall
be reviewed by the Board at its regular meeting in May.

21104 The proposed preliminary annual budget, as amended by the Board during its review, shall be
adopted at its regular meeting in May.

2110.5 Following the close of the fiscal year, adjustments will be made to the preliminary budget and a cur-
rent year final budget shall be prepared by the General Manager.

2110.6 The District Board’s Budget Committee will review the final budget and discuss with the General Man-
ager prior to the presentation of the final budget at a Board meeting.

2110.7 The final budget proposal, as reviewed and amended by the Board’s Budget Committee, shall be re-
viewed by the Board at its regular meeting in September.

2110.8 The proposed final annual budget, as amended by the Board during its review, shall be adopted at its
regular meeting in September.



E}RATDNC{}M MUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 ROST LAME « WAL PO B0E T GEATOHR, CALIFORNIL 95444 o DI =1 543 o F00 074003810

GRATOM
SEEEETT ADMINISTRATION

POLICY TITLE: Credit Card Use
POLICY NUMBER: 2115

2115.1 Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to prescribe the internal controls for management of
District credit cards.

2115.2 Scope: This policy applies to all individuals who are authorized to use District credit cards
and/or who are responsible for managing credit card accounts and/or paying credit card bills.

2115.3 Implementation: A credit card shall be issued to the General Manager and Operators.
Credit cards shall not be issued or used by members of the Board of Directors. Directors will use their per-
sonal credit cards for lawful expenses of the District and seek reimbursement on a form provided by the
District for that purpose.

a) All credit card bills shall be paid timely to avoid late fees and finance charges.

b) All credit card expenses shall be reasonable and necessary to the furtherance of District
business. No personal expenses shall be charged on a District credit card. If a transaction
involves both personal and District business, the employee shall pay for the transaction
personally and request reimbursement by the District of the appropriate portion of the ex-
pense.

C) District credit cards are to be used in all cases where the District will receive an economic
benefit from their use.

d) All credit card transactions shall have third-party documents (receipts) attached and the
District purpose annotated by the cardholder. Monthly use reports shall be signed and
submitted by each card user, verified by the General Manager, and reviewed by the Dis-
trict's accountants.

e) Only purchases that generate itemized receipts are eligible to be charged to District credit
cards.

f) The Board President shall review and approve credit card transactions by the General
Manager. The General Manager shall review and approve credit-card transactions by the
District staff.

) All records of the District involving credit card use, including receipts, invoices, and re-

quests for reimbursement are disclosable public records to be maintained consistently with
the District's records management policy.



_GEJ“LTDNCDMHUNIT? SERVICES DIsSTRICT

230 MOGS LARL » MAIL PD BOK %94, GRATOM, JALIFORKIA 15484 o TOLEIT=154F « FAK MEFIT1

ADMINISTRATION

POLICY TITLE: Employment of Outside Contractors and Consultants
POLICY NUMBER: 2120

2120.1 The District employs outside contractors or consultants for construction, engineering, planning, and en-
vironmental review projects, auditing, and other purposes approved by the Board of Directors. The District’s pro-
cedure is as follows:

a) Construction projects will be advertised for bid in at least one local newspaper of general circulation and
the local contractors bidding news if available. The bid opening is open to the public and will be speci-
fied in the bid documents.

b) If public bidding requirements apply under law or the terms of any grant contract, those requirements
shall be complied with to the exclusion of the previous paragraph.

2120.2 Consultants will be approved by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the General Manag-
er. The General Manager and/or Board of Directors will make their decision based on the consultant’'s experi-
ence and qualifications. The consultant will also be required to provide an explanation of scope of work, hours to
complete, and applicable cost estimate for their services that will be used in their evaluation in the selection pro-
cess. Consultants for engineering, architectural, and other professional services shall be evaluated based upon
qualification and not on cost of services per state law.

2120.3 Every person involved in the solicitation, selection, and approval of consultants shall comply with appli-
cable conflicts of interest laws, including Government Code section 1090, the Political Reform Act of 1974, and
the District’s conflict of interest code.



_GHATDNCUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 ADSS LANE = MAlL PO MIX 5T, CAATOM, CALIFORMIA 359444 « PETRTB=1923 « FAK MIETEATI

GRATOM

ADMINISTRATION
POLICY TITLE: Expense Authorization
POLICY NUMBER: 2125

2125.1 All purchases made for the District by staff shall be authorized by the General Manager or Board Presi-
dent, and shall be in conformance with the approved District budget.

2125.2  Any commitment of District funds for a purchase or expense greater than $20,000.00]or other appropri-
ate amount] shall first be submitted to the Board of Directors for approval, or shall be in conformance with prior
Board action and/or authorizations.

2125.3 A"petty cash" fund shall be maintained in the District office having a balance-on-hand a minimum of
$200.00 and a maximum of $10,000.00.

a) Petty cash may be advanced to District staff or Directors upon their request and the execution of a re-
ceipt for same, for the purpose of procuring item(s) or service(s) appropriately relating to District busi-
ness. After said item(s) or service(s) have been obtained, a receipt for same shall be submitted to the
District Treasurer, or other responsible managing employee, and any remaining advanced funds shall
be returned. The maximum petty cash advance shall be $50.00. No personal checks shall be cashed in
the petty cash fund.

b) The petty cash fund shall be included in the District's annual independent accounting audit.

21254 Whenever employees or Directors of the District incur "out-of-pocket" expenses for item(s) or service(s)
appropriately relating to District business as verified by valid receipts, said expended cash shall be reimbursed
upon request from the District's petty cash fund or by warrant request if needed. In those instances when a re-
ceipt is not obtainable, the requested reimbursement shall be approved by the General Manager or Board Presi-
dent before remuneration. The District may establish a reimbursement request form and, if it does, no reim-
bursement will be made without submission of a request on that form.

2125.5 Requests for reimbursement to the District must have a good faith basis. Submission of a request for a
reimbursement without such a basis shall subject the requestor to appropriate sanctions, up to and including
termination of employment and referral to an appropriate law enforcement agency for prosecution.



_GHATDNCUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 ADSS LANE = MAlL PO MIX 5T, CAATOM, CALIFORMIA 359444 « PETRTB=1923 « FAK MIETEATI

GRATOM

ADMINISTRATION
POLICY TITLE: Investment of District Funds
POLICY NUMBER: 2130
2130.1 Premise:
a) The State Legislature has declared the deposit and investment of public funds by local of-

ficials and local agencies is an issue of statewide concern (Government Code (GC) §
53600.6 and § 53630.1); and,

b) Government Code Sections 53601, et seq., allow the legislative body of a local agency to
invest surplus monies not required for the immediate necessities of the local agency; and,
C) The fiscal officer of a local agency is required to annually prepare and submit a statement

of investment policy and such policy, and any changes thereto, is to be considered by the
local agency's legislative body at a public meeting (GC § 53646(a)).

d) For these reasons, and to ensure prudent and responsible management of the public's
funds, it is the policy of the District to invest funds in @ manner which will provide the high-
est investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow de-
mands of the District and conforming to all statutes governing the investment of District
funds.

2130.2 Scope:

This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the District. These funds are accounted for in the
annual audited financial statements of the District and include:

a) Investments
b) Operation and Maintenance Fund
C) Construction Fund
d) Debt Service Fund
2130.3 Prudence:

The Board and persons authorized to make investment decisions subject to these policies are trustees and
therefore fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor standard. When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, ac-
quiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and
diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic condi-
tions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiarity
with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the
principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the District.

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of
prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation,
but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be de-
rived.



_GHATUNCUMMLINIT? SERVICES DISTRICT

230 ADSS LANE = MAlL PO MIX 5T, CAATOM, CALIFORMIA 359444 « PETRTB=1923 « FAK MIETEATI

GRATOM
—_— ADMINISTRATION
Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and the investment policy and exercising
due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market
price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in the next issued quarterly treasury re-
port and appropriate action are taken to control adverse developments. When a deviation poses a signifi-
cant risk to the District’s financial position, the Board shall be notified immediately.

2130.4 Objectives:
As specified in GC §53600.5, when investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and
managing public funds, the primary objectives of the investment activities, in priority order, shall be:

a) Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. Invest-
ments of the District shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation
of capital in the whole portfolio. To attain this objective, diversification is required in order
that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from the
remainder of the portfolio.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DisTRICT

230 ROSS LANE » BIAIL PO BN 9. CENTON, CALFEGRBIA #5448 » MTETI-1 34T = FAX MI311-8240

“EE ADMINISTRATION
POLICY TITLE: Purchasing
POLICY NUMBER: 2135
2135.1 To purchase small items — such as office supplies, auto parts, and other miscellaneous

items costing less than $500 — vendors will be asked to submit pricing information by telephone or written
quotation. District accounts are then awarded to those firms that provide the best prices, discounts, etc.
Acquisitions are processed on purchase order forms that list instructions to vendors.

2135.2 To purchase items costing more than $500 and up to $5,000, quotations will be solicited
from vendors and received by telephone or written quotation, preferably from two or more sources, before
selecting a supplier and processing a purchase order. The General Manager and must approve purchase
orders.

2135.3 For items over $5,000 or orders of large quantities, the District will provide suppliers with a
list of items to be purchased. Suppliers will provide written quotes for consideration and recommendation to
the Board of Directors for award of contract. ltems on the list will be purchased from the supplier quoting
the lowest prices and having an acceptable delivery date.

2135.4 This policy covers the purchase of goods, not services and not capital assets. Those mat-
ters are addressed in other policies of the District.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DisTRICT

230 ROSS LANE » BIAIL PO BN 9. CENTON, CALFEGRBIA #5448 » MTETI-1 34T = FAX MI311-8240

“H ADMINISTRATION
POLICY TITLE: Receiving / Depositing Remittances
POLICY NUMBER: 2140
2140.1 It is the policy of the District that the General Manager shall cause appropriate staff to
timely receive and deposit remittances and to ensure accountability.
2140.2 Procedures for incoming Checks:
a) The Bookkeeper or office staff opens mail, receiving all checks and stamping "for deposit
only".
b) Using approved account codes, Bookkeeper logs each check on a weekly spreadsheet.
1. If the application of any check to a particular fund or account of the District is un-
clear, the Bookkeeper refers the check coding to the District's Accountants.
C) The Bookkeeper stamps any accompanying paperwork "Paid" and given to the designated
staff person
1. If there is no accompanying paperwork, the Bookkeeper will match check to open
invoice(s) and proceed with above.
d Once a week, the spreadsheet is given to the designated staff person.
e Daily, checks are given to the designated staff person.
f) The designated staff person records each check in the accounting program.
) The District Accountant prepares the bank deposit.
h) The District Accountant verifies correct coding and dollar amounts coding, and accounting

for any check classified as payment for an administrative service will be verified by the
General Manager.

i) The District Accountant deposits with bank.

) The District Accountant records the deposit in the General Ledger.



_GRATDNCUMMUMJW SERVICES DISTRICT ==

AR

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

POLICY TITLE:

T
GRATOM _
[ 18 islirl AHTIHT ADMINSTRATION

Records Retention

POLICY NUMBER: 2145

21451

The purpose of this policy is to: provide guidelines to staff regarding the retention or dis-

posal of District records; provide for the identification, maintenance, safeguarding and disposal of records in
the normal course of business; ensure prompt and accurate retrieval of records; and, ensure compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

2145.2

Vital and important records, regardless of recording media, are those having legal, finan-

cial, operational, or historical value to the District.

2145.3

The General Manager is authorized by the Board of Directors to interpret and implement

this policy, and to cause to be destroyed any or all such records, papers and documents that meet the qual-
ifications governing the retention and disposal of records, specified below, after consultation with Legal

Counsel.

2145.4

Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code §§ 60200 through 60203, and the guide-

lines prepared by the State Controller's office and the Controller's Advisory Committee for Special Districts,
the following qualifications will govern the retention and disposal of records of the District.

214541 Duplicate records, papers and documents may be destroyed at any time
without Board authorization, advice of Legal Counsel, or copying to photographic or elec-
tronic media.

2145.4.2 Originals of records, papers and documents more than two years old that
were prepared or received in any manner other than pursuant to State or Federal statute
may be destroyed without the necessity of copying to photographic or electronic media ex-
cept for permanent records of the District as defined in this policy.

21454.3 In no instances are records, papers or documents to be destroyed where
there is a continuing need for such records for such matters as pending litigation, special
projects, etc.

214544 Records, papers or documents which are not expressly required by law to
be filed and preserved may be destroyed if all of the following conditions are met:

2145441 The record, paper or document is photographed, micro-
photographed, reproduced on film of a type approved for permanent photographic



records by the National Bureau of Standard, or copied to an approved electronic
media;

2145442 The device used to reproduce such record, paper or document on
film, or retrieves and prints the document from the electronic media, is one which
accurately reproduces the original thereof in all details; and,

2145443 The photographs, micro-photographs, or other reproductions on
film are placed in conveniently accessible files and provisions are made for pre-
serving, examining, and using the same, together with documents stored via elec-
tronic media.

214545 Any accounting record except the journals and ledgers which are more
than five years old and which were prepared or received in any manner other than pursu-
ant to State statute may be authorized for destruction, provided that:

2145.4.5.1 There is no continuing need for said record, i.e., long-term trans-
actions, special projects, pending litigations, etc., and;

21454.5.2 There exists in a permanent file, an audit report or reports cover-
ing the inclusive period of said record, and that;

2145453 Said audit report or reports were prepared pursuant to procedures
outlined in Government Code section 26909 and other State or Federal audit re-
quirements, and that;

2145454 Said audit or audits contain the expression of an unqualified opin-
ion.

214546 Any accounting record except the journals and ledgers which are more
than five years old and which were prepared or received in any manner other than pursu-
ant to State statute may be authorized for destruction, provided that:

2145.4.6.1 Duplicated (original-subject to aforementioned requirements).

2145.46.2 Rough drafts, notes or working papers (except audit).

214546.3 Cards, listings, nonpermanent indices, other papers used for con-
trolling work or transitory files.

21454.7 All payroll and personnel records shall be retained indefinitely. Originals
may upon authorization be destroyed after seven years’ retention, provided said records
have been microfilmed and qualify for destruction section 3090.4.4, above. Payroll and
personnel records include the following:

21454.7.1 Accident reports, injury claims and settlements.



2145.4.7.2 Medical histories.

2145473 Injury frequency charts.

21454.74 Applications, changes and terminations of employees.
21454.75 Insurance records of employees.

21454.7.6 Time cards.

21454.7.7 Classification specifications (job descriptions).
21454.7.8 Performance evaluation forms.

21454.7.9 Earning records and summaries.

21454710  Retirements.

214548 Records of proceedings for the authorization of long-term debt, bonds,
warrants, loans, etc., after issuance or execution may be destroyed if microfilmed as pro-
vided for in District policy. Terms and conditions of bonds warrants, and other long-term
agreements should be retained until final payment, and thereafter may be destroyed in
less than 10 years if microfilmed as provided for District policy. Paid bonds, warrant certifi-
cates and interest coupons may be destroyed after six months if detailed payment records
are kept for 10 years.

2145.5 Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors are usually retained indefinitely in their
original form. However, they may, upon the General Manager's authorization, be destroyed if they are mi-
crofilmed as provided for in section 3090.4.4, above. Recording tapes (or other media) of Board meetings
will be kept for a period of one year from the date of the recorded meeting, after which they will be de-
stroyed.

2145.5.1 Construction records, such as bids, correspondence, change orders, etc.,
shall not be kept in excess of seven years unless they pertain to a project which includes a
guarantee or grant and, in that event, they shall be kept for the life of the guarantee or
grant plus seven years. As-built plans for any public facility or works shall be retained as
long as said facility is in existence.

2145.5.2 Contracts should be retained for its life plus seven years. Any unaccepted
bid or proposal for the construction or installation of any building, structure or other public
work which is more than two years old may be destroyed.

2145.5.3 Property records, such as documents of title, shall be kept until the prop-
erty is transferred or otherwise no longer owned by the District.



Appendix A
Definitions for Records Retention and Disposal Policy

1. AUTHORIZATION. Approval from the General Manager, as authorized by the District's Board of
Directors.
2. ACCOUNTING RECORDS. Include but are not limited to the following:

a. SOURCE DOCUMENTS

(1) Invoices

(2) Warrants

(3)  Requisitions/Purchase Orders (attached to invoices)

(4)  Cash Receipts

(5)  Claims (attached to warrants in place of invoices)

(6) Bank Statements

(7)  Bank Deposits

(8)  Checks

(9) Bills

(10) Various accounting authorizations taken from Board minutes, resolutions or contracts
b. JOURNALS

Cash Receipts

Accounts Receivable or Payable Register
Check or Warrant (payables)

General Journal

Payroll Journal

—~ e~~~ —
a1 B WOWN —
—_— ~— — ~— ~—

c. LEDGERS
(1) Expenditure

(2) Revenue

(3)  Accounts Payable or Receivable Ledger
(4)  Construction

(5)  General Ledger

(6)  Assets/Depreciation

d. TRIAL BALANCE

e. STATEMENTS (Interim or Certified - Individual or All Fund)
(1)  Balance Sheet
(2)  Analysis of Changes in Available Fund Balance
(3)  Cash Receipts and Disbursements
(4)  Inventory of Fixed Assets (Purchasing)

f.  JOURNAL ENTRIES

g. PAYROLL and PERSONNEL RECORDS include but are not limited to the following:



) Accident reports, injury claims and settlements

) Applications, changes or terminations of employees
) Eamings records and summaries

) Fidelity Bonds

) Gamishments

) Insurance records of employees

) Job Descriptions

) Medical Histories

) Retirements

0

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10) Time Cards

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

h. OTHER
(1) Inventory Records (Purchasing)
(2) Capital Asset Records (Purchasing)
(3) Depreciation Schedule
(4) Cost Accounting Records

3. LIFE. The inclusive or operational or valid dates of a document.

4. RECORD. Any paper, bound book or booklet, card, photograph, drawing, chart, blueprint, map,
tape, microfilm, or other document, issued by or received in a department, and maintained and used
as information in the conduct of its operations.

5. RECORD COPY. The District copy of a document or file.

6. RECORD SERIES. A group of records, generally filed together, and having the same reference
and retention value.

7. RECORDS CENTER. The site selected for storage of inactive records.

8. RECORDS DISPOSAL. The planning for and/or the physical operation involved in the transfer of
records to the Records Center, or the authorized destruction of records pursuant to the approved Rec-
ords Retention Schedule.

9. RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE. The consolidated, approved schedule list of all District rec-
ords which timetables the life and disposal of all records.

10. RETENTION CODE. Abbreviation of retention action which appears on the retention schedule.

11. VITAL RECORDS. Records which, because of the information they contain, are essential to one
or all of the following:

a. The resumption and/or continuation of operations;
b. The recreation of legal and financial status of the District, in case of a disaster;
c. The fulfillment of obligations to bondholders, customers, and employees.

Vital records include but are not limited to the following [detail the records structure of the District,
stating the retention time for each class of records. Those times can be drawn from the recommendations fo the



Secretary of State (http:/archives.cdn.sos.ca.gov/local-gov-program/pdf/records-management-8.pdf) or devel-
oped with the advice of legal counsel, as there are many laws governing records retentio |:

Agreements

Annexations and detachments
As-built drawings

Audits

Contract drawings

Customer statements

Deeds

Depreciation schedule

Disposal of surplus & excess property
Disposal of scrap materials
District insurance records

District water rights

Employee accident reports, injury claims & settlements
Employee earning records
Employee fidelity bonds
Employee insurance records
Encroachment permits (by others)
Encroachment permits (by OWID)
Facility improvement plans
Improvement districts

Individual water rights

Individual claims/settlements
Inventory

Journal vouchers

Ledgers

Licenses & permits (to operate)
Loans & grants

Maps

Minutes of Board meetings
Payroll register

Policies, Rules & Regulations
Purchase orders & requisitions
Restricted materials permits
Rights of ways & easements
Spray permits

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9
10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
22
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36 Statements of Economic Interest
37

38

39

40

41

= . — . o o o — —

e e e e — e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ) ~— - ~— ~— —



Appendix B
Records Retention & Storage Summary

Retention Periods

Group
No. Title or Description Original | Dupli- Off | Record Re-
cate ice Center | tainor
De-
stroy

1 Records affecting title to real property or X 2 OP ES
liens thereof. yrs.

2 Records required to be kept permanently X 2 OP ES
by statute. yIs.

3 Minutes, ordinances & resolutions of X 2 OoP ES
Board. yrs.

4 Documents with lasting historical, admin- X 2 OP ES
istrative, legal, fiscal, or research value. yrs.

5 Correspondence, operational reports X 2 10 yrs. 12
and information upon which District poli- yrs. yrs.
cy has been established.

6 Duplicates of 5, above, when retention is X 2 2 yrs.
necessary for reference. yIs.

7 Records requiring retention for more X 2 13 yrs. 15
than five years, but no more than 15 yrs. yrs.
years by statute or administrative value.

8 Duplicates needed for administrative X 2 13 yrs. 15
purposes for five to 15 years. yIs. yrs.

9 All other original District records, or in- X 2 1yr. 3 yrs.
struments, books or papers that are con- yrs.
sidered public documents not included in
Groups 1 through 8.

10 Duplicates and other documents not X X 2 3 yrs. dyrs.
public records required to be maintained yrs.
for administrative purposes.

11 Duplicate records requiring retention for X 3 3
administrative purposes such as refer- yrs.




ence material for making up budgets,
planning and programming.

12

Reference files (copies of documents
which duplicate the record copies filed
elsewhere in the District; documents
which require no action and are non-
record; rough drafts, notes, and similar
working papers accumulated in prepara-
tion of a communication, study or other
document, and cards, listings, indexes
and other papers used for controlling
work).

yr.

1yr.

13

Transitory files, including letters of
transmittal (when not a public record),
suspense copies when reply has been
received, routine requests for information
and publication, tracer letters, and other
duplicate copies no longer needed.

mos

mos.

14

Original documents disposable upon
occurrence of an event or an action (i.e.,
audit, job completion, completion of con-
tract, etc.) or upon obsolescence, super-
session, revocation.

yrs.

3 yrs.

dyrs.

15

Policy files and reference sets of publica-
tions.

16

Duplicates or non-record documents
required for administrative needs but
destroyable on occurrence of an event or
an action.

OP = QOriginal or photographic copy.
ES = May be destroyed if stored in electronic media.
| = Indefinitely




AR

_GRATDNCUMMUMJW SERVICES DISTRICT ==

T

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

GRATON
POLICY TITLE: Reserve Policy
POLICY NUMBER: 2150
2150.1 Purpose: The District shall maintain reserve funds from existing unrestricted funds as des-

ignated by the District's Reserve Policy. This policy establishes the procedure and level of reserve funding
to achieve the following specific goals:

a) Fund replacement and major repairs for the District's physical assets.
b) Fund capital improvements; and
C) Maintain minimal operational sustainability in periods of economic uncertainty.

The District shall account for reserves as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board State-
ment No. 54, which distinguishes reserves as among these classes: non-spendable, restricted, committed,
assigned and unassigned. The reserves stated by this policy, unless otherwise required by law, contract, or
District policy shall be deemed “assigned” reserves.

2150.2 Policy: Use of District Reserves is limited to available “Unrestricted” Funds (not obligated
by law, contract or agreement), including donations, interest earned, fees for service or other non-grant
earnings. All special use funds will be designated by formal action of the Board of Directors.
a) Capital Improvement Reserve:
Capital Improvements Reserve will accumulate from existing unrestricted funds at a rate of
$25,000 annually. Designated Capital Improvement Funds may be used to cover major fa-
cility improvements (construction, installation of new doors or windows, replacing doors
and windows, roof replacement, HVAC replacement, alarm system installation, parking lot
and outside lighting improvements, etc.). The maximum amount of Capital Improvement
Reserves will be $100,000. When the annual accumulation would increase the Reserve
beyond $100,000, only the amount required to reach the maximum will be reserved.
b) Repair/Operations & Administrative Operations Reserve:
Facility & Administrative Operations Reserves will accumulate from existing unrestricted
funds at a rate of $50,000 annually. The maximum amount of Facility & Administrative Op-
erations Reserves will be equal to the prior year’'s budgeted operating expenses. When the
annual accumulation would increase the Reserve beyond the equivalent of the prior year's
budgeted operating expenses, only the amount required to reach the maximum will be re-
served.

2150.3 Using Reserve Funds:
a) Designated Project/Special Use Reserve:



Projects, programs or special uses will be identified by the General Manager and/or the
Board of Directors and approved by the Board. Uses must further the mission of the Dis-
trict and will be evaluated for designation according to value to the District and the people
it serves.

b) Capital Improvements Reserve:
Capital Improvements Reserves shall be limited to costs related to making changes to im-
prove capital assets, increase their useful life, or add to the value of these assets.

C) Operations/Repair & Administrative Operations Reserve:
Operational Reserves shall be accrued to ensure a year of minimal facility and administra-
tive functions, at a rate equivalent to the prior year’s budgeted operating expenses. Re-
serve funds shall be utilized to support:

1. Administrative operational functions, including minimal staffing levels and
administrative/office expenses;

2. facility operations;

3. facility repairs (distinguished from Capital Improvements and may include
painting, caulking of seams, roof repairs, HVAC repairs, patching of walls,
etc.).

2150.4 Monitoring Reserve Levels: The General Manager, in collaboration with the District Ac-

countant, shall perform a reserve status analysis annually, to be provided to the Board of Directors’ annual
deliberation/approval of Budget and Reserve Funds.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
A e

GRATOMN
e 18 ihliek AHTINT ADMINISTRATION

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

POLICY TITLE: Debt Management
POLICY NUMBER: 2155

This Debt Policy is intended to comply with Government Code Section 8855(i) and shall govern all debt
issued by the District. The District hereby recognizes that a fiscally prudent debt policy is required to:

a) Maintain the District's sound financial position.

b) Ensure the District has the flexibility to respond to changes in future service priorities, rev-
enues, and operating expenses.

C) Protect the District's creditworthiness.

d) Ensure that all debt is structured to protect current and future taxpayers, ratepayers and
constituents of the District.

e) Ensure that the District's debt is consistent with the District's planning goals and objectives

and capital improvement program or budget, as applicable.
21551 Purposes for Which Debt May Be Issued

2155.1.1 Long-Term Debt. Long-term debt may be issued to finance the construction, ac-

quisition, and rehabilitation of capital improvements and facilities, equipment and land to be owned

and operated by the District. Long-term debt financings are appropriate:

a) When a project to be financed is necessary to provide District services.

b) When the project to be financed will benefit constituents over several years.

c) When total debt does not constitute an unreasonable burden to the District and its taxpayers or
ratepayers.

d) When the debt is used to refinance outstanding debt to reduce the total cost of the debt or to
realize other benefits of a debt restructuring, such as increased flexibility in the use of cash and
reserves.

2155.1.1.1 Long-term debt financings will not generally be considered appro-
priate for current operating expenses and routine maintenance expenses. The Dis-
trict may use long-term debt financings subject to the following conditions:
a) The project to be financed must be approved by the District Board.
b) The weighted average maturity of the debt (or the portion of the debt
allocated to the project) will not exceed the average useful life of the
project to be financed by more than 20%.
c) The District estimates that sufficient revenues will be available to ser-
vice the debt through its maturity.



d) The District determines that the issuance of the debt will comply with
the applicable state and federal law.

2155.1.2 Short-term debt. Short-term debt may be issued to provide financing for the Dis-
trict's operational cash flows to maintain a steady and even cash flow balance as in anticipation of
periodic receipts of property taxes and other revenues. Short-term debt may also be used to fi-
nance short-lived capital projects; for example, the District may undertake lease-purchase financ-
ing for equipment consistently with debt limit requirements of article XVI of the California Constitu-
tion, article XVI, § 18.

2155.1.3 Financings on Behalf of Other Entities. The District may also find it beneficial to is-
sue debt on behalf of other governmental agencies or private third parties to further the public pur-
poses of District. In such cases, the District shall take reasonable steps to confirm the financial
feasibility of the project to be financed and the financial solvency of any borrower and that the issu-
ance of such debt is consistent with this policy.

2155.2 Types of Debt - The following types of debt are allowable under this Debt Policy:
General obligation bonds (GO Bonds)

Bond or grant anticipation notes (BANs)

Lease revenue bonds, certificates of participation (COPs) and lease-purchase transactions
Other revenue bonds and COPs

Tax and other revenue anticipation notes (TRANS)

Land-secured financings, such as special tax revenue bonds issued under the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, and limited obligation bonds issued under ap-
plicable assessment statutes

g) Taxincrement financing to the extent permitted under State law

h) Refunding Obligations

i) State Revolving Loan Funds

j) Lines of Credit

DO O O T
—_—— — = =

=

2155.2.1 The District Board may from time to time find that other forms of debt would be
beneficial to further its public purposes and may approve such debt without an amendment of this
Debt Policy. Debt shall be issued as fixed rate debt unless the District makes a specific determina-
tion as to why a variable rate issue would be beneficial to the District in a specific circumstance.

2155.3 Relationship of Debt to Capital Improvement Program and Budget

2155.3.1 The District is committed to long-term capital planning. The District intends to is-
sue debt for the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and to implement policy decisions incorporated
in the District’s capital budget and capital improvement plan.

2155.3.2 The District shall strive to fund the upkeep and maintenance of its infrastructure
and facilities due to normal wear and tear through the expenditure of available operating revenues
(“pay as you go”). The District shall seek to avoid the use of debt to fund infrastructure and facilities
improvements that are the result of normal wear and tear.



2155.4

2165.5

2155.3.3 The District shall integrate its debt issuances with the goals of its capital improve-
ment program by timing the issuance of debt to ensure that projects are available when needed in
furtherance of the District’s public purposes.

Policy Goals Related to Planning Goals and Objectives

2155.4.1 The District is committed to long-term financial planning, maintaining appropriate
reserves and employing prudent practices in governance, management and budget administration.
The District intends to issue debt for the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and to implement poli-
cy decisions incorporated in the District's annual operations budgets.

2155.4.2 It is a policy goal of the District to protect taxpayers, ratepayers and constituents
by using conservative financing methods and techniques so as to obtain the highest practical credit
ratings (if applicable) and the lowest practical total borrowing costs.

2155.4.3 The District will comply with applicable state and federal law as it pertains to the
maximum term of debt and the procedures for levying and imposing any related taxes, assess-
ments, rates and charges.

2155.4.4 When refinancing debt, it shall be the policy goal of the District to realize, whenev-
er possible, and subject to any overriding non-financial policy considerations, (i) minimum net pre-
sent value debt service savings approximately 3.0% of the refunded principal amount, and (ii) pre-
sent value debt service savings equal to or greater than any escrow fund negative arbitrage. The
cost of refinancing will always be less than the savings.

2155.4.5 The District shall seek to avoid the use of debt to fund infrastructure and facilities
improvements in circumstances when the sole purpose of such debt financing is to temporarily re-
duce annual budgetary expenditures. Capital investments intended to reduce District operating
costs indefinitely, as by improving the efficiency of its operations, are appropriate for long-term
debt.

2155.4.6 The District shall seek to time debt issues to avoid need for unplanned general
fund expenditures for capital improvements or equipment.

Internal Control Procedures

2155.5.1 When issuing debt, in addition to complying with the terms of this Debt Policy, the

District shall comply with any other applicable policies regarding initial bond disclosure, continuing

disclosure, post-issuance compliance, and investment of bond proceeds. Without limiting the fore-

going, the District will periodically review the requirements of and will remain in compliance with the

following:

a) Any continuing disclosure undertakings entered into by the District in accordance with SEC
Rule 15¢2-12.



b) Any federal tax compliance requirements, including, without limitation, arbitrage and rebate
compliance.
c) The District's investment policies as they relate to the use and investment of bond proceeds.

2155.5.2 Proceeds of debt will be held either (a) by a third-party trustee or fiscal agent,
which will disburse such proceeds to or upon the order of the District upon the submission of one
or more written requisitions by the Finance Director of the District (or his or her written designee),
or (b) by the District, to be held and accounted for in a separate fund or account to ensure debt
proceeds are expended only for the purposes for which the debt was issued, the expenditure of
which will be carefully documented by the District in records compliance with current accounting
standards and subject to the District’s annual audit.



AR

GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT s
2 A,

GRATOMN
e 18 islirl AHTIHT ADMINISTRATION

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

POLICY TITLE: Internal Controls
POLICY NUMBER: 2160

A policy of the board of directors or Graton Community Services District defining financial internal controls

Whereas, the district is a district created pursuant to Government Code 61000, et seq.; and

Whereas, the Board of Directors may establish, policies for the conduct of the district's business; and

Whereas, the Board of Directors has previously reviewed and approved several policies which reference
an established a program of "internal controls"; and

Whereas, the Board of Directors are cognizant of its duty to ensure that proper controls are established
and implemented to ensure the financial integrity of district operations; and

Whereas, the Board of Directors desires to formalize a policy to define the financial internal controls that

have been developed through various practices and procedures to date;
Now therefore, it is the policy of the Board of Directors of the district, until such policy shall is amended or rescinded:

2160.1 There will be established procedures for the adequate separation of duties, including at least
the following:
a) Areceipt log of all cash/checks received will be prepared weekly by the Bookkeeper
b) The District Accountant prepares or oversees the deposit and ensures it is made using County
of Sonoma Treasury procedures
c) The General Manager confirms that the deposits agree with the original of the receipt log which
he/she maintains
d) The bank reconciliation will be prepared promptly after month-end by the District's Accountant,
who has no authority to prepare or sign checks or authorize other debits against the account
All invoices presented for payment must be approved by an authorized person,
Every check must be signed by two authorized signers
All paid invoices shall be so marked and filed for reference
The same employee cannot be responsible for authorizing transactions, collecting or paying
bills and maintaining accounting records

Ze=e

2160.2 2160.2 There will be an annual financial audit and any finding(s) shall be reported
directly to the President of the Board of Directors with simultaneous notice to the General Manager.

2160.3 That funds held in the County of Sonoma Investment Pool shall only be withdrawn upon ap-
proval of the Board's President, or other designated Board Member. Such withdrawals must then be remit-
ted only to authorized vendors. The requests for such transfers shall be signed by the General Manager



and be supported by detailed information which shall be provided to the Director approving the transfer.
Such information shall be maintained by district's General Manager.

2160.4 To maximize interest earnings and manage district's cash flow needs, the General Manager
will strive to maintain a reasonable balance in the checking accounts to meet payroll and emergency
needs, but at the same time recognizing that surplus funds should be transferred as appropriate to County
of Sonoma Investment Pool.

2160.5 Templates for Fed-wire or Automated-Clearing House (ACH) Transfers out of the district’s
bank accounts may only be established by the General Manager. Subsequent use of these Fed-wire or
ACH templates shall require two staff — an initiator and an approving staff person.

2160.6 The signing of any checks written on the accounts of the district will be in accordance with the
district's procurement policy. All “fed wires” or ACH transfers that exceed $10,000 (other than to/from the
County of Sonoma Investment Pool) shall be considered similar to a “large check” and be disclosed on the
quarterly report to Directors.

2160.7 Any payment of funds for claims and/or allocated loss adjustment expenses will be made in
accordance with the district’s Claim Settlement Policy.

2160.8 The Board of Directors confirms that the Board will review these internal control policies upon
completion of each year’s audit with input from its external auditor.

This Policy No. 2160 supersedes any policy inconsistent with the provisions included above.



f}RﬂTﬂNCUMMUNITﬁ' SERVICES DISTRICT

230 OS5 LARE » M&IL PO BCIR 204, GEATOH, CALIFORMN Pl o TETWD8-0140 « Fo TiEpe-0Tis

ADMINISTRATION

POLICY TITLE: Disposal of Surplus Property or Equipment
POLICY NUMBER: 2200

2200.1 Sale of Surplus Equipment:

a) Board of Directors takes action to declare equipment surplus.

b) Item is advertised for sale with notation of location/hours/days it can be seen and deadline date for
submission of sealed bids. (Advertisement also notes that the District reserves the right to reject any or
all bids, equipment sold AS IS.)

c) Sealed bids are opened at the next Regular Board Meeting and action is taken by the Board to accept
or reject highest bid.

d) Bidders are notified of Board’s action.

e) Junked Certificates are obtained for vehicles that are sold to protect the District from liability.

2200.2 Sale of Real Estate:

a) Board takes action to declare property surplus and authorizes District staff to obtain appraisal.

b) Property is offered to public agencies at the appraised price. (State law requires that public agencies
have the opportunity to purchase property before advertisement to the general public.)

c) |If property is not purchased by a public agency, it is advertised in the newspaper with a request that
sealed bids be submitted to the District.

d) Board takes action at the next regular Board Meeting to accept or reject highest bid.

e) Bidders are notified of the Board’s action.

2200.3 Conflicts of Interest: As required by Government Code section 1090, no officer or employee of the
District who plays any role in declaring District property surplus may bid on that property.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
A e

GRATOMN
e 18 ihliek AHTINT ADMINISTRATION

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

POLICY TITLE: District Electronic Resources Policy and Procedures
POLICY NUMBER: 2205

The District makes every effort to provide its employees with technology resources to conduct business
more effectively. The District has installed personal computers, local area networks (LANS), electronic mail
(email), cell phones and access to the Internet. The purpose of the District’s Electronic Resources Policy
and Procedures is to establish uniform guidelines for use of this technology, including the use of the Inter-
net and email.

Policy

2205.1 District technology, including computers, fax machines, and internet licenses are provided
for District business and are not to be used for personal gain, private purposes (except as described in
subsection 6), or to support or advocate non-District-related business or purposes. All data and electronic
messages, including information accessed via the Internet and sent or received through electronic mail
(email) systems, are the property of the District. All records whether paper or electronic, may be subject to
disclosure under the California Public Records Act and are not private. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
email should only be used for the transmission of information and should not be used for preserving infor-
mation for future reference. Information to be retained may be stored electronically on the system/network
and/or may be converted to a hard copy and archived in a District physical file cabinet.

2205.2 There is no expectation of personal privacy in any use of District computer systems and
software, including email and the Internet. The District may, at any time, review the contents of all records,
data and communication transmitted, received and stored by its electronic systems. This review may in-
clude accessing and disclosing all electronic documents, information and messages including email and
Internet records.

2205.3 The District purchases, owns and administers the necessary software and licenses and
cell phones to provide access to email and Internet services and voice communications in the office, in the
field and for emergency communications. Users may not rent, copy or loan District software or its documen-
tation, nor use alternative software to access District systems. Users may be subject to discipline for negli-
gence for introducing unauthorized software or viruses into District systems whether or not damage arises
from that conduct.

2205.4 The District is not responsible for items originating from the Internet and reserves the right
to restrict employee access to the Internet or to certain Internet content.

2205.5 Examples of prohibited uses:



a) Using the Internet to view, obtain or disseminate any sexually oriented material, images or
messages.

b) Using the Internet and/or email systems to send or distribute disruptive, offensive, abusive,
threatening, slanderous, racial or sexually harassing materials

c) Using District computer systems for private purposes, personal gain, solicitation of commercial
ventures, religious or political causes, chain letters, or other non-job-related purposes (except
as described in subsection 6 below).

d) Downloading or installation of software that has not been approved by the District and scanned
for viruses.

e) Sending unencrypted confidential documents via the Internet with direction from District man-
agement to do so in the course of District business.

f)  Any other use that may compromise the integrity of the District and its business in any way.

g) Agood rule of thumb when using the computer and email is “never put anything in an email
that you would not want to see on the front page of the newspaper.”

2205.6 To promote employee computer and Internet proficiency and as an employee benefit, cer-
tain incidental employee personal use is allowed. This use is only permitted during employee personal time.
Examples include educational enhancement and personal communications, which conform to the above
prohibited uses. Personal use is secondary, and should not (i) interfere with the agency’s operation of Elec-
tronic Communications Resources, (ii) interfere with the user's employment or other obligations to the Dis-
trict, or (iii) burden the District with noticeable incremental costs. The District reserves the right to limit or
discontinue incidental personal use of its technology resources at any time. More than occasional and inci-
dental personal use of District resources is forbidden by State law.

2205.7 The acquisition of hardware and software shall follow the normal budgetary and purchas-
ing procedures, ensuring budget authorization is in place. Requests for acquiring hardware and software
shall be recommended to the General Manager for evaluation and recommendation to the Board of Direc-
tors.

2205.8 Equipment operation and maintenance:

a) The authorized technology staff (in-house or agreement/contract) shall assist in evaluating Dis-
trict functional needs and recommend appropriate options for improvement of District technol-
0gy resources.

b) Technology staff shall maintain an on-site office automation library of proven and reliable soft-
ware and hardware requiring minimum technical support that is easy to use, enhances District
productivity, and is compatible with District technology systems.

c) Technology staff shall maintain an on-site inventory control of all workstation hardware and
software.

d) Technology staff shall provide on-site training and consulting advice on approved software and
make recommendations as appropriate.

e) Technology staff shall maintain the District technology systems including all personal computer
workstations and client server network for the purpose of retrieving data files, sharing licensed
applications and nightly data backup.



f)  Technology staff shall periodically review the District technology systems for adherence to op-
erating standards and implement approved upgrades.

g) Technology staff shall backup District databases daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly and annually
for archival and retrieval purposes.

2205.9 Security: The Chief Plant Operator must approve remote access to District systems. All
computer systems users are responsible for data residing on personal devices used to access District sys-
tems remotely. Employees may not access systems remotely so as to incur overtime compensation without
advance authorization by District General Manager or in his/her absence the Board President.

Procedures:
2205.10 Passwords:

a) Users dealing in confidential matters will define their own confidential password. Users should
be aware that this does not imply that the system may be used for personal communication or
that email is confidential or the property of the user.

b) To ensure the security of the email system, the system will prompt the user to routinely change
their password. Should the user forget their password, and attempt to input a password they
are not sure of, the system may lock them out after three failed attempts.

2205.11 Internet and email access:

a) Access to the Internet and email is restricted to authorized employees. The District may deny
or restrict Internet and/or email access to any employee at any time.

b) When using email and the Internet, employees are cautioned to remember they represent the
District and must act professionally, courteously and so as to not bring an employee or the Dis-
trict into disrepute. Employees may not speak for the District unless they are authorized to do
SO.

c) Email and Internet messages can be forwarded without the express permission of the original
author. Users must use caution in the transmission and dissemination of messages outside the
District and must comply with all State and Federal laws, rules and regulations and District pol-

icy.

2205.12 Electronic Document, Software and Mail Storage

a) Electronic mail is backed-up on a regular basis. It is synchronized with the server on every
start-up and shut-down. The District back-up procedures allow the District to restore current
software, documents and electronic mail upon a system failure.

b) Electronic mail is not intended to be a permanent storage medium. Electronic in-boxes and
out-boxes should be regularly archived or purged. The District may, in its discretion, automati-
cally purge older mail.

c) To save critical electronic mail as a permanent record, employees should print out a hard copy
for permanent filing or save the file on the “C” drive of the desktop or laptop computer assigned
to them or to another electronic archive designated by District management.



d) Signature Block: Email sent outside the District should include a signature block at the end of
all messages. The block should include the sender’s name, title, company name, direct tele-
phone number, FAX number and email address and be in a format approved by District man-
agement.



_GRATDNCUMMUMJT‘H SERVICES DISTRICT

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

GRATON
CEEET ADMINISTRATION
POLICY TITLE: Use/Rental of District Facility
POLICY NUMBER: 2210

2210.1 The District owns and operates various facilities to carry out its mission. The District has determined that
the public or other entities may be allowed to rent or use facilities that have been identified as appropriate for
such use. The Board of Directors of the District reserve the right to limit or prohibit use of facilities as may be
necessary to meet district needs from time to time. The District’s procedure for use of facilities is as follows:

a) Organizations or individuals shall submit requests to the District's General Manager in advance (30 cal-
endar days or more) for use of one or more facilities. The request shall include the date(s), times and
proposed uses including information deemed pertinent by the General Manager to verify that the use is
acceptable. The General Manager will notify the applicant of approval or denial of the request within 15
days unless more information is required for a decision.

b) Organizations or individuals whose request is denied by the General Manager may request a hearing
with the District Board of Directors for reconsideration of their request. A hearing shall be held within 30
days of receipt of such a request in writing outlining the reasons for the request and any explanation of
the factors appealed by the applicant.

2210.2 The Board of Directors may establish a user fee and deposit fee schedule for various facilities by resolu-
tion using criteria and costs borne by the District for operation and maintenance of such facilities. The user fee
may be adjusted from time to time to reflect changes in costs of use and maintenance of the facility.
a) District staff shall collect a deposit and estimated use fee in advance of reserving a facility. The deposit
shall include a reasonable estimate of the clean-up and administrative time for handling the reservation.
The deposit may be refundable to the extent that clean-up costs are less than the deposit, minus the
administrative processing costs.

2210.3A priority schedule for use of facilities may be established using the following general criteria:
a) Use by the Registrar of Voters for elections;
b) Community activities which directly benefit the District or its customers;
c) Public or non-profit organizations for non-political or non-commercial uses; and
d) Commercial or private uses to the extent that other users have not expressed an interest in use of the
facility for that date at least 30 days in advance.

2210.4 Any organization or individual requesting use of District facilities shall be required to provide special lia-
bility insurance coverage, on a form acceptable to the District, or compensate the District for special use insur-
ance coverage if deemed necessary by the District. If alcohol is to be served, an alcohol liability insurance rider
is required. Any organization or individual requesting use of District facilities shall execute a waiver of liability
form as deemed necessary by the District for each event in advance of final approval of the use of the facility.

2210.5 All requesting organizations will be required to comply with Federal, State and local laws in the use of
District facilities. If special permits such as large gathering permits, fire or building code or use of alcohol permits



are required, any preliminary approval of a use will be contingent upon satisfactory proof of compliance with all
permit requirements before a final approval will be issued. Failure to complete final permits requirements may be
grounds for rejection or revocation of use approval and grounds for denial of future use requests.



AR

GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT s
2 PG,

GRATOMN
e 18 islirl AHTIHT ADMINISTRATION

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

POLICY TITLE: Emergency Response Guideline for Hostile or Violent Incidents
POLICY NUMBER: 2305

2305.1 Purpose of the Policy:
To provide direction for the District Board of Directors and staff regarding responses to hostile or violent incidents
including possible armed intruders or related threats on District facilities or properties.

2305.2 Background:

The potential for hostile or violent incidents on District facilities or operational locations always exists. Recent
incidents involving armed intruders have occurred in increasing frequency involving injuries and deaths at gov-
ernment institutions, offices and educational facilities. Often, an intruder is a person who is an ex-employee, cus-
tomer, or person known to the agency. The person often is upset at an event or person who works at the facility.
However, armed intruders can be any person with or without a prior relationship with the District or its officers
and employees. Incidents involving armed intruders can escalate to include multiple persons and potentially tak-
ing of hostages, including District customers.

Threats of these types are dire emergencies and the safety and well being of employees and/or customers is the
District’s highest priority.

2305.3 Response to an Incident:

Any evidence of the exposure to a hostile or violent person or situation on District facilities or operating areas
should be taken seriously. Any District Director or employee observing or sensing that a violent or hostile situa-
tion is occurring or threatened should consider precautionary and safety actions. Any event resulting in aware-
ness of a possible violent act including gunfire, explosion, fighting, or scuffling could indicate an incident of vio-
lent potential. Any staff person observing such potential activities should take steps to protect themselves and
others on the District premises, including but not limited to:

a) Attempt to communicate the situation to everyone in the facility by means of telephone, paging, email
and/or radio system including basic information that a potential incident is occurring. If a perpetrator(s) is
seen or known, information on the person(s) should be provided.

b) Since different types and levels of workplace violence may require various responses, establishing ba-
sis information on the type of event is essential. Examples are:

1) Gunfire: Awareness of gunfire in a District facility should result in evacuation to the extent possible.
If not possible, securing of rooms or offices and notification of others by phone or email is encour-
aged. Calling emergency services via 911 is imperative once it is safe to do so. Remain in the most
secure location possible until contacted by public safety personnel or a facility supervisor, etc.

2) Explosion: An explosion could occur naturally or by violent intention. Awareness of an explosion or
fire in the facility should result in immediate evacuation in accordance with established fire safety



procedures. Response to a planned location is important so safety personnel can determine who is
out of the facility.

3) Physical or bomb threat: Awareness of a telephone or in-person threat to facility or staff should be
met with action to evacuate and clear staff from the threatened area. Calling 911 as soon as it is
safe to do so is imperative.

4) Situations involving hostages: If a possible hostage incident is known, evacuation of the facility is
paramount to safety of persons in the area. Contact 911 as soon as it is safe to do so.

5) lIrate customer/threat at counter or meeting: When any person threatens a staff person or customer
at a District facility in a manner causing fear for safety, action to summon public safety personnel by
911 should be taken. In no way should steps be taken to physically confront or subdue such a per-
son except in defense of life at the facility. If a volatile situation occurs at a Board of Directors or
other public meeting, the person chairing or hosting the meeting should take steps to control the
situation or adjourn the meeting to abate the confrontation, if possible. In event of threatening or
hostile situation, call 911 immediately and proceed with evacuation or other appropriate actions.

2305.4 Planning for Emergency Incidents: Steps should be taken to plan response capabilities for emergencies
in addition to fires, earthquakes, etc. that may involve hostile situations. These include but are not limited to:

Preparation of a facility evacuation plan for each room. Post the plan at each doorway and hallway exit.
Establish a safe area zone for staging.

Procedures to lock both exterior and interior doors to secure the facility.

Develop an emergency notice code for email and District-provided mobile phone to facility and District
staff.

Develop a text communication alert code to notify other District staff so they will not return to the facility
during the incident until cleared to do so by public safety personnel.

Training of all personnel in dealing with customers, employees and other persons in threatening situa-
tions and in how to identify and assess potential threats or volatile situations. All employees assigned or
expected to serve at the front desk or counter shall receive such training regularly.

All employees and members of the Board of Directors shall receive training on response to violent or hostile inci-
dents. In the event of a potential incident, employees should notify a supervisor or the General Manager as may
be possible or call 911. If assessment of a possible threat is needed, the General Manager or ranking staff per-

son shall be notified. Public safety agency shall be contacted by 911 whenever a perceived threat is considered

valid.

2305.5 Actions for Violent or Armed Threat Situation: The existence or potential for an event involving a violent
person or armed intruder at a District facility should be considered an emergency condition. Actions could in-
clude some or all of:

Notify your supervisor or General Manager and other staff immediately if a threat is received but not ac-
tively in process. If validated, contact public safety by calling 911 immediately.

The General Manager or ranking staff member shall evaluate the situation and consider appropriate ac-
tions including shutting down operations and evacuation and/or locking down the facility until public
safety response abates the threat.

Initiate notification of other facility staff of active threat by emergency code procedure. Evacuate the fa-
cility if possible. Secure money or computer equipment if time allows.

Activate an alarm for notifying other staff or an alarm company if one engaged by the District. A call con-
tact would be included in procedure to double check for safety at the facility.

Upon sighting an armed intruder, an alert to all employees should be made by page, email, or radio.



f)  Secure your work area or evacuate if safely possible. If not able to evacuate, find a safe hiding place
and stay put until contacted by public safety personnel.

g) Once outdoors after an evacuation, proceed to designated staging area to report in for identification. In-
form public safety personnel of any information on the incident.

h) Attempt to remain calm and assist others; wait for instructions from public safety or supervisory person-
nel.

) Do not attempt to look around to see what is happening. Evacuate whenever possible and with others in
areas you see directly. Do not confront or attempt to apprehend a violent perpetrator unless directly at-
tacked for self-defense. Do not assume someone already called 911, call them immediately.

2305.6 Post Event Actions: Following the clear announcement of ending of a violent or hostile-person situation,
contact public safety or supervisory personnel for instructions. Report any first hand observations or other
knowledge of the incident. Contact your family and immediate friends so they will not take any unnecessary ac-
tions to respond to new reports. Await direction as to return to work or other steps dependant on level of the inci-
dent. If not able to do so, consult with your supervisor or notify the ranking person on-site.

An Emergency Response Coordinator shall evaluate and debrief any major incident and take needed steps to
abate the conditions after the event and prepare as necessary for continued operations. Planning and actions to
address conditions are expected and your input via your supervisor is important. There may be the potential to
lock-down or close the facility for some time or other corrective steps. If necessary, seek direction on what ac-
tions you should take to assist in procedure.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
A e

GRATOMN
e 18 ihliek AHTINT ADMINISTRATION

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

POLICY TITLE: Workers’ Compensation
POLICY NUMBER: 2310

23101 All employees are covered for Workers’ Compensation, effective the first day of employment.
Workers” Compensation provides employees and/or their beneficiaries with certain benefits in the event of a
work related illness, injury, or accidental death. The District pays the full cost of this coverage, whether through a
self-insurance mechanism or an insurance product. If an employee sustains a work-related iliness or injury, he or
she must report the illness or injury to [designated Claims/Loss Prevention Manager] or his or her supervisor in
the absence of the [designated Claims/Loss Prevention Manager], within 24 hours of the occurrence. Failure to
do so could result in a delay of benefits.

2310.2 All payments for lost wages or salary due to a work-related illness or injury, medical treatment, and
any other benefits will be made by the workers’ compensation claims administrator or insurance carrier as re-
quired by law. Workers” Compensation benefit payments may be coordinated with any accrued sick leave or
vacation leave as part of a medical or disability leave of absence. For more information about Workers’ Com-
pensation benefits, please contact [designated Claims/Loss Prevention Manager] or your supervisor.

2310.3 The District provides medical treatment for work-related injuries and illnesses through designated
hospitals or clinics. Clinics are selected due to their experience in treating work-related injuries; an emergency
hospital may be needed in major injury situations and used for first treatment pending added review by desig-
nated Claims/Loss Prevention Manager.

23104 Employees who are injured in a work-related accident will be referred to the designated clinic un-
less the District has received a written notice that the employee wishes to be treated by his/her own health care
provider. This notification must have been submitted to the employee’s supervisor before any injury.

2310.5 Any supervisor who learns that an employee has incurred a work-related illness or injury shall pro-
vide that employee with a notice of his or her right to seek workers’ compensation benefits in a form provided by
the Chief Plant Operator and shall promptly report doing so to the General Manager.

2310.6 Notices of workers compensation benefits shall be posted annually as required by California law by
or at the direction of the Chief Plant Operator. A form for such notices is available at:
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dwc/NoticePoster.pdf.



E}RATUNCUMMUNJT‘H SERVICES DISTRICT

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

GRATOMN
SRR ADMINSTRATION

POLICY TITLE: Customer Relations
POLICY NUMBER: 2400

2400.1 Employees are expected to be polite, courteous, prompt, and attentive to every customer. Never regard
a customer's question or concern as an interruption or an annoyance. All employees must make every effort to
achieve complete, accurate, and timely communications — responding promptly and courteously to all proper
requests for information and to all complaints.

2400.2 Never place a telephone caller on hold for an extended period. Direct incoming calls to the appropriate
person and make sure the call is received. Through your conduct, show your desire to assist the customer in
obtaining the help he or she needs. If you are unable to help a person requesting assistance, find someone who
can.

2400.3 All correspondence and documents, whether to customers or others, must be neatly prepared and er-
ror-free. Attention to accuracy and detail in all paperwork demonstrates your commitment to those with whom we
do business.

2400.4 When an employee encounters an uncomfortable situation that he or she does not feel capable of han-
dling, the General Manager or supervisor should be called immediately for assistance. Employees should never
argue with a customer. If a problem develops, or if a customer remains dissatisfied, ask your supervisor to assist
in a resolution.



E}RATUNCUMMUNJT‘H SERVICES DISTRICT

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

GRATOMN
[ ¥ inliel AHIIHT ADMINISTRATION

POLICY TITLE: Press Relations
POLICY NUMBER: 2405

2405.1 Purpose:
The purpose of this policy is to provide for an orderly presentation to the press of factual information about
District activities and Board action.

2405.2 Press Relations:

The General Manager is hereby designated as the official of the District to represent the District to the press.
Employees of the District shall refer all press inquiries to the General Manager. Board members and other
District officials are encouraged to refer press inquiries regarding District activities and Board actions to the
General Manager or the President of the Board. Individual Board members should take care not to represent
their own opinions as those of the Board or the District, even when those opinions coincide with formal Board
action.

2405.3 Press Releases:

Press releases regarding the District shall be approved by the General Manager and the President of the Board.
Whenever possible, all members of the Board shall be given an opportunity to review proposed press releases.
Board members should take care not to comment on proposed press releases outside Board meetings in a way
that might constitute a serial meeting violation of the Brown Act. Thus, comments should be directed to the
President of the Board, the General Manager, or both, but not to other members of the Board.



FRETDNCGM.‘JUNIT'\’ SERVICES DISTRICT

0 ROES CARD = WAL RO RO 530, CRATOM. CALARINMA 5444 » TOTRIT- 1947 = Fax MMM

GRATOM
EEEAEIF TR ST ADMINISTRATION

POLICY TITLE: Public Complaints
POLICY NUMBER: 2410

2410.1 The Board of Directors desires that public complaints be resolved at the lowest possible administrative
level, and that the method for resolution of complaints be logical and systematic.

2410.2 A public complaint is an allegation by a member of the public of a violation or misinterpretation of a
District policy, state, or federal law by an individual who has been adversely affected by that alleged violation or
misinterpretation.

2410.3 Complaints shall be resolved as follows:

a) Anindividual with a complaint shall first discuss the matter with the Office Manager [or other responsible
employee] to resolve the matter informally if possible.

b) If an individual registering a complaint is not satisfied with the disposition of the complaint by the Office
Manager [or other responsible employee], it shall be forwarded to the General Manager [or other re-
sponsible managing employee]. At the option of the General Manager [or other responsible managing
employee], he/she may conduct conferences and take testimony or written documentation in the resolu-
tion of the complaint. The General Manager [or other responsible managing employee] shall memorial-
ize his/her decision in writing, providing the individual registering the complaint with a copy.

¢) Ifanindividual filing a complaint is not satisfied with the disposition of the matter by the General Manag-
er [or other responsible managing employee], he/she may request consideration by the Board of Direc-
tors by filing said request in writing within ten (10) days of receiving the General Manager's [or other re-
sponsible managing employee’s] decision. The Board may consider the matter at its next regular meet-
ing, call a special meeting, or decline to consider the matter further. In making a decision, the Board
may conduct conferences, hear testimony, and review the materials provided to the General Manager.
The Board’s final decision shall be memorialized in writing, copied to the individual registering the com-
plaint. The action of the Board, including an action to decline to consider a complaint, is the final action
of the District, not subject to further internal appeal.

24104  This policy is not intended to prohibit or deter a member of the community or a staff member from ap-
pearing before the Board to orally present testimony, a complaint, or a statement in regard to actions of the
Board, District programs and services, or pending considerations of the Board as permitted by the Brown Act.
Noting in this policy shall alter the duties of District employees to protect the District's confidences and avoid in-
subordination and as otherwise provided by law and District policy.



AR

GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT s
2 PG,

GRATOMN
e 18 islirl AHTIHT ADMINISTRATION

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

POLICY TITLE: Social Media Use
POLICY NUMBER: 2415

24151 Purpose:

The policy outlines the protocol and procedures for use of social media to publicize District services and events.
In addition, this policy addresses the responsibilities of employees and District officials with regard to social me-
dia and the use of District resources (time/equipment), as well as responsibilities related to the public records
and open meeting laws.

24152 Definitions:

a) Social Media: Various forms of discussions and information-sharing, including social networks, blogs,
video sharing, podcasts, wikis, message boards, and online forums. Technologies include: picture-
sharing, wall-postings, fan pages, email, instant messaging and music-sharing. Examples of social me-
dia applications include but are not limited to Google and Yahoo Groups, (reference, social networking),
Wikipedia (reference), MySpace (social networking), Facebook (social networking), YouTube (social
networking and video sharing), Flickr, (photo sharing), Twitter (social networking and microblogging),
LinkedIn (business networking), and news media comment sharing/blogging.

b) Social Networking: The practice of expanding business and/or social contacts by making connections
through web-based applications. This policy focuses on social networking as it relates to the Internet to
promote such connections for District business and for employees, elected and appointed officials who
are using this medium in the conduct of official District business.

c) “Posts” or “postings” means information, articles, pictures, videos, or any other form of communication
posted on a District social media site.

Policy:

2415.3 No district social media site may be created without the approval of the General Manager or his or
her designee. All District social media sites created on behalf of the District, by its employees on District time, or
using other District resources are the property of the District and shall be administered and regularly monitored
by the General Manager or his/her designee. These social media sites shall be used only to inform the public
about District business, services and events. Individual departments may not have their own pages/sites. Indi-
vidual departments wishing to add content to District social media sites may submit a request to the General
Manager. The District’s web site, [insert web URL], will remain the location for content regarding District busi-
ness, services and events. Whenever possible, links within social media formats should direct users to the Dis-
trict web site for more information, forms, documents, or online services necessary to conduct business with the
District. District social media sites shall clearly state that such sites are maintained by the District and that the
sites comply with this Social Media Policy.

24154 District employees and appointed and elected officials shall not disclose information about confi-
dential District business on the District’s social media sites, personal social media sites, or otherwise. In addition,



all use of social media sites by elected and appointed officials shall be in compliance with California’s open
meeting laws, which prohibit serial meetings of a majority of the Board or another legislative body of the District
via email or other electronic means. Members of the Board, committees and/or legislative bodies shall not re-
spond to, “like”, “share”, retweet, or otherwise participate in any published postings, or use the platform or any
form of electronic communication to respond to, blog or engage in serial meetings, or otherwise discuss, deliber-
ate, or express opinions on any issue within the subject matter jurisdiction of the body on which they serve. Em-
ployees and elected or appointed officials’ posts to non-District social media sites are a reflection of their own
views and not necessarily those of the District and should not suggest otherwise.

24155
a)

Posting/Commenting Guidelines:
All postings made by the District to social media sites will contain information and content that has al-
ready been published or broadcast by the District. The District will not comment on other social media
member’s sites. All official social media postings by the District will be done solely on the District’s social
media sites or in response to postings made on the District’s social media sites. Officers, employees
and agents of the District representing it on District social media sites shall conduct themselves profes-
sionally and in accordance with all District policies. All District social media sites shall use authorized
District contact information for account set-up, monitoring and access. Personal email accounts or
phone numbers may not be used to set up, monitoring, or post to a District social media platform.
The District reserves the right to remove from its social media sites content that it finds to violate this
policy or applicable law. Any participants on the District’s social media sites who are in continual viola-
tion of the postings/commenting guidelines may be barred from further use of the District's site. The Dis-
trict will only post photos for which it has copyright or the owner’s permission.
District social media platforms are subject to the California Public Records Act. Any content maintained
on a District social media site that is related to District business, including a list of subscribers, posted
communication, and communication submitted for posting, may be considered a public record and sub-
ject to public disclosure. All postings on District social media sites shall be sent to a District email ac-
count and maintained consistently with the Public Records Act, provided, however, that any material
removed from a District social media site consistently with this policy shall be considered a preliminary
draft, note or memorandum not retained by the District in the ordinary course of business and shall not
constitute a public record of the District required to be retained consistently with the District's records re-
tention schedules.
Chat functions in any social media sites will not be used.
Links to all social media networks to which the District belongs will be listed on the District’s website. In-
terested parties wishing to interact with these sites will be directed to visit the District's web site for more
information on how to participate.
The District reserves the right to terminate any District social media site without notice or to temporarily
or permanently suspend access to District social media as to some or all persons at any time. The Dis-
trict reserves the right to implement or remove any functionality of its social media platforms, in the dis-
cretion of the General Manager or his or her designee. This includes, but is not limited to, information,
articles, pictures, videos, or any other form of communication that can be posted on a District social
media platform
District social media sites may contain content, including but not limited to, advertisements or hyperlinks
over which the District has no control. The District does not endorse any hyperlink or advertisement
placed on District social media sites by the social media site’s owners, vendors, or partners.
City employees may post to city social media platforms only during working hours. After-hours or week-
end postings may only be made with prior approval of the City Manager or his or her designee.



i) Any person authorized to post items on any of the City’s social media platforms shall review, be familiar
with, and comply with this Policy and each social media platform’s terms and conditions of use.

j)  Any person authorized to post items on behalf of the City to any of the City’s social media platforms
shall not express personal views or concerns through such postings. Instead, postings on any of the
City’s social media platforms on behalf of the City shall only reflect the views of the City.

k) Posts must contain information that is freely available to the public and not be confidential as defined by
any City policy or state or federal law.

) Posts may NOT contain any personal information, except for the names of persons being available for
contact by the public as representatives of the District. Posts to District social media sites shall NOT
contain any of the following:
1)Comments that are not topically related to the information commented upon;
2)Comments in support of, or opposition to, political campaigns, candidates or ballot measures;
3)Profane language or content;
4)Content that promotes, fosters, or perpetuates discrimination on the basis of race, creed, color, age,

religion, gender, marital status, or status with regard to public assistance, national origin, physical or
mental disability or sexual orientation, or any other category protected by federal, state, or local law;
5)Sexual content or links to sexual content;
6)Solicitations of commerce;
7)Conduct or encouragement of illegal activity;
8)Information that may tend to compromise the safety or security of the public or public systems; or
9)Content that violates a legal ownership interest of any other party.

Procedures:

2415.6 The General Manager or his designee will be responsible for responding to comments and mes-
sages as appropriate. The District will direct users to the District’s web site for more information, forms, docu-
ments or online services necessary to conduct business with the District.

2415.7 The District may invite others to participate in its social media sites. Such invitations will be based
upon the best interests of the District as determined by the General Manager or his or her designee.

Responsibilities:
24158 It is the responsibility of employees, and appointed and elected officials to understand the proce-
dures as outlined in this policy.

2415.9 Employees who are not designated by the General Manager to access social media sites for Dis-
trict business are prohibited from accessing social media sites utilizing the District computer equipment and/ or
the District’s web access. While at work, employees who are not granted access via District systems and com-
puting equipment may use personal computing devices and personal web accounts to access social media sites
only during non-working hours such as lunch periods and breaks. State law provides that more than occasional
or incidental personal use of District resources is a crime.

241510  The General Manager will determine if a requested use of District social media sites or other District
resources is appropriate and complies with this policy.

241511 All content on District social media sites must comply with District web standards, the rules and
regulation of the social media site provider, including privacy policies, and applicable law. Employee or District
confidentiality shall be maintained in accordance with all applicable laws and District policies. If a question arises



regarding the use or posting of confidential information on a social media site, the matter shall be referred to the
General Manager. The information in question shall not be posted, or if already posted, shall be removed until an
opinion is rendered by General Manager or, at his or her request, Legal Counsel. Notwithstanding the opinion of
the District counsel, the General Manager reserves the right to restrict or remove District information from a Dis-
trict social media site if the General Manager concludes the information does not serve the best interest of the
District.

241512 Al social media-based services to be developed, designed, managed by or purchased from any
third party source for District use requires appropriate budget authority and approval from the Board of Directors.

241513  The District reserves the right to change, modify, or amend all or part of this policy at any time.



AR

GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT s
2 PG,

GRATOMN
e 18 islirl AHTIHT ADMINISTRATION

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

POLICY TITLE: District Web Page
POLICY NUMBER: 2420

Policy:

2420.1 ltis District policy to control the content and accuracy of the information provided on the District’s Web
page. All information will be directed to the administrative support staff acting in the capacity of the District Web
manager. All information posted on the District website must be consistent with the District's mission and public
interest and the District’s social media policy.

Procedure:

2420.2 Any District Board Director, official or employee may request postings to the District Web page through
the General Manager or his designated representative. Postings must be non-political in nature. The General
Manager who shall approve, modify, or deny the request. Postings shall be submitted in Word format as an e-
mail attachment unless only a hard copy is available. In either case, it is the submitter’s responsibility to check
the item for accuracy both prior to submission and after posting to the Web page to insure no inadvertent errors
appear on the final document. The submitter shall inspect the posted submission within 24 hours of posting.

a) The General Manager or his or her designee shall submit the approved request to the [District
department or vendor] for inclusion on the web page and, when necessary, to suggest alternative
solutions.

b) The General Manager or his or her designee shall also manage removal of outdated postings.

2420.3 Privacy Policy.
Last Updated: [date] (TBD).

The following privacy policy shall be posted to the District's website under a link on the home page.

The Graton Community Services District is concerned about privacy issues and wants you to be familiar with
how we collect, use and disclose information. We are pleased to provide this Privacy Policy to inform you of our
practices as information that we collect through this website. Please note that this Privacy Policy applies only to
our online information-gathering and dissemination practices conducted in connection with this website, and
does not apply to any of our practices conducted offline. If you have any questions or comments about the
Privacy Policy or our privacy practices, please contact us at [contact email address].

By accessing or using this website, you agree with all the terms of this Privacy Policy, so please do not access
or use this website if you do not.

We may change this Privacy Policy at any time. Please take a look at the “Updated” legend at the top of this
page to see when this Privacy Policy was last revised. Any changes to this Privacy Policy will become effective
when posted to this website. By accessing or using the website after any such changes, you accept the revised
Privacy Policy.



Personal Information We May Collect

We collect two types of information through this website: Personal Information and Other Information. “Personal
Information” is information that identifies you or relates to you as an individual. “Other Information” is any
information that does not reveal your specific identity or does not directly relate to an individual. Other
Information is addressed below, under the heading “Other Information”.

We may collect Personal Information through the Sites such as:
o Name
e Email address
e Mailing Address
e Preferences for electronic or physical delivery of newsletters

We may use Personal Information:

e torespond to your inquiries and fulfill your requests, such as to send you information, to register you for
events, and to provide you District services.

e tokeep arecord of your contact information and correspondence, if you contact us through this website
and to respond to you.

e to send you administrative information, including information regarding the websites and changes to our
terms, conditions and policies.

e tofacilitate social sharing functionality.

o forour internal business purposes, such as improving or modifying this website and operating and
expanding our services.

e as we believe to be necessary or appropriate: (a) under applicable law, including laws outside your
country of residence; (b) to comply with legal process; (c) to respond to requests from public or
government authorities, including public or government authorities outside your country of residence; (d)
to enforce our terms and conditions; (e) to protect our operations or those of any of our affiliates; (f) to
protect our rights, privacy, safety or property, or yours or others’; or (g) to pursue available remedies or
limit the damages that we may sustain.

How Personal Information May Be Disclosed:

o to third parties that provide us services such as website hosting, data analysis, IT services and
infrastructure, customer service, email delivery, auditing and the like.

o toathird party (whether affiliated or unaffiliated with us) upon any reorganization of the District or
transfer or some of all of its services to another entity.

e by you, on message boards, blogs and other services to which you are able to post information. Please
note that any information you post or disclose through these services will become public information,
and may be available to visitors to this website and to the general public. We urge you to be thoughtful
when disclosing your Personal Information, or any other information, on this site.

e to your friends associated with your social media account, to other website users as well as to your
social media account provider, in connection with your social sharing activity, such as if you connect
your social media account to your use of this website. By connecting your use of this website to your
social media account, you authorize us to share information with your social media account provider
and you understand that the use of the information we share will be governed by



the social media site’s privacy policy. If you do not want your Personal Information shared with other
users or with your social media account provider, please do not connect your social media account with
your use of this website and do not participate in social sharing on this website.

as we believe to be necessary or appropriate: (a) under applicable law, including laws outside your
country of residence; (b) to comply with legal process; (c) to respond to requests from public or
government authorities, including public or government authorities outside your country of residence; (d)
to enforce our terms and conditions; () to protect our operations; (f) to protect our rights, privacy, safety
or property, or yours or others’; or (g) to allow us to pursue available remedies or limit the damages that
we may sustain.

Other Information We May Collect:
“Other Information” is any information that does not reveal your identity or relate to an individual, such as:

Browser information

Information collected through cookies, pixel tags and other technologies
Demographic information and Other Information you provide
Aggregated information

Zip codes

How We May Collect Other Information:
We and our third-party service providers may collect Other Information in a variety of ways, including:

Through your browser: Most Internet browsers transmit certain information to websites that you visit,
such as your computer’s type (Windows or Macintosh) and its Media Access Control (MAC) address
and screen resolution, and the type and version of your computer’s Operating System and browser. We
use this information to ensure this website functions properly.

Using cookies: Cookies are text files, containing small amounts of information, which are downloaded to
your computer, or smartphone or other device by which you visit a website. Cookies allow us to
recognize your browsing device to assist with your use of this website. This can include helping us
understand how this website is used, letting you navigate between pages efficiently, remembering your
preferences, and generally improving your browsing experience. Cookies can also help ensure
marketing you see online is more relevant to you and your interests, although we do not intentionally
use them for that purpose, our service providers may.

If you do not want information to be collected through the use of cookies on your computer, most
browsers allow you to automatically decline the transfer of cookies to your computer or other device, or
to be given the choice of declining or accepting a particular cookie (or cookies) from a particular
website. If cookies are disabled, however, some features of this website may not operate as intended.
Information about procedures to disable cookies can be found on your Internet browser provider's
website.

Using applications: We may use applications, including mobile applications or widgets, to collect
information from you.

Using pixel tags and other similar technologies: Pixel tags (also known as web beacons and clear GIFs)
may be used in connection with some website pages and HTML-formatted email messages to, among
other things, track the actions of users of this website and email recipients, measure the success of
marketing campaigns and compile statistics about use of this website and response rates.

IP Address: Your “IP Address” is a number that is automatically assigned to your computer or other
web-browsing device by your Internet Service Provider (ISP). An IP Address is identified and logged
automatically in our server log files whenever a user visits this website, along with the time of visit and



the page(s) visited. Collecting IP Addresses is standard practice on the Internet and many websites do it
automatically. We use IP Addresses for purposes such as measuring use of this website, helping
diagnose server problems and administering this website.

e From you: We collect information when you provide it voluntarily, such as your company, title, interests
and preferred means of communication. Unless combined with Personal Information, such information
does not personally identify you or any other user of this website.

e By aggregating information: Aggregated Personal Information does not personally identify you or any
other user of this website. For example, we may aggregate Personal Information to calculate the
percentage of our users who have a particular telephone area code.

How We May Use and Disclose Other Information:

We may use and disclose Other Information for any purpose, except when applicable law requires to treat Other
Information as Personal Information. In those situations, we may use and disclose Other Information for the
purposes for which we use and disclose Personal Information.

In some instances, we may combine Other Information with Personal Information (such as combining your name
with your company and title). If we combine any Other Information with Personal Information, we will treat the
combined information as Personal Information as long as it is so combined.

Third Party Sites:

This Privacy Policy does not address, and we are not responsible for, the privacy, information or other practices
of any third parties, including any third party operating any site to which this website contains a link. Please read
the terms, conditions and policies of third-party sites before accessing or using them. The inclusion of a link on
the Sites does not imply our endorsement of the linked site.

Security:

We use reasonable organizational, technical and administrative measures to protect Personal Information under
our control. Unfortunately, no data storage system or method of Internet data transmission is perfectly secure.
Please do not send sensitive or confidential information to us by email or by any other means in connection with
this website. If you have reason to believe that your communications with us have been compromised in any
way, please immediately notify us of the problem by contacting us as provided in the “Contact Us” page of this
website.

Choices and Access:

Your choices regarding our use of your Personal Information for marketing purposes

You may opt-out of receiving these marketing-related emails by following the unsubscribe instructions in any
message we send you, by emailing us at [contact email address]. We strive to honor such request(s) as soon as
reasonably practicable.

How you can access, change or suppress your Personal Information:

You may request to review, correct, update, suppress or otherwise modify any Personal Information that you
have previously provided to us through this website, or object to our use of such Personal Information by
emailing us at [contact email address] or by other means as noted on the “Contact Us” portion of this website.
You may also oppose the processing or transferring of Personal Information to the extent the laws of your
country require, if you have a legitimate reason to do so.

In your request, please state what information you would like us to change, and whether you would like to have
your Personal Information removed from our database or otherwise let us know what limitations you would like to



place on our use of your Personal Information. For your protection, we will only implement requests with respect
to the Personal Information associated with the particular email address that you use to send us your request,
and we may need to verify your identity before doing so. We strive to comply with requests as soon as
reasonably practicable.

We may need to retain certain information for recordkeeping purposes, and there may also be residual
information that will remain in our databases and other records. Such information will not be removed. We may,
from time to time, re-contact former users of this website. Finally, we are not responsible for removing
information from the databases of third parties (such as service providers) with whom we have shared your
Personal Information.

Retention Period:
We will retain your Personal Information as necessary to fulfill the purposes outlined in this Privacy Policy unless
a longer retention period is required or allowed by law.

Use of Site by Minors:
The Sites is not directed to children under the age of 13 and we request they not provide Personal Information
through this website.

Cross-Border Transfer:

Your Personal Information may be stored and processed in any country in which we engage service providers,
and by using our Sites you consent to the transfer of information to countries outside of your country of
residence, including the United States, which may have different data protection rules than those in your country.

Sensitive Information:

We ask that you not send us, and you not disclose, any sensitive Personal Information (e.g., Social Security
numbers, credit card or other payment card information, information related to racial or ethnic origin, political
opinions, religion or other beliefs, health, criminal background or trade union membership) on or through this
website or otherwise except as necessary to pay for District services.

Contacting Us:

If you have any questions about this Privacy Policy, please contact us by email at [contact email address] or by
other means as noted on the “Contact Us” portion of this website.

Please note that email communications are not secure; accordingly, please do not include credit card
information or other sensitive or confidential information in your emails to us.



AR

GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT s
2 PG,

GRATOMN
e 18 islirl AHTIHT ADMINISTRATION

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

POLICY TITLE: California Public Records Act Response Procedures
POLICY NUMBER: 2425

The California Public Records Act (Government Code, section 6250 et seq.) grants California residents im-
portant rights to obtain access to records held by public agencies. Graton Community Services District] adopts
this policy to clarify how it will respond to requests for records under the Public Records Act.

2425.1 All requests for public records shall be in writing on a form approved by the Board of Directors, unless
the request is to review an agenda, agenda reports, or minutes of the Board or ordinances or resolutions of the
Board or any of its committees, which are available in the District office.

2425.2 Staff will respond to all requests as soon as possible after they are received, but not later than the 10-
day period, or extensions thereof, provided by Government Code section 6253.

a) Staff shall review each request and determine whether it seeks identifiable records and, if not, staff shall
help the requestor identify records responsive to the request.

b) Staff shall request all Directors who may have the records requested to search their files and report
whether they have the records and, if so, when the records can be made available to the requestor.

c) Staff shall respond to the requestor, advising him or her in writing of the availability of the documents, a
description of the medium (paper, electronic format, etc.) and location of the records, and whether any
are exempt from disclosure under the Public Records Act. As the Public Records Act requires, to the
extent feasible, staff will provide suggestions to overcome any practical basis for denying access to the
records sought.

d) Ifarequestis made for copies of records, staff shall also advise the requestor of the estimated copying
cost.

e) The person requesting the copies shall pay the charges for the requested copies established by the
Board. At present those are: No charge if under 20 pages. If over 20 pages and less than 100 pages,
$0.20 per page. If over 100 pages, an outside copy vendor will be used (who wil bill the requestor di-
rectly). Staff shall not make the requested copies until a deposit of the estimated copying cost is re-
ceived and shall not release the copies until the actual copying cost is paid.

2425.3 In accordance with the Public Records Act, the administrative staff will provide specific, identifiable rec-
ords but will not research records for particular types of information or analyze information which may be con-
tained in public records.

2425.4 Administrative staff will respond to requests for public records in accordance with the Public Records
Act as the Act now exists or may hereafter be amended, and nothing in this Policy is intended nor shall it be
construed to conflict with the terms of the Public Records Act.



GRATION COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
REQUEST FOR PUBLIC RECORDS

Date requested: Date required:

Please list each document, file, or record separately

[ wish to Review
Obtain copies of the following public records:

I/We, the undersigned, request documents as indicated and agree to pay the Graton Community Services District for
copies at the rate of no charge if under 20 pages; if over 20 pages and less than 100 pages, $0.20 per page. when |
receive or my representative receives them. If over 100 pages, an outside copy vendor will be used (who will bill the
requestor directly).

Name/Organization:

Mailing Address:

Phone Number: () Signature:

FAX Number: () Email:

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY
Signature:

Approved Denied

Reason, if denied:

Disposition of Request: Documents/response provided on (date)
By: Mail Pick-up FAX Email Delivered Verbal Phone

Comments:

Date Staff Staff
Completed: Member(s): Time:




GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON, CALIFQERIN Taddd o J077A1 =143 = FAX T07811-973

GRATON
—_ PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Accommodations for Disability
POLICY NUMBER: 3100

3100.1  The employment related provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (‘FEHA”) and the Ameri-
cans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) apply to all employees and job applicants seeking employment with the Dis-
trict. Under the ADA, a qualified individual with a disability is an individual who, with or without reasonable ac-
commodation, can perform the essential functions of the position in which the individual is employed.

3100.2 The District will attempt to provide reasonable accommodation for known physical or mental disabilities
if a job applicant or employee is otherwise qualified, unless undue hardship related to the necessity of business
operations would result, in accordance with federal or state law. An applicant or employee who requires accom-
modation in order to perform the essential functions of the job should inform the General Manager, or his or her
supervisor, to request an evaluation of such an accommodation. Generally, an interactive process meeting will
be scheduled to discuss the request, job duties and possible accommodations.

Employee or applicant should contact his or her supervisor, Human Resources Manager, or the General Man-
ager for further information.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON, CALIFQERIN Taddd o J077A1 =143 = FAX T07811-973

GRATON
— PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Demotion — Non-disciplinary
POLICY NUMBER: 3102

3102.1 The General Manager may demote an employee, with the written consent of the employee, to a
vacant position in lieu of layoff, provided the employee possesses the desired qualifications for the position to
which he/she is assigned.

3102.2 At least five working days before a non-disciplinary demotion becomes effective, written notice of
the action shall be provided to the employee and the payroll department.

3102.3 The General Manager shall provide the employee with written job duties within five working days of
starting the new position and a written performance review within six months. The employee shall be subject to a
probationary period, generally a six month period. In the event that the employee does not perform satisfactorily
within the probationary period, the General Manager shall have the discretion of extending the employee’s pro-
bationary period or terminating the employee.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Disciplinary Action
POLICY NUMBER: 3104

3104.1 The District expects all of its employees to act in the best interest of the District and its customers
and residents. It is the responsibility of all employees to observe all rules, guidelines, and operating procedures
of the District. The District further expects that each of its employees will act in a polite and professional manner
when dealing with members of the public and other employees. These General Rules of Conduct, along with the
“Examples of Unacceptable Conduct’ listed below, are not meant to be all-inclusive, but rather to provide illustra-
tions of acceptable conduct versus problematic conduct.

3104.2 Examples of Unacceptable Conduct. The following list presents examples of some of the types of
unacceptable conduct that may result in disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination. This list is
not an exhaustive list of what may result in discipline, up to and including immediate termination:

Discourteous treatment of the public or fellow employees

Drinking of intoxicating beverages or use of illegal or nonprescribed drugs on the job, or arriving on the
job under the influence of such beverages or drugs;

Habitual absence or tardiness;

Abuse of sick leave;

Disorderly conduct;

Incompetence or inefficiency;

Being wasteful of material, property, or working time;

Violation of any lawful or reasonable regulation or order made and given by an employee's supervisor,
Neglect of duty;

Dishonesty or fraud;

Misuse of District property;

Willful disobedience;

Conduct unbecoming a District employee;

Violation of the District’s Unlawful Harassment Policy;

Possession of firearms or dangerous weapons on District property;

Theft.

3104.3 Types of Disciplinary Action. Disciplinary action includes oral warning, written warning, disciplinary
probation, suspension, reduction in salary, demotion, or termination of employment.

3104.3.1  Oral Wamning: Communication to an employee that his or her performance or behavior
must be improved and failure to do so may result in more serious discipline. An employ-
ee’s supervisor or the General Manager may note the date, time, and content of oral



3104.3.2

3104.3.3

3104.3.4

3104.3.5

3104.3.6

3104.3.7

reprimand, but no record of oral reprimand shall be placed in the employee’s personnel file
unless subsequent action is necessary.

Written Warning: A formal written notice to an employee that further disciplinary action will
be taken unless his or her performance or behavior improves. A copy of the written repri-
mand is given to the employee and the original is filed in the employee’s personnel file.
The employee must acknowledge receipt of the written warning by signing the letter at the
time of presentation; this signature signifies only the receipt of the document, it does not
signify the employee’s agreement with the allegations.

Disciplinary Probation: This form of disciplinary action lasts for a specified period of time
not to exceed six (6) months. Employees on disciplinary probation may be terminated for
failure to meet performance or behavior standards as provided by in the employee’s job
classification.

Suspension: The temporary removal of an employee from his or her duties without pay for
disciplinary purposes for up to thirty (30) working days. Employees suspended from his or
her employment with the District forfeit all rights, privileges, and salary with the exception of
group health and life insurance benefits.

Reduction in Salary: A decrease in salary paid to an employee for a specified period of
time for disciplinary purposes.

Demotion: The removal of an employee from a position to another position carrying a lower
maximum rate of pay as a result of a disciplinary action.

Discharge: The removal of an employee from District services, as provided for in these
Guidelines.

3104.4 Disciplinary Notice/Appeal Procedure
This Section does not apply to probationary or temporary employees.

3104.4.1

Written Notice of Proposed Action

In the event the District imposes disciplinary action as described in sections 3104.3.3-3104.3.7 above,
the employee will be given a notice of the disciplinary action.

a) Notice of Disciplinary Action. Whenever a disciplinary action is to be taken against an employee,
the employee shall be notified in writing of the proposed disciplinary action to be taken. The notice
may be served upon the employee, either personally or by certified mail and shall contain the fol-
lowing information:

1)

EUR RS

A statement of the disciplinary action to be taken;

The effective date of the disciplinary action;

The reason or cause of the disciplinary action;

A summary of the facts upon which the charges are based;

Notice that the employee may inspect copies of all materials upon which the disciplinary
action is based; and

A statement notifying the employee that he or she has ten (10) business days in which to
respond orally or in writing regarding the proposed disciplinary action.



7) Notice that failure to respond at the time specified shall constitute a waiver of the right to
respond prior to final discipline being imposed.

b) Notice of Suspension. Prior to the imposition of discipline as described in sections 3104.3.3-
3104.3.7 above, a regular employee shall be provided a written notice or “Skelly letter” by the em-
ployee’s supervisor or General Manager proposing to implement discipline which contains:

1) Notice of the proposed action;

2) The reasons for the proposed action;

3) A copy of the charges and any materials upon which the proposed action is based;

4) Notice that the employee is entitled to an opportunity to respond within five (5) working
days after the notice has been served upon employee to the charges orally or in writing, or
both, personally or with a representative who may be an attorney;

5) The date and time of the response or “Skelly” meeting, which shall be held according to
section 3102.4.2; and

6) Notice that if the employee fails to attend the response meeting the employee shall be
deemed to have waived all rights to said meeting and from appeal to any action taken.

3104.4.2  Response Meeting/Skelly Hearing

No less than ten (10) business days after the notice has been served upon employee, employee shall
have the opportunity to refute charges or present facts that may not be known at a “Skelly” Hearing. The
employee may respond orally or in writing, personally or with a representative. Neither party shall be en-
titled to call witnesses or take testimony.

At the meeting, the General Manager may consider information contained in the charges and recom-
mendations, as well as information presented by the employee or his or her representative.

3104.4.3  Post-Skelly Final Notice

Within ten (10) days after the Skelly Hearing, the appropriate authority shall: 1) dismiss the notice and
take no disciplinary action against the employee; 2) modify the intended disciplinary action; or 3) pre-
pare and serve upon the employee a final notice of disciplinary action.

The final notice of disciplinary action shall include the following:
1) The disciplinary action taken;
2) The effective date of the disciplinary action taken;
3) Specific charges upon which the action is based;
4) A summary of the facts upon which the charges are based;
5) The written materials, reports and documents upon which the disciplinary action is based;
and
6) The employee’s right to appeal.

If an employee fails to respond to the notice for a Skelly Hearing, the General Manager shall notify the
employee in writing that his or her time to respond has expired and that the discipline shall be imposed.

Disciplinary action other than a suspension, demotion or termination (i.e., written or oral reprimands)
shall not be subject to appeal. Disciplinary action consisting of a suspension, demotion or termination
may be appealed by regular employees pursuant to section 3104.4.4.



310444  Appeals of Disciplinary Action

Any regular employee shall have the right to appeal to the General Manager from any disciplinary action
taken by his or her supervisor following a Skelly Hearing. Such appeal shall be in writing and must be
filed with the General Manager within ten (10) business days after receipt of written notice of such disci-
plinary action. Failure to file an appeal within such period constitutes a waiver of right to appeal.

The General Manager shall conduct a hearing as provided above. Neither the provisions of this section
or this Chapter shall apply to reductions in force or reductions in pay, which are part of a general plan to
reduce or adjust salaries and wages. However, any reduction in pay is subject to the meet and confer
process pursuant to Government Code sections 3504.5 and 3505.

In the event the General Manager institutes the disciplinary action against an employee, he or she shall
be disqualified from presiding at the appeal hearing. In such case, the hearing officer will be appointed
by mutual agreement of the parties.

310445  Selection of Hearing officer for Appeal of Disciplinary Action

If the General Manager is disqualified, the appeal shall be heard by a hearing officer provided to the
District by a non-profit organization or governmental agency with whom the District has contracted to
conduct hearing pursuant to these Guidelines. No hearing officer shall be compensated or evaluated,
directly or indirectly, based upon the outcome of any hearing.

3104.4.6  Appeal Hearing

The General Manager, or the appointed hearing officer, shall conduct an appeal within thirty (30) days
of receipt of employee’s request for appeal. The General Manager, or the appointed hearing officer,
may continue the hearing either for the convenience of the District or for good cause upon written appli-
cation of the appellant or District, for a period not to exceed an additional thirty (30) days from the re-
ceipt of the appeal. Written notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be conducted in accordance
with the provisions of section 11509 of the Government Code of the State of California, except that the
appellant and other persons may be examined as provided in section 19580 of said Government Code,
and the parties may submit all proper and competent evidence against, or in support of the causes.

3104.4.7  Representation at Appeal

Any District employee, other than those appointed to supervisory, management, and confidential classi-
fications, shall be permitted to represent another District employee or group of District employees at the
hearing of the appeal. The appellant may appear in person or be represented by counsel.

3104.4.8  Notices to Witnesses: Cost
The General Manager shall issue notice for the appearances of witnesses for the appellant upon his
written request and at his cost. The General Manager may require such cost to be prepaid.

3104.4.9  Failure of Employee to Appear at Appeal Hearing

Failure of the appellant to appear at the hearing, without the prior written approval of the hearing officer,
shall be deemed a withdrawal of his or her appeal and the action of the General Manager or supervisor
shall be final.

3104.410 Decision on the Appeal
The General Manager or appointed hearing officer shall render a written decision within thirty (30) days
after concluding the hearing. The General Manager’s decision shall be final and conclusive, except



when an employee is suspended for more than three (3) days or discharged. A copy of such decision
shall be forwarded to the appellant. If the disciplinary action taken against the employee is reversed or
modified by the General Manager or an appointed hearing officer, the employee will be compensated
for the time lost, if any, that resulted from the reversed disciplinary action.

In cases involving suspending an employee for more than three (3) days or discharging an employee, a
copy of such decision shall be forwarded to the employee.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON, CALIFQERIN Taddd o J077A1 =143 = FAX T07811-973

GRATOM
- PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Driver Training and Record Review

POLICY NUMBER: 3106

3106.1  Purpose. The purpose of this policy is to reduce the frequency and severity of vehicle-related accidents
and losses by: (a) applying uniform criteria in evaluating the acceptability of driver-record information of individu-
als driving District vehicles or while on District business; (b) establishing disciplinary procedures for different
types of driving violations.

3106.2 Scope. This policy applies to all regular, part-time, and temporary District employees and volun-
teers who drive on behalf of the District. Directors are encouraged to provide their license information, but cannot
be required to do so in accordance with State law.

3106.3 Implementation. [DISTRICT NAME] shall participate in the Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV)
Employer Pull Notice Program (a.k.a.: “Pull Program”). Records for anyone operating vehicles on District busi-
ness shall be requested from DMV: (a) every six months; and, (b) immediately in the event of new activity (e.g.,
moving violation, accident, address change, etc.). Employees who have terminated employment will be deleted
from the program.

3106.4 Review Criteria. Information that will be generated during the record review will include: (a) type of
license; (b) expiration date; (c) endorsements; (d) DMV action suspensions, revocations, and penal code viola-
tions; and, (d) Vehicle Code violations.

3106.5 Disciplinary Procedures:

a) Adriver willimmediately attend a qualified defensive driver training course (State of California Defensive

Driver Training, National Safety Council Defensive Driver Training, etc.) if:

1) They earn two points within 36 months of report date; or,

2) They receive any moving violation in a District vehicle within 36 months of report date; or,
3) They are involved in an accident within 36 months of report date.

b) A driver will be placed on a 12-month driving probation if they earn three to five points within 36 months
of report date. Additional point violations within this probation period will affect a 120-day suspension of
District driving privileges. If their job routinely involves driving a vehicle and if having driving privileges
suspended would impose a hardship on normal District operations, they will be terminated from em-
ployment.

c) Adriver will be suspended from District driving privileges for 120 days if:

1) They earn four or more points within 24 months of report date; or,

2) They earn six or more points within 36 months of report date; or,

3) They receive a citation for DU, reckless driving, or speed contest on personal time within 36
months of report date; or,

4) Ifthey are involved in two chargeable (resulting in a point violation) accidents within 24 months of
report date. If their job routinely involves driving a vehicle and if having driving privileges suspended
would impose a hardship on normal District operations, they will be terminated from employment.



d) Adriver will be permanently suspended of District driving privileges if:
1) They receive a citation for DUI, reckless driving, or speed contest during District business within 36
months of report date; or, They receive two citations for DUI, two citations for reckless driving, or
two citations for speed contest on personal time within 12 months of report date. If their job routinely in-
volves driving a vehicle and if having driving privileges suspended would impose a hardship on normal
District operations, permanent suspension of driving privileges will result in termination of employment.
e) Occasionally, it may be brought to the District’s attention that an employee is exposing it to undue liabil-

ity through poor driving techniques and habits. All such complaints will be investigated and acted upon
accordingly.

3106.6 Defensive Driver Training. All drivers shall attend an approved defensive driver-training course at
least once every four years or more often as specified in Disciplinary Procedures, above. Directors are encour-
aged to attend courses, but cannot be required to do so in accordance with State law.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Drug and Alcohol Testing
POLICY NUMBER: 3108

3108.1  Pre-Employment Drug Testing: As a part of the District’s employment screening process, any applicant
to whom a conditional offer of employment is made must pass a test for controlled substances, per procedures
described below. The offer of employment is conditioned on a negative drug test result. Applicants will be in-
formed of the District's drug testing policy in the employment application.

3108.2 Testing of Employees in Designated Safety-Sensitive Position: Employees in health and safety sensi-
tive positions, including, but not limited to, the following management and non-management positions: vehicle
and heavy machinery drivers with commercial licenses/operators, firefighters, and utility crew members, will be
required to submit to random drug testing under the procedures described below. This testing shall occur at ran-
dom by an independent, third party drug testing company performing such testing. If an employee refuses to
cooperate with the administration of the drug test, the refusal will be handled in the same manner as a positive
test result.

3108.3 Reasonable Suspicion Testing: If an employee’s supervisor or manager has a verifiable and confirmed
reasonable suspicion by at least two (2) people, including any Board Members, who are qualified by having rea-
sonable suspicion training, that the employee is working in an impaired condition or otherwise engaging in con-
duct that violates these Guidelines, then the employee will be asked about any observed behavior or impaired
condition and offered an opportunity to give a reasonable explanation. If the employee is unable to explain the
behavior, he or she will be requested to take a drug test in accordance with the procedures described herein. If
the employee refuses to cooperate with the administration of the drug test, the refusal will be handled in the
same manner as a positive test result, which results in termination.

3108.4  On-the-Job Inquiry: Should an injury occur while working, a drug or alcohol test may be administered if
the injured employee’s supervisor has a reasonable suspicion that an employee was injured due to drug or alco-
hol use.

3108.5 Procedures for Drug Testing: If employee is a member of a District-recognized collective bargaining
unit and is subject to a drug test based on reasonable suspicion, the District will meet and confer with the re-
spective collective bargaining group before testing.

The District will refer the applicant or employee to an independent, National Institute on Drug Abuse (“NIDA"),
certified medical clinic or laboratory, which will administer the test. The District shall require drug testing for: A)
pre-employment testing, B) random testing, and C) reasonable suspicion testing. The District will pay the cost of
the test. If the employee is determined by verifiable and confirmed reasonable suspicion observation as unable
to drive or impaired for driving, then a District supervisor or General Manager will transport the individual to a
medical facility for immediate testing or treatment.



The employee will have the opportunity to alert the clinic or laboratory personnel to any prescription or non-
prescription drugs that he or she has taken that may affect the outcome of the test. The clinic or laboratory will
handle the required testing. The District will have no control over the clinic or laboratory’s testing methods. The
clinic or laboratory will inform the District as to whether or not the applicant passed or failed the drug test. If an
employee fails the test, he or she will be considered to be in violation of these Guidelines and will be subject to
discipline accordingly.

3108.6  Acknowledgment and Consent: Any employee subject to testing under this policy will be directed to
sign a form acknowledging the procedures governing testing and authorizing (1) the collection of a urine sample
for the purpose of determining the presence of alcohol or drugs, and (2) the release to the District of medical
information regarding the test results. Refusal to sign the authorization form or to submit to the drug test, will re-
sult in the revocation of an applicant’s job offer, or will be considered the same as a positive test leading to ter-
mination.

3108.7 Confidentiality: All drug testing records will be treated as confidential.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON, CALIFQERIN Taddd o J077A1 =143 = FAX T07811-973

GRATON
— PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Employee Information/Emergency Data
POLICY NUMBER: 3110

3110.1 It shall be the policy of District to maintain accurate and vital personal contact information for each em-
ployee and Director of the District in case of need to contact them. All such information shall be maintained as
confidential to the extent allowed by law.

3110.2 Itis important that employees promptly notify District of any changes to their personal information in-
cluding:
e Name
Home and Mailing Address
Home and Cell Phone Telephone Numbers
Number, Names, and Status of Spouse and Dependents
Change of Emergency Contact Information
Educational Accomplishments
Marital or Registered Domestic Partner Status
Change of Military Status
Payroll Deductions
Benefit Plan Beneficiary

3110.3 Employees are responsible for notifying the [HR/General Manager] in the event of a name, address or
other vital information change as required by this policy or any other District policy/procedure.

3110.4 The District shall not be responsible in the event of failure of an employee to provide this information in
a timely manner and a loss of benefits or services by the employee or dependents.

3110.5 Each employee is also responsible for providing the District with records concerning any licenses or
certificates required in the performance of his or her job, as well as any documents showing that education or
training relevant to employment has been completed.

3110.6 Release of Information. Personnel records are considered confidential. Employees may examine their
own personnel records, except for letters of reference, by contacting the General Manager or his or her design-
ee. Employees may authorize the release of their own personnel records by executing a written request identify-
ing the records to be released and the person or entity to which they may be released. Ordinarily, no information
on past or present employees shall be provided by the District, other than employment dates and job title, unless
such requests for information are accompanied by a signed authorization by the employee to release the infor-
mation requested.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON, CALIFQERIN Taddd o J077A1 =143 = FAX T07811-973

GRATON
— PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Employee Promotion
POLICY NUMBER: 3112

31121 An employee may be promoted only if the employee has the desirable qualifications for the higher posi-
tion. Desirable qualifications shall be ascertained on the same basis of information, application, examination,
interview, and evaluation as those for an initial appointment in accordance with the most current Job Description.

3112.2 A promoted employee shall be required to successfully complete a six (6) month probation period, as
outlined in Policy 3116. If a promoted employee is unable to perform the required duties of the new position and
has not successfully completed the probation period, the employee may be restored to the position from which
he or she was promoted, if the position is available, or be required to successfully complete an additional six (6)
month probationary period.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON, CALIFQERIN Taddd o J077A1 =143 = FAX T07811-973

GRATCHM
— PERSONNEL
POLICY TITLE: Employee Records
POLICY NUMBER: 3114

3114.1 All personnel information and records are to be considered as confidential to the extent allowed by Fed-
eral or State law. The District policy is to require all personnel files to be maintained in a secure and private loca-
tion and to have all employees manage personnel information in that manner.

The District retains personnel records concerning its employees. Such records ordinarily include applications,
insurance forms, payroll deduction authorizations, performance appraisals, certain pay records, transfer and
promotion forms, records of disciplinary action, training records, and any certificates or credentials required for
an employee’s job. Other information concerning employees may be kept as personnel records at the discretion
of the District.

In order to keep personnel records current, the General Manager, or his or her designee, must be notified of any
change in an employee’s personal status and information, such as: changes of address, telephone number,
marital status, military status, any birth or death in an employee’s immediate family, any change in the name or
telephone number of the person to be notified in case of emergency, any change in insurance beneficiary, or
any other information needed to maintain accurate records. These changes shall be provided to the General
Manager, or his or her designee, within thirty (30) days of the change in an employee’s personal status.

Each employee is also responsible for providing the District with records concerning any licenses or certificates
required in the performance of his or her job, as well as any documents showing that education or training rele-
vant to employment has been completed.

3114.2 Release of Information: Personnel records are considered confidential. Employees may examine their
own personnel records, except for letters of reference, by contacting the General Manager or his or her design-
ee. Employees may authorize the release of their own personnel records by executing a written request identify-
ing the records to be released and the person or entity to which they may be released.

Ordinarily, no information on past or present employees shall be provided by the District, other than employment
dates and job title, unless such requests for information are accompanied by a signed authorization by the em-
ployee to release the information requested.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON, CALIFQERIN Taddd o J077A1 =143 = FAX T07811-973

GRATCHM
— PERSONNEL
POLICY TITLE: Employee Status
POLICY NUMBER: 3116

3116.1 A "Regular Full-Time" employee is one who has been hired to fill a regular position in any job classifica-
tion. Regular full-time employees are regularly scheduled to work at least forty (40) hours per week, are not tem-
porary employees, and who have successfully completed the probationary period.

3116.2 A "Probationary" employee is one who has been hired to fill a regular position in any job classification
and has less than twelve (12) continuous months of service with the District. Upon completion of twelve (12)
months of continuous service with the District in said classification, and upon the Personnel Director’s [or other
responsible managing employee] decision to retain said employee, said employee shall be granted regular em-
ployee status.

a) A probationary employee will receive not less than the minimum rate for the job and will be eligible for
sick leave pay, holiday pay, vacation pay, insurance coverage or items of a similar nature, as he or she
becomes eligible. A probationary employee will not be eligible for a leave of absence.

b) The General Manager, in conjunction with the employee’s supervisor, may elect to extend the proba-
tionary period for any employee up to an additional three (3) months.

3116.3 A "Temporary" employee is one who is hired to work within any job classification, but whose position is
not regular in nature. A temporary employee shall not work more than one thousand (1,000) hours in a fiscal
year.

a) Employees hired to replace a regular employee who is on a leave of absence shall be hired as tempo-
rary employees unless said leave of absence is in excess of one hundred eighty (180) days.

b) A temporary employee will receive not less than the minimum rate for the job, but will not be eligible for
sick leave pay, holiday pay, vacation pay, insurance coverage or items of a similar nature, nor will he or
she accrue seniority or leave of absence rights. A temporary employee may take time off without pay
with the approval of his or her supervisor or the General Manager and shall be permitted to take time off
for District-recognized holidays without pay.

c) Ifatemporary employee is reclassified to probationary or regular status, he or she will be credited with
all continuous service in determining eligibility for such benefits that may accrue to him or her in his or
her new status.

31164 A"Part-Time" employee is one who is hired to work within any job classification but whose position is
not regular in nature. The part-time employee works whenever the District's workload increases to a level that
regular employees cannot accommodate it. He or she also works standby as discussed in Policy #3112, "Hours
of Work and Overtime."

3116.5 An “Exempt” employee is an employee who is exempt from the minimum wage and overtime require-
ments of the Federal Fair Labor and Standard Act (‘FLSA”). To be considered “exempt”, an employee must
work in a bona fide executive, administrative, or professional capacity and be paid on a salary basis as required
by the FLSA. These positions shall be so designated in the classification plan.



3116.6 A “Non-Exempt” employee is an employee who is not a bona fide executive, administrative, or profes-
sional employee as defined by the FLSA. Non-exempt employees can earn overtime pay in accordance with the
overtime requirements of the FLSA.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON, CALIFQERIN Taddd o J077A1 =143 = FAX T07811-973

GRATOM
PEEEERIE SET=C P AT

POLICY TITLE:  Equal Opportunity
POLICY NUMBER: 3118

3118.1 The District employs persons having the best available skills to efficiently provide high quality service to
the public.

3118.2 The District provides equal opportunity for all persons in all aspects of employment, including recruit-
ment, selection, promotion, transfer, training, compensation, educational assistance, benefits, discipline,
working conditions, reduction in force, reinstatement, and all other matters of employment.

a) Such equality of opportunity shall be based solely on job related knowledge, skills, and job performance,
and shall be without discrimination because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, sexual ori-
entation, handicap, veteran status, or any other factor unrelated to job performance.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Grievance Procedure
POLICY NUMBER: 3120

3120.1  This policy shall apply to all regular employees in all classifications.

3120.2  The purpose of this policy is to provide a procedure by which an employee may formally claim that he
or she has been affected by a violation, misapplication, or misinterpretation of a law, District policy, rule, regula-
tion, or instruction.

3120.3  Specifically excluded from the grievance procedure are subjects involving the amendment of state or
federal law, resolutions adopted by the District's Board of Directors, ordinances or minute orders, including deci-
sions regarding wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment, and claims or complaints of alleged
discrimination or harassment.

31204  Grievance Procedure Steps.

3120.4.1  Level I, Preliminary Informal Resolution. Any employee who believes he or she has a
grievance shall present the evidence thereof orally to his or her immediate supervisor within five (5)
working days after the employee knew, or reasonably should have known, of the circumstances which
form the basis for the alleged grievance. The immediate supervisor shall hold discussions and attempt
to resolve the matter within ten (10) working days after the discussions. It is the intent of this informal
meeting that at least one (1) personal conference be held between the employee and the immediate
supervisor. If the grievance is against the employee’s supervisor, the employee may skip Level | and
advance to Level Il, provided he or she complies with all applicable time limits and other requirements
for Level |.

3120.4.2  Level I, General Manager. If the grievance has not been resolved at Level |, the grievant
may present his or her grievance in writing on a form provided by the District (attached hereto as Ap-
pendix "A") to the General Manager within ten (10) working days after the occurrence of the act or
omission giving rise to the grievance.

3120.4.2.1 The statement shall include the following:
a) A concise statement of the grievance including specific reference to any law,
policy, rule, regulation, and/or instruction deemed to be violated, misapplied or misin-
terpreted;
b) The circumstances involved;
C) The decision rendered by the immediate supervisor at Level I, if any;



3120.5

3120.6

d) The dates when: (i) the grievance was first discussed with the immediate su-
pervisor; (i) the Level | response was issued, and (iii) the employee submitted
the grievance to Level II; and

e) The specific remedy sought.

3120.4.2.2 The General Manager shall communicate his or her decision within ten (10)
calendar days after receiving the grievance. Decisions will be in writing setting forth the de-
cision and the reasons therefore and will be transmitted promptly to all parties in interest. If
the General Manager does not respond within the time limits, the grievant may appeal to
the next level. Time limits for appeal shall begin the day following receipt of the General
Manager's written decision. Within the above time limits, either party may request a per-
sonal conference with the other.

3120.4.3  Level lll, Board of Directors’ Personnel Committee. In the event the grievant is not satisfied
with the decision at Level Il, the grievant may appeal the decision in writing on a form provided by the
District (attached hereto as Appendix "A") to the District Board of Directors’ standing Personnel Com-
mittee within five (5) days. The statement shall include a copy of the original grievance; a copy of the
written decision by the General Manager; and a clear, concise statement of the reasons for the appeal
to Level IlI.

3120.4.3.1 The Personnel Committee shall, as soon as possible, schedule a hearing in
closed session to formally receive the written grievance and the answers thereto at each
step and to hear evidence regarding the issue or issues. The Committee’s decision shall
be announced in open session immediately after the closed session in which it was made.

Basic Rules.

3120.5.1  If an employee does not present the grievance, or does not appeal the decision rendered
regarding the grievance within the time limits specified above, the grievance shall be considered re-
solved.

3120.5.2 By agreement in writing, the parties may extend any and all time limitations specified
above.

3120.5.3 The General Manager may temporarily suspend grievance processing on a District-wide
basis in an emergency situation. Employees covered by this policy may appeal this decision to the
Board of Directors.

3120.54 A copy of all formal grievance decisions shall be placed in the employee's permanent per-
sonnel file.

Expungement of Written Reprimands: A written reprimand may be expunged upon sustained correc-
tive behavior, as determined by the General Manager, after a period of three (3) years from the date of
the reprimand. It is the responsibility of the employee to request that his or her personnel file be purged
of the written reprimand.



3120.6.1  The General Manager will consider the following factors in making his or her decision to
expunge a written reprimand:
a) whether the employee received further discipline of any kind;
b) employee’s performance evaluation reviews are at least satisfactory in all categories; and
c) thatonly one (1) expungement can occur during their employment with the District.



Appendix "A"
EMPLOYEE GRIEVANCE FORM
[DISTRICT NAME]
Employee's Name: Date:

Statement of grievance, including specific reference to any law, policy, rule, regulation and/or instruction deemed
to be violated, misapplied or misinterpreted:

Circumstances involved:

Decision rendered by the informal conference:

Specific remedy sought:



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
—n PERSONNEL
POLICY TITLE: Hours of Work and Overtime
POLICY NUMBER: 3122

3122.1  This policy shall apply to all non-exempt employees.

3122.2  The regular hours of work each day shall be consecutive except for interruptions for meal periods and
breaks, or as otherwise approved by the General Manager in writing.

3122.3 A work week is defined to consist of seven (7) consecutive calendar days, Sunday through Saturday,
and, except as otherwise provided herein, a basic work week is defined to consist of five (5) consecutive work
days of eight (8) hours each, Monday through Friday. The regular work hours shall be 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
with one (1) hour off for lunch. A majority of employees may request a change of regular work hours, for their
division, with the written consent of the General Manager, so that the regular work hours may be revised to ac-
commodate needs of the public, such as 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. with one (1) hour off for lunch.

Regular work hours may be modified as outlined in an applicable Memorandum of Understanding between the
District and a District-recognized bargaining unit.

31224  Overtime is defined as:
e Time worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a work week;
e Time worked in excess of eight (8) hours on a scheduled work day if a five (5) day, eight (8) hour per
day work week is in effect; or,
e Time worked in excess of scheduled hours on a scheduled work day if an alternative work day is in ef-
fect such as a four (4) day, ten (10) hour per day work week is in effect; or,
e Time worked on a designated holiday.

3122.5 All overtime work shall be authorized in advance by the General Manager, or his or her designee, spe-
cifically vested with this authority. Employees working overtime without prior approval by the appropriate individ-
ual may be subject to discipline.

3122.6 A schedule is maintained by the [insert Department] department head and approved by the General
Manager whereby [operations employees, fire employees, emergency services employees] may be assigned on
a rotational basis to be “on-call” on weekends, holidays, and other times not considered regular hours of work for
the District employees or assigned to work alternative workweeks.

31226.1  On-Call/Weekday Duty employees are paid [$ per hour rate for each weekday they
are on-call. If these employees are called into work during this time, they will be paid for any on-call
hours worked at the standard overtime rate.



31226.2  On-Call employees receive [$ per hour rate per day for each holiday or weekend
day they are assigned to on-call duty.

3122.6.3  When an employee is on-call, he or she shall be provided a District cell phone. The cell
phone will be used to notify the on-call employees in the event of work immediately needed. The one-
call employee is required to keep the cell phone in his or her possession during the entire on-call period
of time. Notification of immediate work needed may also be given orally, in person, or telephonically, by
the General Manager or the employee’s supervisor.

When an employee is assigned to on-call duty, he or she shall be free to utilize his or her time as de-

sired, but must be able to respond within thirty (30) minutes to any District facility. This will enable the

on-call employee time to return to work in the event of an emergency call. On-call employees need to
remain unimpaired (e.g., refraining from drinking alcoholic beverages or marijuana usage) and able to
perform all duties when on-call.

3122.64  If an employee is not on-call and he or she is called back to work, the employee will re-
ceive one (1) hour of call back pay, which is one (1) hour of regular pay at straight time plus pay for his
or her hours worked (at straight pay or overtime rate depending on whether they have worked over forty
(40) hours in the week).



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Letters of Recommendation
POLICY NUMBER: 3124

3124.1 The Board of Directors recognizes that the District faces exposure to significant liability through the pro-
vision of letters of recommendation by District employees. The Board finds that it is, therefore, in the best interest
of the District to ensure that letters of recommendation issued by individuals in their capacity as District employ-
ees, or which could be reasonably interpreted as written in the individual’s capacity as a District employee, be
accurate and conform to all requirements of law. Therefore, the General Manager, or his or her designee, is di-
rected to create and implement a practice whereby all letters of recommendation are reviewed and approved by
the General Manager, or his or her designee, before dissemination.

312411 The General Manager or designee shall process all requests for references, letters of rec-
ommendation, or information about the reasons for separation regarding all District employees other
than himself or herself. All letters of recommendation to be issued on behalf of the District for current or
former employees must be approved by the General Manager or his or her designee.

3124.1.2  Athis or her discretion, the General Manager, or his or her designee, may refuse to give a
recommendation. Any recommendation he or she gives shall provide a careful, truthful, and complete
account of the employee’s job performance and qualifications.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
wmurlip secdcer dhine PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Nepotism
POLICY NUMBER: 3126

3126.1 ltis the policy of Graton Community Services District to seek for its staff the best possible candidates
through appropriate search procedures. There shall be no bars to appointment of individuals who have
close relatives in any staff category in the same or different departments so long as the following stand-
ard is met:

3126.1.1  No employee shall vote, make recommendations, or in any way participate in decisions
about any personnel matter that may directly affect the selection, appointment, promotion, termination,
other employment status, or interest of a close relative.

3126.1.1.1 For the purpose of this policy, "close relative" is defined as husband, wife, mother,
father,son, daughter, sister, brother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, sister-in-law and brother-in-law.

3126.2 When an individual is considered for appointment in a department in which an immediate family
member is already assigned, review of this fact shall be required at all appointing levels. The objective of this
review shall be to assure equity to all members of the department.

3126.3 When an individual is considered for appointment in a department where a close relative has su-
pervisory responsibility, the appointment shall not be granted.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Payroll Deductions for Salaried Employees
POLICY NUMBER: 3128

3128.1 Employees paid on a “salary basis” regularly receive a predetermined amount of compensation each
pay period. Subject to the exceptions listed below, a salaried employee will receive his or her full salary for any
work week in which he or she performs any work, regardless of the number of days or hours worked. A salaried
employee may not be paid for any work week in which he or she performs no work, subject to the District’s bene-
fits programs and policies.

3128.2 No deductions from salary may be made for time when work is not available, provided the salaried em-
ployee is ready, willing, and able to work. Deductions from pay are permissible when a salaried employee:

e Is absent from work for one (1) or more full days for personal reasons other than sickness or disa-

bility;

o Isabsentfor one (1) or more full days due to sickness or disability if the deduction is made in ac-
cordance with a plan, policy, or practice of providing compensation for salary lost due to illness;
Is absent for military duty and performs no work during the time off;
Works less than a full week during the initial or final week of employment;
Violates safety rules of major significance; or
Violates written workplace conduct rules applicable to all employees and is suspended without pay
for one (1) or more full days.

3128.3 Itis [DISTRICT] policy to comply with these salary basis requirements. Therefore, [DISTRICT] prohibits
all employees and managers from making any improper deductions from the salaries of exempt employees.
[DISTRICT] wants employees to be aware of this policy and know that [DISTRICT] does not allow deductions
that violate Federal or State law.

3128.4 If you believe that an improper deduction from your salary has been made, you should immediately re-
port this information to your direct supervisor.

3128.5 Reports of improper deductions will be investigated promptly. If it is determined that an improper deduc-
tion has occurred, you will be promptly reimbursed for any improper deduction made.

3128.6 Every employee is required to submit a Form W-4 at the beginning of each year to direct the payroll
staff to make appropriate Federal and State income tax deductions.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Recruitment and Hiring
POLICY NUMBER: 3134

Recruitment:

31341 Announcement: All recruitments for classification vacancies within the District shall be publicized by
such methods as the General Manager deems appropriate, consistent with District standards. Special recruiting
shall be conducted, if necessary, to ensure that all segments of the community are aware of the forthcoming
examination(s). Announcements shall specify the title and compensation of the classification; the nature of the
work to be performed delineating the essential and marginal functions of the job; the minimum qualifications for
the classification; the manner of making application; the examination components; and other pertinent infor-
mation.

3134.2  Applications: Every applicant for examination shall file a formal, signed District employment application.
Other methods of acceptable application due to an applicant's disability will be considered. Application forms
shall require information covering training, experience, and other pertinent information as required by the Gen-
eral Manager. The General Manager may also require applicants to submit additional job related information.

3134.3 Examinations: Examinations for the establishment of eligibility lists shall be competitive and by such
character shall test and determine the qualifications, fitness, and ability of applicants to perform the essential
functions of the classifications for which they seek appointment.

The examination may include an investigation of character, personality, education, experience, criminal history,
credit bureau, drug & alcohol and any tests of intelligence, capacity, technical knowledge, manual skill, or job-
related physical fitness that the General Manager deems appropriate.

The General Manager shall designate the procedure, time, place, and type of examination, the conditions under
which it may be conducted, and the individual or competent agency who will conduct the examination. The Dis-
trict will make every reasonable effort to accommodate disabled applicants in the administration of employment
tests in accordance with applicable law. Examinations may be promotional, open, or continuous as directed by
the General Manager. In making a decision regarding the type of examination, the General Manager will consid-
er the availability of qualified interested personnel in the District workforce, the possible Affirmative Action impli-
cations, and the need for expediency in filling the position.

3134.3.1  Open/Promotional Examinations: Any person who meets the requirements set forth in the
open/promotional examination announcement may compete in open/promotional examinations. The
General Manager may adopt and implement objective standards to initially screen applications in order
to reduce the number of applicants to a manageable size.

3134.3.2  Promotional Examinations: Regular and non-regular employees, except temporary em-



ployees, who meet the requirements set forth in the promotional examination announcement may com-
pete in a promotional examination announcement.

3132.3.3  Continuous Examinations. Continuous examinations may be administered periodically for
a single classification. Names shall be placed on eligibility lists and shall remain on such lists as pre-
scribed in Section 3134.4

3134.4  Eligibility Lists

313441  Establishment: As soon as possible after the completion of an examination, the General
Manager shall prepare and maintain an eligibility list consisting of the names of the applicants or em-
ployees who qualified in the examination. The names on the list shall be in order based on each appli-
cant's competitive score for the examination process, with the highest score being first on the list. Each
applicant or employee shall be given notice of the results of his or her examination and ranking on the
eligibility list.

Applicants on the eligibility list for a particular classification may be certified by the General Manager
for consideration to hire for a classification in an equal or lower salary range in the event that an eligibil-
ity list for that classification does not exist, provided that the applicant is qualified. This may be done
only with the approval of the General Manager. Applicants will not be removed from the eligibility list
pursuant to Section 3134.4.3 if they refuse to accept employment in the lower classification.

3134.4.2  Duration of Lists: All eligibility lists shall remain in effect until exhausted or abolished by the
General Manager for due cause. As a general policy, eligibility lists shall remain in effect for not more
than one (1) year. Eligibility lists may remain in effect for more than one (1) year at the General Man-
ager's discretion. The General Manager may abolish eligibility lists with three (3) names or less before
the one (1) year expires.

31344.3 Removal of Names from Eligibility Lists: The General Manager may remove a name of any
eligible candidate appearing on an eligibility list if:
e The eligible candidate requests that his or her name be removed;
The eligible candidate fails to provide notification of a change in address;
The eligible candidate fails to attend a scheduled interview;
The eligible candidate declined an interview on two (2) occasions;
The eligible candidate declined an offer of employment;
The eligible candidate was on an eligibility list as a result of a promotional examination and
has subsequently left District employment; or
e The eligible candidate was on a list for a specialized classification within one department of
the District and was determined to be unsuitable by the department head.

313444 Disqualification: At any point in the recruitment and selection process, the General Manag-
er may refuse to declare an applicant an eligible candidate, or may withhold or withdraw from certifica-
tion, prior to appointment by the General Manager, anyone who:
e Has failed to provide proof for any of the requirements established in the announcement
for the classification for which he or she applied;
e Has been convicted of a felony of such a nature as to have an adverse effect on the can-
didate's ability to perform the duties of the position;



e Has a history of dismissal from any position in public or private service for any cause which
would be a cause for dismissal from District employment;

e Has practiced or attempted to practice any deception or fraud in his or her application, ex-
amination, or in securing eligibility; or

e s otherwise not qualified for employment with the District.

Hiring:

3134.5 Decisions regarding employment are based upon an individual’'s qualifications for the applicable posi-
tion as described below.

313451 Vacancies: Employees of the District are encouraged to apply for any vacant positions for
which they are qualified. The District awards vacant positions to the applicants who are best suited to
meet the needs of the District, regardless of whether the applicant is a current District employee or not.

If a vacancy is awarded to a current regular employee, that employee shall serve a three (3) month
probationary period in that position with continued benefits for health care, sick leave, vacation and
comp time-off. Within three (3) months of the move to the vacant position, the employee may return to
their previous position with written notice to and approval by the General Manager, so long as the posi-
tion has not been filled.

313452  Selection of employees. All persons considered for employment with the District shall be
qualified to perform the duties of the position for which they are employed. Before reporting for their first
day of work, employees may be required to undergo a medical examination and drug/alcohol testing,
which confirms their ability to perform the essential functions of the job.
a) Citizenship Verification: All employees must provide necessary documentation to prove
identity and their right to work in the United States in accordance with Federal and State
Immigration and Naturalization laws. Failure to provide such documentation will result in
disqualification from selection or immediate termination.

3134.5.3  Probationary Period. The purpose of the probationary period is to give the District and the
new employee the opportunity to determine whether employment relationship suits both parties. New
employees may be eligible for health benefits under the Affordable Care Act after ninety (90) days of
employment, if not enrolled in the District’s health care coverage. During the probationary period, the
District evaluates the employee’s job performance, and it is expected that the employee will use this
time period to determine whether the District employment is satisfactory to him or her. Generally, em-
ployee evaluations may be performed at three (3) months and/or six (6) months after the date of hire
and shall be performed at the end of the twelve (12) month probationary period. The employee’s super-
visor will conduct a written performance evaluation to ascertain the advisability of continued employ-
ment on a regular basis. However, written evaluations may be done at any time during the probationary
period if determined to be necessary by the Supervisor or the General Manager.

Regardless of whether the supervisor completes a written performance evaluation, probationary em-
ployees are at-will and the District retains the right to terminate employment with or without cause, dur-
ing the probationary period, in accordance with California law. Similarly, the probationary employee can
end his or her employment at any time with at least two (2) weeks'’ written notice.



New employees hired for regular positions serve a probationary period of twelve (12) months, com-
mencing with their first day of employment. The General Manager, in conjunction with the employee’s
supervisor, may extend the probationary period one or more times if it is determined that such an ex-
tension is appropriate. The status of regular employment following the probationary period shall only oc-
cur after a successful evaluation has taken place, and only if confirmed in writing by the District.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
T PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Separation from District Employment

POLICY NUMBER: 3136

3136.1 Resignation: To leave District service in good standing, an employee must file a written notice of

resignation with the General Manager at least two (2) weeks before the effective date of separation of employ-
ment from the District. The General Manager may, however, grant good standing with less notice if he or she
determines the circumstances warrant. Resignations may not be withdrawn without the General Manager's ap-
proval.

3136.2 Layoffs: Whenever, in the judgment of the District Board of Directors, it becomes necessary, due to
the lack of work, lack of funds, or other economic reason, or because the necessity for a position no longer ex-
ists, the Board of Directors may abolish any position of employment, and the employee holding such position
may be laid off or offered the option of moving to another position within the District, if a position is available and
if the employee is qualified without disciplinary action and without the right of appeal.

3136.2.1  Notification: Employees to be laid off will be given, whenever possible, at least fourteen
calendar days prior notice, if possible.

3136.2.2  Order of Layoff: Employees are generally laid off in the inverse order of their seniority in
their classification in the department, although this order is subject to business needs. Seniority is de-
termined based upon date of hire in the department. Within each class, and subject to business needs,
employees will generally be laid off in the following order: temporary, part-time, probationary, and regu-
lar.

In cases where there are two (2) or more employees in the classification in the department from which
the layoff is to be made who have the same seniority date, such employees will be laid off on the basis
of the last evaluation rating in the class, providing such rating has been on file at least thirty (30) days
and no more than twelve (12) months prior to lay off, as follows: (1) all employees having ratings of “im-
provement needed;” (2) all employees having ratings of “competent;” (3) all employees having rating of
‘outstanding.”

3136.2.3  Transfer in Lieu of Layoff: An employee affected by layoff may be transferred to a vacant
position within the same or comparable classification, or a vacant position in any former classification,
first within the affected department and then District-wide, which the employee once held as a regular
employee, provided that the employee meets the minimum qualifications of said positions and the com-
pensation is at the same or lower rate of pay.

3136.24  Re-employment Rights for Laid Off Employees: Regular employees who have been laid off
shall be automatically placed on a re-employment list for two (2) years from the date of layoff for the
classification from which they were laid off.



3136.2.5  Mass Layoff: If the District finds it necessary to enforce a mass layoff, it must provide at
least a sixty (60) day notice prior to the mass layoff. A mass layoff is defined as job loss for at least fifty
(50) employees in a thirty (30) day period. California’s WARN Act, codified in Labor Code Sections
1400-1408, also applies to the closing of an industrial or commercial facility with at least seventy-five
(75) employees, or the relocation of an industrial or commercial facility with at least seventy-five (75)
employees to a location at least one hundred (100) miles away.

3136.3 Dismissal of Regular Employees. A regular employee may be dismissed at any time by the General
Manager for cause and after following the proper disciplinary termination procedures as outlined in the “Discipli-
nary Termination” section of these policies.

3136.3.1 A probationary employee may be terminated at any time during a probationary period
without right of appeal or hearing. In case of such termination, the General Manager shall notify the pro-
bationary employee in writing that he or she is being separated from District service.

3136.3.2  Dismissal of the General Manager shall be as outlined in the employment agreement be-
tween the General Manager and the District.

3136.4 Exit Interview: For the purpose of ascertaining potential eligibility for unemployment insurance
benefits, all employees separating from the District for any reason shall be given an interview prior to termina-
tion. The interview shall be conducted by a representative of the General Manager and shall produce specific
information as to the causes and reasons for the separation. The information shall be recorded on a standard
form provided by the District, which the employee shall be required to sign. A copy of the complete report shall
be transmitted to the employee’s immediate supervisor and General Manager for comment and be returned for
retention in the employee’s personnel file.

3136.5 Property Return Agreement. Upon employment with the District, each employee may complete a
Property Return Agreement if they receive any District property. Property includes, but is not limited to, laptops,
cell phones, PDAs, equipment, keys, reports, proprietary information, and any other job related materials. All
District property must be returned prior to departure.

3136.6 Employment Reference Checks: All inquiries regarding a current or former District employee must
be referred to the General Manager. Should an employee receive a written request for a reference, he or she
must refer the request to the General Manager for handling. Employees may not issue a reference letter to any
current or former employee without the permission of the General Manager.

Under no circumstances should an employee release any information about a current or former employee over
the telephone. All telephone inquiries regarding any current or former employees of the District must be referred
to the District Manager.

In response to an outside request for information regarding a current or former District employee, the General
Manager will only verify an employee’s name, date of employment, and job title. No other data regarding any
current or former District employee will be released unless the employee authorizes the District to release such
information in writing, or the District is required by law to furnish any information.

If, however, an employee is contacted to give a personal reference regarding a current or former District em-
ployee, he or she is permitted to do so and should emphasize to the inquirer that the reference is personal only



and not on behalf of the District. Failure to follow these directions may be cause for disciplinary action up to and
including termination.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
wmurlip secdcer dhine PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Temporary Reclassifications
POLICY NUMBER: 3138

3138.1 The [DISTRICT] General Manager may temporarily assign an employee to perform work normally per-
formed by another employee or position classification at a different level or salary.

3138.2 An employee temporarily assigned to perform work of a lower paid classification shall not have his or
her salary reduced, and an employee temporarily assigned to perform work of a higher paid classification shall
receive compensation equal to either the lowest salary step for that position that would provide for an increase in
pay or five percent (5%), whichever is less, for all time spent in the acting position in excess of four (4) consecu-
tive work weeks. An approved reclassification shall continue only until such time as the employee is returned to
his or her original job duties.

3138.3 Temporary assignments to a higher or lower paid class need to be in writing and approved by the Gen-
eral Manager in advance.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM
— PERSONNEL
POLICY TITLE: Unlawful Harassment
POLICY NUMBER: 3140

3140.1 Harassment and discrimination in employment on the basis of sex, race, color, national origin, ancestry,
citizenship, religion, age, physical or mental disability, medical condition, sexual orientation, gender identity or
gender expression, veteran status, marital status, registered domestic partner status, genetic information, or any
other protected basis is prohibited by federal and state law. The District does not tolerate unlawful discrimination
or harassment in the workplace or in a work-related situation. Unlawful discrimination and harassment is a viola-
tion of these Guidelines. Section 3140 shall also include and applied to members of the District Board of Direc-
tors including the use of complaint procedures described herein.

3140.2 Unlawful harassment in employment may take many forms. Some examples include, but are not limited
to:
Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory comments, slurs, or unwanted comments and jokes;
Visual conduct such as derogatory posters, cartoons, drawings, or gestures;
Physical conduct such as blocking normal movement, restraining, touching, or otherwise physically
interfering with work of another individual;
Threatening or demanding that an individual submit to certain conduct or to perform certain actions
in order to keep or get a job, to avoid some other loss, or as a condition of job benefits, security, or
promotion; and
Retaliation by any of the above means for having reported harassment or discrimination, or having
assisted another employee to report harassment or discrimination.

3140.3 Sexual harassment under state and federal laws is defined as unwelcomed sexual advances, requests
for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

e Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individu-
al's employment;

e Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment
decisions affecting such individual;

e  Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with a person’s work perfor-
mance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment; or adversely affected the
employee’s performance, appraisal, assigned duties, or any other condition of employment or ca-
reer development; or

e Such conduct is offered in order to receive special treatment or in exchange for or in consideration of
any personal action.

3140.4 Prohibited acts of sexual harassment can take a variety of forms ranging from unwanted verbal or



physical actions, subtle pressure for sexual activity to physical assault. Sexual harassment conduct need not be
motivated by sexual desire. Examples of the kinds of conduct included in the definition of sexual harassment
are:

314041 Direct or indirect threats or suggestions of sexual relations or sexual contact which is not
freely or mutually agreeable to both parties.

3140.4.2  Continual or repeated verbal abuses of a sexual nature including graphic commentaries on
the person’s body; sexually suggestive objects or pictures placed in the work area that may embarrass
or offend the person, sexually degrading words to describe the person, or propositions of a sexual na-
ture.

3140.5 Abusive conduct or workplace bullying of the District's employees, by any person in or from the work
environment, is strictly prohibited. Abusive conduct or workplace bullying is the conduct of any employer or em-
ployee in the workplace, with malice, that a reasonable person would find hostile, offensive, and unrelated to an
employer’s legitimate business interest. Abusive conduct or workplace bullying includes, but is not limited to:

e Repeated infliction of verbal abuse;

e Derogatory remarks, insults, epithets;

e Verbal or physical conduct that a reasonable person would find threatening, intimidating, or humili-

ating; or
e Gratuitous sabotage or undermining of a person’s work performance.

3140.6 Policy Publicizing. All employees shall be informed of the District’s unlawful harassment policy and
complaint process prior to their need to know, and again when any complaint is filed. Also, said policy and com-
plaint process shall be readily available to all employees and members of the general public utilizing the District's
facilities and services.

3140.6.1  Allnew employees shall be given a copy of the sexual harassment policy at the time of hir-
ing and said policy’s contents shall be discussed with said employee at that time by the division manag-
er within whose division they will be working.

3140.6.2  Anannual bulletin shall be prepared and distributed to all employees informing them of the
District’s sexual harassment policy.

3140.7 Complaint Process. Any employee who believes he or she is the victim of unlawful harassment, abusive
conduct, or discrimination on any prohibited basis, or who has observed such conduct, or believes he or she is
subject to retaliation (“Unlawful Harassment”) may file a formal or informal confidential complaint without fear of
reprisal or embarrassment.

3140.7.1  Aninformal complaint is made verbally by the employee to the immediate supervisor. Alt-
hough filing the complaint with the immediate supervisor is preferred, the employee is free
to file a complaint with any supervisory employee.

3140.7.2  Aformal complaint is made in writing, using the “Employee Grievance Form,” see "Appen-
dix A" in Policy #3120. Said form should be submitted by the employee to their immediate
supervisor. Although submitting the formal complaint with the immediate supervisor is pre-
ferred, the employee is free to submit a formal complaint with any supervisory employee,
or with the President of the Board of Directors, if the employee’s immediate supervisor is



the General Manager and the General Manager is unavailable or personally involved in
said complaint.

3140.8 Complaint Response Process. Any supervisory employee who receives a formal or informal Unlawful
Harassment complaint shall at all times maintain the confidentiality of the plaintiff and shall personally deliver
said complaint immediately and directly to the division manager, or to the General Manager if the division man-
ager is unavailable or personally involved in said complaint.

3140.8.1  Within twenty-four (24) hours of the filing of a formal or informal complaint, an investigation
shall be conducted by the manager of the division, in cooperation with the Personnel Man-
ager, within which the alleged Unlawful Harassment occurred. Said investigation shall be
conducted by the General Manager if the division manager is unavailable or personally in-
volved in said complaint.

3140.8.2 A written record of any investigation of an alleged Unlawful Harassment shall be main-
tained. Findings will be sent to the General Manager. The General Manager shall immedi-
ately inform, in total confidentiality, the Personnel Committee of the Board if one exists or
the entire Board of Directors.

3140.8.3 Al discussions resulting from said investigation shall be kept confidential by all informed of
said investigation.

3140.84  The person initiating the complaint has the right to be accompanied by an advocate(s)
when discussing alleged incidents. Said person shall be advised of this right prior to the
commencement of such discussions.

3140.9 Disciplinary Procedures and Sanctions. Upon conclusion of the investigation of an alleged Unlawful
Harassment claim, appropriate action shall be taken by the General Manager against the harasser where Un-
lawful Harassment is found, including mandatory sexual harassment training to prevent future incidents. What-
ever punishment given to the harasser shall be made known to the victim of the Unlawful Harassment.

3140.9.1  Appropriate action shall be taken to remedy the victim’s loss, if any, resulting from the Un-
lawful Harassment. Making the employee whole may involve reinstatement, back pay, promotion, etc.

3140.9.2  Action taken to remedy a sexual harassment situation shall be done in a manner so as to
protect potential future victims. An employee involved in a confirmed incident shall be removed from su-
pervision of a person verified to have committed a harassment activity.

3140.10 Retaliation. Retaliation against any individual for making a report, or for participating in an investigation,
under this policy is strictly prohibited. Individuals are protected by law and by District policy from retalia-
tion for opposing unlawful discriminatory practices, for filing an internal complaint under this policy or
for filing a complaint with the DFEH or EEQOC, or for otherwise participating in any proceedings con-
ducted by the District under this policy or by either of these agencies.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATON
— e PERSONNEL
POLICY TITLE: ~ Whistleblowing Policy
POLICY NUMBER: 3142
3142.1 It is the policy of Graton Community Services District that its employees should be free to report

violations of law, abuse of authority, fraud, economic waste, or gross misconduct, incompetence or inefficiency
without fear of retaliation or retribution. This policy is based on a finding that the Graton Community Services
District best serves itself and its membership when it can be candid and honest without reservation in conducting
the business of the Graton Community Services District.

The Graton Community Services District prohibits retaliation by employees, Board members or volunteers
against any staff member, Board member or volunteer for making good faith complaints, reports or inquiries re-
garding illegal or improper activities under this policy to the Graton Community Services District or any law en-
forcement agency, or for participating in a review or investigation of any such complaints under this policy. This
protection extends to those whose allegations are made in good faith, but prove to be mistaken. The Graton
Community Services District reserves the right to discipline persons who make bad faith, knowingly false, or
vexatious complaints or reports regarding alleged illegal or improper activities, or who otherwise abuse this poli-

cy.

Therefore, the purpose of this policy is to: (1) encourage staff, Board members and volunteers to report to the
Graton Community Services District any credible information in their possession regarding illegal or improper
activities and/or retaliation as defined herein, including violations of the Graton Community Services District's
policies, promptly to those members of the Graton Community Services District specified in this policy; and (2)
prohibit the Graton Community Services District's Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer (General Manager)
and supervising employees from retaliating against any employee who reports illegal or improper activities to the
Graton Community Services District or law enforcement agencies as provided herein; and (3) specify a proce-
dure by which information regarding illegal or improper activities of or retaliation by members of the Board of
Directors or employees can be reported to the Graton Community Services District and investigated; and (4)
provide a hearing process to any employee or Board member who has filed a written complaint with the Graton
Community Services District alleging actual or attempted acts of retaliation in response to having made a pro-
tected disclosure to the Graton Community Services District or law enforcement protected by this policy.

3142.2 Definitions:

a) "llegal Order" means a directive to violate or assist in violating a federal, state or local law, rule or regu-
lation, or an order to an employee to work or cause others to work in conditions outside of their scope of
duty that could unreasonably threaten the health and safety of employees or the public.

b) "lllegal or Improper Activity" means an activity by a member of the Board of Directors, an employee, or a
volunteer of the Graton Community Services District that is undertaken in the performance of that per-
son's duties that is either: (1) a violation of any state or federal law or regulation including, but not limited
to, corruption, malfeasance, bribery, theft of property, fraud, coercion, conversion, abuse of property or
willful omission to perform a duty; or (2) violates Graton Community Services District policies, is eco-
nomically wasteful, or involves gross misconduct, incompetency, or inefficiency. lllegal or Improper Ac-
tivity includes alleged financial, accounting or audit improprieties and alleged ethical violations by em-
ployees or Board members



c) "Protected Disclosure" means a good faith communication from an employee or Board member of the
Graton Community Services District to the Graton Community Services District or law enforcement
agencies that discloses information that may be evidence of lllegal or Improper Activity.

d) "Retaliation" means an employee or director using or attempting to use his or her official authority or in-
fluence over an employee to intimidate, threaten, or coerce any employee in order to interfere with the
rights of employees to freely report lllegal or Improper Activity to the Graton Community Services Dis-
trict or a law enforcement agency. Retaliation includes, but is not limited to, promising to confer, or con-
ferring any benefit; affecting or threatening to affect any reprisal; or taking or directing others to take,
recommend, or approve any personnel action against an employee making a Protected Disclosure in-
cluding, but not limited to, demotion, transfer, assignment, performance evaluation, suspension, or other
disciplinary action including termination.

3142.3 Encouragement of reporting of illegal or improper activity: Graton Community Services District en-
courages employees and members of the Board to file complaints or reports about lllegal Orders or lllegal or
Improper Activity or alleged Retaliation with the General Manager. All such complaints shall include specific facts
supporting any allegation of lllegal or Improper Activity, or Retaliation, as defined by this policy. Complaints of
lllegal or Improper Activity or Retaliation may be made anonymously, but such anonymity may impede the ability
of the Graton Community Services District to conduct a thorough investigation. If the General Manager is alleged
to be involved in the complaint or report, then such complaint shall be filed with the President of the Board of
Directors. If the President of the Board is also alleged to be involved in the complaint, then the complaint or re-
port shall be filed with the Graton Community Services District]'s General Counsel.

Other allegations with respect to which the Graton Community Services District has existing complaint, griev-
ance or appeal procedures as specified in the Graton Community Services District policies should be addressed
pursuant to those procedures, such as issues of alleged discrimination or harassment which are processed by
the Graton Community Services District’s human resources department.

This policy is not intended to provide a procedure for the filing of employee or Board member complaints regard-
ing any employment issues other than whistleblowing activities and protection of employees from Retaliation for
making Protected Disclosures.

31424 Investigations of Allegations of lllegal or Improper Activity: The General Manager may request that
a person submitting a complaint alleging lllegal or Improper Activity provide his or her name and contact infor-
mation and provide the names and contact information for any persons who could help substantiate the claim.
However, this information is not required in order to submit a complaint.

Upon receiving a complaint from any employee or member of the Board that an employee or Board member has
engaged in an lllegal or Improper Activity, the General Manager will conduct an investigation of the allegations in
the complaint. The identity of the person filing the complaint, or of any person providing information in confidence
regarding the facts in the complaint shall not be disclosed without the express permission of the person providing
the information. However, the General Manager may disclose the facts in the complaint to a law enforcement
agency in the event that an allegation of criminal conduct is contained in the complaint filed with the Graton
Community Services District. The General Manager may request the assistance of Graton Community Services
District, General Counsel and/or any outside consultant for assistance in evaluating an allegation of lllegal or
Improper Activity or conducting an investigation of lllegal or Improper Activity as authorized by this policy. The
General Manager shall investigate the allegations in the complaint and prepare a report of the results of the in-
vestigation within sixty (60) days of the date of the complaint.

If, upon completion of the investigation, the General Manager finds that an employee or Board member may



have engaged or participated in an lllegal or Improper Activity, the General Manager shall make such findings in
the investigative report and include recommended actions to prevent the continuation or recurrence of the lllegal
or Improper Activity. Such recommendations may include taking disciplinary action against those employees
found to have violated this policy, which action may be taken by the General Manager. The investigative report
may also recommend imposing sanctions, including loss of office, on those Board members found to have vio-
lated this policy. In that event the report shall be filed with the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors
which shall comply with the policies of the Graton Community Services District in initiating discipline against a
member of the Board of Directors. The Graton Community Services District shall keep confidential all investiga-
tion work product including the investigative report.

3142.5 Complaints of Retaliation and Investigation. An employee or volunteer who believes he or she has
been subjected to Retaliation as defined and prohibited by this policy shall file a written complaint with the Gen-
eral Manager which specifies the alleged retaliatory conduct and identifies the individuals allegedly engaged in
such conduct.

Upon receipt of the complaint the General Manager shall commence an investigation of the allegations con-
tained in the complaint of Retaliation, which shall include interviews of the complainant and any potential wit-
nesses. The General Manager may utilize the services of Graton Community Services District General Counsel
and/or other consultants in conducting such investigation and preparing an investigation report. A written investi-
gation report regarding the alleged Retaliation shall be completed within thirty (30) days of receipt of a complaint
of Retaliation.

Based on the investigation, the General Manager shall make a determination as to whether Retaliation occurred
in violation of this policy and, if so, what steps should be taken to remedy the situation. The General Manager’s
decision shall be communicated to the complaining employee. In making his or her determination, if it is alleged
that improper disciplinary action was taken against the complaining employee in Retaliation for having made a
Protected Disclosure, the General Manager shall consider whether the taking or failing to take any personnel
action with respect to an employee who has complained of Retaliation is justified on the basis of evidence sepa-
rate and apart from the fact that the person has made a Protected Disclosure, such as inadequate job perfor-
mance. If the evidence in the investigation reveals that a Protected Disclosure was a contributing factor in the
alleged Retaliation against a former or current employee, the burden of proof shall be on the supervisor or other
employee imposing the discipline to demonstrate by clear and convincing evidence that the alleged personnel
action would have occurred for legitimate, independent reasons even if the complaining employee had not en-
gaged in Protected Disclosures of lllegal or Improper Activity.

The investigation report of the alleged Retaliation prepared by the General Manager shall include a written deci-
sion as to whether this policy has been violated. If the investigation report concludes that this policy has not been
violated and the complaining employee disagrees with the determination of the General Manager, the complain-
ing employee may appeal in writing the decision to the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors. That ap-
peal must be filed within ten (10) business days of receipt of the investigation report and decision of the General
Manager.

If an appeal is filed, the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors shall conduct a hearing of the complain-
ing employee's appeal and hear and receive all evidence submitted by the complaining employee. In hearing the
appeal, the Executive Committee may take evidence, and hear testimony from the complaining employee and
other witnesses. The Executive Committee shall consider whether an activity protected by this policy was a con-
tributing factor in the alleged Retaliation against the complaining employee and if the alleged retaliatory action
could have occurred for legitimate, independent business reasons even if the complaining employee had not
made Protected Disclosures. The Executive Committee shall render a final decision in writing to the complaining



employee within thirty (30) days after completing the hearing which concludes whether Retaliation prohibited by
this policy has occurred or not. If the Executive Committee finds that the provisions of this policy have been vio-
lated, it shall order that any personnel action taken against the complaining employee be reversed and that a
memorandum be placed in the employee's personnel file indicating the results of the decision of the Executive
Committee of the Board of Directors on appeal.

A complaining employee shall be required to exhaust his or her administrative remedies by filing an appeal with
the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors regarding any alleged violation of this policy before being
entitled to commence a civil action in the Superior Court.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM

POLICY TITLE: Dress Code & Personal Standards
POLICY NUMBER: 3200

3200.1 At [DISTRICT], professional image is important and is maintained, in part, by the image that employees
present to members, visitors, vendors, and others in our business. In choosing appropriate work attire, employ-
ees should consider factors including tastefulness, anticipated requirement for public contact, the nature of the
job, and working conditions.

3200.1.1  Allemployees who are required to wear uniforms shall wear the appropriate uniform for
their work area. If an employee is governed by an MOU, the employee should follow the rules pertaining
to his or her dress code as outlined in the relevant MOU. Employees are permitted to wear the uniform
only during their work hours, work time, or traveling to and from work, or while representing the District.
Employees shall not wear his or her District uniform while off-duty.

3200.2 [DISTRICT] expects all employees to use good judgment and taste in matters of personal grooming and
dress. Good judgment includes consideration for both [DISTRICT] and its constituents and clients. Attire should
be in keeping with the dignity and image of a professional office. Employees should always be neat and clean in
appearance, dressed in reasonably professional and conservative attire, and conduct themselves in a business-
like manner.

3200.2.1  No visible tattoos are allowed anywhere on the head, face, or neck, unless for religious
reasons or purposes that the employee professes or provides information of religious affiliation or asso-
ciate. Any visible tattoos cannot be obscene, sexually explicit, or otherwise violate the District’s policy
against unlawful harassment or discrimination. Extremist or gang-related tattoos are also not permitted.
All non-conforming tattoos must be covered with clothing or a bandage while at work, or must be re-
moved.

3200.2.2  No objects, articles, jewelry or ornamentation of any kind shall be attached to or through
the skin if visible on any body part (including the tongue or any part of the mouth) except that an em-
ployee may wear two sets (i.e., four holes total) of reasonable-sized (i.e., small and professional-
looking) earrings in the ear lobe. Piercings as described herein shall be allowed if the employee pro-
vides information of religious affiliation or association related to his or her piercings. Any non-conforming
piercing shall be removed, covered with a bandage, or replaced with a clear, plastic spacer while the
employee is working.

3200.3 In all cases, supervisors will assist employees to determine what is considered appropriate attire for the
particular situation. The following is offered as a general guideline:

Business Casual Attire (Monday through Friday): No jeans, t-shirts, exposed midriffs, low cut tops show-
ing cleavage, tops with spaghetti straps, tube-tops, halter tops, sweats, shorts, tennis shoes, flip flops, or other
informal or inappropriate attire.



FEATDNCUMMUNIT? E@Frr:wr_*as DisTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 « FAX 1078113713

GRATOM

Business Attire (Board & Special Meetings): Generally will include suits, sport coats, dress shirt and tie
and dress slacks unless excused by the General Manager in advance.

Field Work Attire (All imes): Field or facility work may require special uniforms or equipment. Employ-
ees shall consult with a supervisor on requirements in advance. No personal hats or jackets, including with logos
or names on them other than the District, shall be allowed.

3200.4 Non-Compliance

Employees who are inappropriately dressed may be sent home and directed to return to work in the proper at-
tire. Non-exempt employees will not be compensated for the time away from work. Employees who violate
[DISTRICT] dress code policy or grooming standards will be subject to corrective action and disciplinary action,
up to and including termination.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
sl ins pERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Housekeeping
POLICY NUMBER: 3205

3205.1 All employees are expected to keep their work areas clean and organized and also assist in maintaining
an overall clean work environment. Employees using common areas such as lunch rooms and restrooms or
equipment are expected to keep them clean and sanitary. Employees are requested to clean up after meals and
dispose of trash properly.



f}RﬂTDNCummumw SERVICES DISTRICT

30 RS LARME « MAIL PO ROX 534, GRATON, CALIFOEMIR 95444 o« TODEI1=1%4] = FAX MIEIT-2300

GRATOM

POLICY TITLE: Outside Employment
POLICY NUMBER: 3210

321 Q.1 . No District employee shall be permitted to accept employment in addition to or outside of District
SerVI.Ce If'.rhe additional or outside employment leads to a conflict, or potential conflict of interest for said employ-
° ?ﬁéonr;ture of the additional or outside employment is such that it will reflect unfavorably on the District;
. %e duties to be performed in the additional or outside employment are in conflict with the duties in-
volved in District service.

3210.2 An employee who does have additional or outside employment shall not be permitted to use District
records, materials, equipment, facilities, or other District resources in connection with said employment.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
wmurlip secdcer dhine PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Uniforms and Protective Clothing
POLICY NUMBER: 3220

3220.1  The cost of uniforms and/or protective clothing, shoes, etc., that employees are required to wear shall
be borne by the District, as outlined in any applicable Memorandum of Understanding.

3220.2 The District has the option of authorizing reimbursements to qualifying employees upon proof of pur-
chase; or arranging with local retailers to supply all qualifying employees with a specific product that meets the
needs and/or safety requirements and bill the District for the total cost of all products purchased.

3220.3  When an employee for whom said uniforms, clothing, shoes, etc., were purchased or reimbursed is
terminated for any reason prior to completing three (3) continuous months of service after said purchase, a por-
tion of the cost of said items shall be retained from his or her final payment. That portion retained shall be a per-
centage of the total cost of said items equal to one hundred percent (100%) less the ratio of the amount of time
worked to three (3) continuous months of regular work.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Internet, Email and Electronic Communications
POLICY NUMBER: 3300

3300.1 The District believes that employee access to and use of the interet, email, and other electronic com-
munications resources, benefits the District and makes it a more successful local public agency. However, the
misuses of these resources have the potential to harm the District’s short and long-term success. Employees
should have no expectation of privacy in work-related emails or internet usage while using District computers.

The District has established this policy to ensure that the District employees use the District-provided computer
resources, such as the internet and email, in an appropriate manner.

3300.2 Rules Regarding Prohibited Use
Employees shall not use the District internet and email in an inappropriate manner. Prohibited use of the internet
and email systems includes, but is not limited to:

a)

Accessing internet sites that are generally regarded in the community as offensive (e.g., sites containing
pornography or that exploit children), or accessing sites for which there is no official business purpose
(e.g., social media websites or online shopping websites).

Engaging in any profane, defamatory, harassing, illegal, discriminatory, or offensive conduct or any
conduct that is otherwise inconsistent in any way with the District policies.

Distributing copyrighted materials.

As computer viruses can become attached to executable files and program files, receiving or download-
ing executable files and programs via email or the internet without express permission of the Systems
Administrator is prohibited. This includes, but is not limited to, software programs and software up-
grades. This does not include email or documents received via email and the internet.

Use of another person’s name or account, without express permission of the System Administrator, is
strictly prohibited.

Using the District’s computer resources for personal social media, online shopping, and other similar
online commercial activity.

Employees must respect all copyright and licensed agreements regarding software or publication they
access or download from the internet. The District does not condone violations of copyright laws and li-
censes and the employee will be personally liable for any fines or sanctions caused by the employee’s
license or copyright infringement.

3300.3 Additional Guidelines
Employees are expected to understand and comply with the following additional guidelines regarding use of the
internet and District computer systems.

a)

Internet access is to be used for the District business purposes only. Employees who have completed
all job tasks should seek additional work assignments. Use of the internet should not interfere with the



timely and efficient performance of job duties. Personal access to the internet and email is not a benefit
of employment with the District. Limited personal use of the District’s systems to access internet, email,
and other electronic communications may be permitted only during the employees’ authorized break
time.

Employees do not have any right or expectation to privacy in any of the District computer resources, in-
cluding email messages produced, sent, or received on the District computers or transmitted via the
District's servers and network. The District may monitor the contents of all computer files and email
messages to promote the administration of the District operations and policies.

Employees’ access to and use of the internet, email, and other electronic communications on the Dis-
trict systems is monitored, and such files and electronic communications may be reviewed by the Dis-
trict at any time. Employees have no expectation of privacy.

Deleting an email message does not necessarily mean the message cannot be retrieved from the Dis-
trict's computer system. Backup copies of all documents, including email messages, that are produced,
sent, and received on the District's computer system, can be made.

Email and any attachments are subject to the same ethical standards, and standards of good conduct,
as are memos, letters, and other paper-based documents.

Currently all District email sent is not encrypted. Unencrypted email is not a secure way of exchanging
information or files. Accordingly, employees are cautioned against transmitting information in an email
message that should not be written in a letter, memorandum, or document available to the public.
Email, once transmitted, can be printed, forwarded, and disclosed by the receiving party without the
consent of the sender. Use caution in addressing messages to ensure that messages are not inadvert-
ently sent to the wrong person.

Virus scanning software shall be used where provided.

It is advisable for all employees of the District to remind customers, clients, and contractors of security
issues when sending confidential email or documents to the District via email. If applicable, our custom-
er, clients, or contractors should be reminded to implement a security policy and make sure their em-
ployees understand the ramifications of sending confidential information via email.

Employees must scan all downloadable materials before using or opening them on their computers to
prevent the introduction of any computer virus.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
wmurlip secdcer dhine PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Bereavement Leave
POLICY NUMBER: 3405

3405.1  This policy shall apply to probationary and regular employees in all classifications.
3405.2 Inthe event of a death in the immediate family, an employee may be granted a paid leave of absence
not to exceed three days. This is in addition to regular sick leave and vacation time. Verification may be required

by the Personnel Director [or other responsible managing employee].

3405.3 "Immediate family" is defined as being spouse, parents, children, brother, sister, grandparents, father-
in-law, mother-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law or any other person who is a legal dependent of the employee.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Catastrophic Time Bank
POLICY NUMBER: 3410

This policy is applicable only to non-exempt employees, both as to use of and donation to a catastrophic time bank.

3410.1

At the discretion of the General Manager, employees will be permitted to transfer eligible leave credits to

a time bank to be used by an employee when a non-work related catastrophic illness or injury occurs.

3410.2

3410.1.1  Definitions used in the application of this rule:

a) Catastrophic illness or injury is defined as a non-work related illness or injury which is expected
to incapacitate an employee and which creates a financial hardship because the employee has
exhausted all of his/her sick leave and other paid time off.

b) Atime bank is one or more hours of leave credit donated by one or more employees to another
employee who has been incapacitated by a catastrophic illness or injury.

c) Eligible leave credits include vacation and/or compensating time off (CTO). They do not include
sick leave.

3410.1.2 Atime bank for catastrophic illness or injury may be established:
a) Upon the written request of an employee;
b) Upon determination by the General Manager that the employee in the District is unable to work
due to the employee's catastrophic illness or injury; and
c) Thatthe employee has exhausted all paid leave credit.

3410.1.3 If atime bank is established, any employee may, upon written notice to the Administrative
Services Manager, donate eligible leave credits in one-hour increments, up to a maximum of 40 hours in
a one year period, to the time bank. Donations will be reflected as an hour for hour deduction from the
leave balance of the donating employee. When transferring leave credits into a time bank, the District
will assure that only credits that may be needed are transferred. The employee donating the hours shall
remain responsible for any applicable taxes or other expenses for the used hours.

3410.14 Inorder to receive time from the time bank, an employee must provide appropriate verifica-
tion of illness or injury as determined by the District. The employee for whom the time bank is estab-
lished will have any time which is donated to the time bank transferred to his account in one hour incre-
ments for use as sick leave only. Donated credits will be reflected as an hour-for-hour addition to the
leave balance of the receiving employee. The total amount of leave credits donated may not exceed an
amount sufficient to insure the continuance of regular compensation. An employee who receives time
through this program shall use any leave credits he/she continues to accrue on a monthly basis prior to
receiving time from the time bank.

Use of time from the time bank may not be used to augment benefits received due to a work-related

injury or iliness.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Educational Assistance
POLICY NUMBER: 3420

3420.1  Employees of the District are encouraged to pursue educational opportunities which are related to their
present work, which will prepare them for foreseeable future opportunities within the District [some districts may
wish to omit this condition if they are inclined to believe that academic advancement produces better employees,
regardless if it is related to their work for the district], or which will prepare them for future career advancement.

3420.2 The District will reimburse regular employees for approved courses of study on the following criteria:

a) Arefund of the entire cost of tuition and required class materials will be made if the employee received
a grade of “B” or better for the class.

b) A refund of one-half (') of the cost of tuition and required class materials will be made if the employee
received a grade of “C” for the class.

¢) No refund will be made to employees who receive a grade below “C” for the class.

d) The total amount of reimbursement which will be paid to an employee is limited to $ in any cal-
endar year.

3420.3 To be eligible for reimbursement of course costs, the employee must receive advance approval for the
class(es) from the General Manager [or other responsible managing employee or the Board of Directors]. Re-
quests for reimbursement should be submitted in writing. The employee will be notified of final approval, or the
reasons for disapproval. Those requests for reimbursement which are received after the class begins will be eli-
gible for only one-half (/2) of the usual reimbursement.

3420.4  Upon completion of the class(es) the employee is responsible for sending copies of the grade slip(s)
and expense receipt(s) to the General Manager [or other responsible managing employee].

3420.5 Two types of classes are generally eligible for reimbursement per this policy:

a) Classes that are related to the employee's present work assignment or that may prepare him/her for fu-
ture foreseeable opportunities within the District. Such classes may be taken individually and need not
be directed toward a degree or certificate.

b) Classes that are taken as part of the requirement for a degree or certificate. In this case the employee
must first have completed the equivalent of two (2) full years of college level study and have reached
the equivalent of the "junior" year of a four-year degree program.

3420.6  Only residence courses are approved for reimbursement. Correspondence courses are not reimburs-
able under this policy.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Family and Medical Leave
POLICY NUMBER: 3425

34251  The purpose of this policy is to clarify how [District] will implement the Family and Medical Leave Act of
1993 (FMLA). The provisions of the [title of contract or MOU with union and/or employee association] shall pre-
vail, notwithstanding the contents of this policy, unless said provisions are in conflict with the FMLA.

3425.2 Eligibility. To be eligible for leave under the FMLA, an employee must have: (1) been employed by
[District] for at least 12 months within a 5 year period,, which need not be consecutive; (2) worked for [District] at
least 1,250 hours during the 12 months immediately preceding the commencement of leave; and, (3) be em-
ployed at a worksite where the District employs at least fifty (50) employees within seventy-five (75) miles of the
worksite.

34253 Leave Benefit.

a) Eligible employees will be provided with up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave each year to care for a new-
born, adopted, or foster child or for a child, parent, or spouse with a serious health condition. In addition,
employees who are unable to perform the functions of their position because of a serious health condi-
tion will also be entitled to 12 weeks of unpaid leave. "Serious health condition" is defined as an illness,
injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that entails

1) Inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility; or,
2) Continuing treatment by a health care provider.

b) To be eligible for leave under the FMLA, the employee will first be required to use applicable accrued
paid leaves permitted by the District, including vacation leave and sick leave for the first part of the 12-
week statutory leave. Paid leave may not be added to the end of the 12 weeks of unpaid leave without
the General Manager's prior approval. If a husband and wife are both employed by [District], the total
number of workweeks of leave to which both may be entitled shall be limited to 12 weeks if leave is tak-
en for the birth, adoption, or foster placement of a child or for the purpose of caring for a seriously ill
parent.

c) Employees on leave who were previously covered by [District]'s health benefit shall continue to be cov-
ered at the level and under the conditions that coverage would have been provided if the employee
were continuing to work.

d) Atthe end of the leave the employee will be reinstated to his/her previous position or to an equivalent
job with equivalent pay, benefits, and working conditions. However, the employee will not accrue senior-
ity or employment benefits during the leave period. [District] may also require the employee to obtain
medical certification that they are able to resume work.

34254  Employee Obligations
a) Ifthe event necessitating the leave is foreseeable, the employee must provide his or her division man-
ager with at least 30 days' prior written notice. However, if 30 days advance notice for foreseeable



leave is not practicable, the employee must provide the division manager with as much notice as practi-
cable.

Employees seeking leave on account of a serious health condition must provide the division manager
with medical certification regarding their condition. The General Manager may require employees to ob-
tain, at [District]'s expense, a second opinion. If the second opinion differs from the first, the General
Manager may require a third opinion from a mutually agreed on health care provider.

For most leaves, employees will not be permitted to take their leave intermittently or on a reduced-leave
schedule without the General Manager's approval. However, intermittent leave or a reduced-leave
schedule may, if medically necessary, be taken by the employee because of a serious health condition.
An employee who seeks intermittent leave or leave on reduced-leave schedule because of planned
medical treatment may be required to transfer temporarily to a different position, with equivalent working
conditions, that accommodates recurring periods of leave better than the employee's regular job.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
LI C i L

POLICY TITLE: Holidays
POLICY NUMBER: 3430

3425.1  This policy shall apply to all employees.
3425.2  The following days shall be recognized and observed as paid holidays:

New Years Day;

Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday;
Lincoln’s Birthday
President's Day;

Cesar Chavez Birthday
Memorial Day;
Independence Day;
Labor Day;

Veteran's Day;
Thanksgiving Day;
Christmas Day;

One Floating Holiday.

3425.3  All regular work shall be suspended and employees shall receive one-day's pay for each of the holi-
days listed above. A full-time employee is eligible for any paid holiday if he/she works the day before and the day
after said holiday. Eligibility is also granted if the employee was on vacation or had notified the General Manager
or Board President and received permission to be absent from work on that specific day or days.

34254 Whenever a holiday falls on Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed as the holiday. When-
ever a holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed as the holiday.

3425.5 When an employee is taking an authorized leave with pay when a holiday occurs, said holiday shall
not be charged against said leave with pay.

3425.6  While not required by law, if any non-exempt employee works on any of the holidays listed above,
he/she shall, in addition to his/her holiday pay, be paid for all hours worked at the rate of time and one-half (1%%)
his/her regular rate of pay, or as otherwise specified under Policy #3122, "Hours of Work and Overtime."



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
wmurlip secdcer dhine PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE:  Jury Duty
POLICY NUMBER: 3435

3435.1  This policy shall apply to probationary and regular employees in all classifications.

3435.2  An employee summoned for jury duty will immediately notify his/her immediate supervisor [or other
responsible managing employee].

3435.3  While serving on a jury, an employee will be given a paid leave of absence for the duration of said jury
duty. Said leave of absence is conditional upon the employee returning to work upon dismissal each day to
complete his/her remaining normal workaday. It is also conditional upon the employee's conveyance to the Dis-
trict of any compensation received as a juror, not including any travel allowance received.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Leave for Crime Victims and Family Members
POLICY NUMBER: 3440

3440.1  An employee who is a victim of a crime, a member of a crime victim's immediate family (spouse, child,
stepchild, sibling, stepsibling, parent, or stepparent), a registered domestic partner of a crime victim, or the child
of a registered domestic partner of a crime victim shall be allowed to be absent from work in order to attend judi-
cial proceedings related to that crime, subject to the District's General Manager determining that work require-
ments may be maintained during the absence.

3440.2  "Victim" means a person against whom one of the following crimes has been committed:
a) Aviolent felony, as defined in subdivision (c) of Section 667.5 of the Penal Code;
b) A serious felony, as defined in subdivision (c) of Section 1192.7 of the Penal Code; or
c) Afelony provision of law proscribing theft or embezzlement.

3440.3 Prior to an employee being absent from work, the employee must provide the District with a copy of
the official notice provided to the victim of each scheduled proceeding.

34404 An employee absent from work to attend a scheduled proceeding may elect to use accrued vacation
leave, sick leave, compensatory time off, or unpaid leave time.

3440.5 The District shall keep confidential any records regarding an employee's absence from work pursuant
to this Policy.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
wmurlip secdcer dhine PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Military Leave
POLICY NUMBER: 3445

34451 Military leave is a form of a personal leave of absence subject to federal and state applicable laws and
regulations. Leaves of absence and re-employment resulting from service in the National Guard or U.S. Military
Armed Forces will be in accordance with applicable State and Federal laws. A copy of the applicable, official
military orders for training or active duty must accompany an employee’s request for a leave of absence.

3445.2  An employee who is assigned to an U.S. Military Armed Forces Reserve organization and is subject to
active or inactive duty training will be granted leaves of absence without pay, generally for up to two (2) weeks
per calendar year unless additional time is approved by [General Manager or Board of Directors].

3445.3 The following conditions also apply: The employee may remain in paid status while using appropriate
accrued leave balances (vacation) to supplement his/her military pay to maintain the equivalent of full salary.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Pregnancy Disability Leave
POLICY NUMBER: 3450

3450.1  Any female employee planning to take Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL) should advise their supervi-
sor as soon as possible. The employee should also inform their supervisor when such leave is expected to begin
and how long it will likely last. The employee should make arrangements with their supervisor regarding the
scheduling of any planned medical treatment or appointments in order to minimize disruption to the operations of
[DISTRICT].

3450.2  Upon the request of an employee and recommendation of the employee’s health care provider, the
employee’s work assignment may be modified if necessary to protect the health and safety of the employee and
her child.

3450.3  The following conditions also apply:

3450.3.1  PDL begins when ordered by the employee’s health care provider. The employee must
provide their supervisor with a certification from a health care provider containing:

a) The date on which the employee became disabled due to pregnancy;

b) The probable duration of the period or periods of disability; and

c) A statement that, due to the disability, the employee is unable to perform one or more of
the essential functions of her position without undue risk to herself, the successful comple-
tion of her pregnancy, or to other persons.

d) Return to work from PDL will be allowed only when the employee’s health care provider
endorses a release that must be submitted to the employee’s supervisor.

3450.3.2  The duration of the leave will be determined by the employee’s health care provider, but in
accordance with regulations may be for not more than 17 1/3 weeks or 693 hours. Regular part-time
employees are entitled to leave on a pro rata basis. The 17 1/3 weeks or 693 hours of available leave
includes any period of time for actual disability caused by the employee’s pregnancy, childbirth, or relat-
ed medical condition. This includes leave for severe morning sickness and for prenatal care.

3450.3.3  The employee will remain in paid status while using appropriate accrued leave (sick or va-
cation) during a PDL to satisfy any disability waiting periods and/or to supplement disability benefits in
order to maintain the equivalent of full salary.

3450.3.4  The employee will be in non-paid status after exhaustion of appropriate accrued leave bal-
ances or at the employee’s election to not use accrued leave benefits.

3450.3.5 During the period of PDL, [DISTRICT] will continue payment of all premiums for employee
benefit plans in place at the time the leave begins. [DISTRICT] will also continue the employer



contribution for employee benefit premiums as if the employee were not in leave status, as required by
law or regulations. The employee must reimburse [DISTRICT] for any portion of benefits they would
have paid through payroll deduction. Such reimbursement must be received by [DISTRICT] within 30
days of the date of the invoice or written notification. If [DISTRICT] does not receive the reimbursement
from the employee within 30 days, [DISTRICT] can cancel any policies and/or plans for which they have
not been reimbursed.

3450.4  Under most circumstances, upon submission of a medical certification that an employee is able to re-
tumn to work from a PDL, an employee will be reinstated to her same position held at the time the leave began or
to an equivalent position, if available. An employee returning from a PDL has no greater right to reinstatement
than if the employee had been continuously employed.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BO5E LAME = MAIL FO BOX 51+ GEATON. CALIFORKEA PS404 0 TOTAI1=1947 & FAX T0T831-3713

PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Rest & Meal Periods
POLICY NUMBER: 3455

3455.1  While not required by law, all regular, full-time employees may take periods of rest during the workday
consisting of [Fill-in here] and [ ] meal period.

3455.2  Employees are required to notify theirimmediate supervisor, where feasible, at the beginning of any
break or meal periods. Please keep in mind that when employees are not on a break, they are expected to de-
vote their full efforts to their duties.



E}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BO5E LAME = MAIL FO BOX 51+ GEATON. CALIFORKEA PS404 0 TOTAI1=1947 & FAX T0T831-3713

GRATON
CEEEETETT PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Sick Leave
POLICY NUMBER: 3460

3460.1  This policy shall apply to probationary and regular employees in all classifications.

3460.2 Sick leave is defined as absence from work due to illness, non-industrial injury, or quarantine due to
exposure to a contagious disease. In addition, dentist and doctor appointments and prescribed sickness preven-
tion measures shall be subject to sick leave provided prior notice is provided to [SPECIFY DEPARTMENT,
POSITION, PERSON, etc.].

3460.3 Employees shall earn sick leave at the rate of one working day per month, cumulative to @ maxi-mum
of 60 days. The determination of total accumulated sick leave days shall be made on January 2 of each year.

3460.4 Each employee may use accrued sick leave, up to half the time accrued per calendar year, as kin care
leave, to care for sick immediate-family members. It is provided for those circumstances where the employee
must take time off to care for a sick family member, regardless of the seriousness of the illness. Employees
should notify their supervisor to the extent feasible in order to avoid disruptions in work schedule as a result of
use of kin care time. Family members covered include parents, children and spouses and are defined as follows:

3460.4.1  A“child” means a biological, adopted or foster child, a stepchild, a legal ward or a child for
whom an employee has accepted the duties and responsibilities of raising, such as where a grandparent raises
his/her grandchild.

3460.4.2 A “parent” means a biological, foster or adoptive parent, a stepparent or legal guardian.
Mothers-in-law, fathers-in-law and grandparents are also considered “parents for purposes of this division.

3460.4.3 The term “spouse” is not defined in the legislation mandating kin care, but presumably ap-
plies only to an individual to whom the employee is legally married.

3460.5 In order to receive compensation while on sick leave, the employee shall notify his/her supervisor prior
to the time for beginning the regular work day, or as soon thereafter as practical.

3460.6 If absence from duty by reason of iliness occurs, satisfactory evidence may be required by the
[PERSONNEL DIRECTOR or other responsible managing employee].



[OPTIONAL]

3460.7  Unused sick-leave time may be "bought back" by the District at a rate of one-half (2) day [specify
whatever rate your district provides] for each whole day accrued. Said buy back shall be limited only to time over
and above 30 days of accrued sick leave. No more than 12 days of accrued sick leave shall be bought back in
any given calendar year unless employment is terminated for non-cause reasons, in which case all accrued sick
leave over and above 30 days shall be bought back at said one-half ('%) rate. Termination for cause shall result
in loss of all accrued sick leave.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 & FAX T07811-3713

GRATOM
—e PERSONNEL
POLICY TITLE: Investment of District Funds
POLICY NUMBER: 3463

3463.1 Premise:

a) The State Legislature has declared the deposit and investment of public funds by local officials and local
agencies is an issue of statewide concern (Government Code (GC) § 53600.6 and § 53630.1); and,

b) Government Code Sections 53601, et seq., allow the legislative body of a local agency to invest surplus
monies not required for the immediate necessities of the local agency; and,

c) The fiscal officer of a local agency is required to annually prepare and submit a statement of investment
policy and such policy, and any changes thereto, is to be considered by the local agency’s legislative
body at a public meeting (GC § 53646(a)).

d) Forthese reasons, and to ensure prudent and responsible management of the public’s funds, it is the
policy of the District to invest funds in a manner which will provide the highest investment return with the
maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the District and conforming to all stat-
utes governing the investment of District funds.

3463.2 Scope:
This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the District. These funds are accounted for in the annual
audited financial statements of the District and include:
a) Demand Accounts
b) Investments
General Fund
Local Agency Investment Fund [others]
Operation and Maintenance Fund
f)  Enterprise Funds [others]

~— — — ~—

D O O

3463.3 Prudence:

The Board and persons authorized to make investment decisions subject to these policies are trustees and
therefore fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor standard. When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring,
exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under
the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and the antici-
pated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters
would use in the conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain
the liquidity needs of the District.

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of pru-
dence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for
investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.



_GEATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 & FAX T07811-3713

GRATON
penaliy - =, PERSONNEL

Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and the investment policy and exercising due
diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market price chang-
es, provided deviations from expectations are reported in the next issued quarterly treasury report and appropri-
ate action are taken to control adverse developments. When a deviation poses a significant risk to the District’s
financial position, the Board shall be notified immediately.

3463.4 Objectives:
As specified in GC §53600.5, when investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and man-
aging public funds, the primary objectives of the investment activities, in priority order, shall be:

a) Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. Investments of the Dis-
trict shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the whole portfo-
lio. To attain this objective, diversification is required in order that potential losses on individual securities
do not exceed the income generated from the remainder of the portfolio.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
wmurlip secdcer dhine PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Time Keeping/Time Records
POLICY NUMBER: 3465

3465.1 Itis the responsibility of every non-exempt employee to accurately record time worked. Federal and
State laws require [DISTRICT] to keep an accurate record of time worked in order to calculate employee pay
and benefits. Time worked is the time actually spent on the job performing assigned duties.

3465.2  Overtime compensation will be paid to qualified hourly employees. Overtime work must always be ap-
proved by a supervisor before it is performed. In accordance with Federal law, [DISTRICT] rounds this time to
the nearest one-quarter hour/fifteen minutes.

3465.3 Itis the employee’s responsibility to sign and submit on time his/her time records certifying the accura-
cy of all time recorded for compensation.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Time Off for Children - School Activities
POLICY NUMBER: 3470

3470.1 California Law allows a parent or guardian to take up to a total of 40 hours of time off each calendar
year (but no more than 8 hours in one month) without pay to participate in their children's activities at school
(grades K through 12) or licensed child care provider. The absence is subject to all of the following conditions:

3470.1.1  Employees planning to take time off for school visitations must provide as much advance
notice as possible and all requests must be approved by the employee's supervisor;

3470.1.2  If both parents are employed by [DISTRICT], the first employee to request such leave will
receive the time off. The other parent will receive the time off only if the leave is approved by his or her
supervisor;

3470.1.3  Employees must use accrued vacation or compensating time off in order to receive com-
pensation for this time off;

3470.1.4  Employees who do not have accrued vacation time or compensatory time off available will
take the time off without pay.

3470.2 Suspension

If an employee who is the parent or guardian of a child facing suspension from school is summoned to the
school to discuss the matter, the employee should alert his or her supervisor as soon as possible before leaving
work. In compliance with California Labor Code Section 230.7, no discriminatory action will be taken against an
employee who takes time off for this purpose.

3470.2.1  Employees must use accrued vacation or compensating time off in order to receive com-
pensation for this time off;

3470.2.2  Employees who do not have accrued vacation time or compensatory time off available will
take the time off without pay.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
wmurlip secdcer dhine PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Time Off to Vote
POLICY NUMBER: 3475

3475.1 [DISTRICT] believes that it is the responsibility and duty of employees to exercise the privilege of vot-
ing in federal, state or local governmental elections. In accordance with this philosophy, the [DISTRICT] will
grant its employees advance arranged and approved time off to vote and for periods of service as an election
official.

3475.2  Allemployees should be able to vote either before or after regularly assigned work hours. However,
when this is not possible due to work schedules, managers are authorized to grant a reasonable period of time,
up to three hours, during the work day to vote. Time off for voting should be coordinated to occur at the begin-
ning or end of a work shift where possible and reported and coded appropriately on timekeeping records.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Use of Make up Time
POLICY NUMBER: 3485

3485.1  [DISTRICT] allows the use of make up time when non-exempt employees need time off to tend to per-
sonal obligations. Use of make up time is discretionary and subject to preapproval by the General Manager.
Make up time worked will not be paid at an overtime rate.

3485.2  Subject to compliance with this policy, employees may take time off and then make up the time later in
the same workweek, or may work extra hours earlier in the workweek to make up for time that will be taken off
later in the workweek.

3485.3 Make up time requests must be submitted in writing to your supervisor, with your signature, on the
[DISTRICT]-provided form. Requests will be considered for approval based on the legitimate business needs of
[DISTRICT] at the time the request is submitted. A separate written request is required for each occasion the
employee requests make up time.

34854  If you request time off that you will make up later in the week, you must submit your request at least
24 hours in advance of the desired time off. If you request to work make up time first in order to take time off later
in the week, you must submit your request at least 24 hours before working the make up time. Your make up
time request must be approved in writing before you take the requested time off or work make up time, whichev-
eris first,

3485.5 All make up time must be worked in the same workweek as the time taken off. [DISTRICT]'s seven-
day workweek is Sunday through Saturday. Employees may not work more than 40 hours in a workweek as a
result of making up time that was or would be lost due to a personal obligation.

3485.6  If you take time off and are unable to work the scheduled make up time for any reason, the hours
missed will normally be unpaid. However, your supervisor may arrange with you another day to make up the
time if possible, based on scheduling needs. If you work make up time in advance of time you plan to take off,
you must take that time off, even if you no longer need the time off for any reason.

3485.7 An employee’s use of make up time is completely voluntary and subject to the ability of the District to
accommodate the employee. [DISTRICT] does not encourage, discourage, or solicit the use of make up time off.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Vacations
POLICY NUMBER: 3490
3490.1 This policy shall apply to regular and probationary employees in all classifications.

3490.2 Paid vacations shall be accrued according to the following schedule on an annual basis:
a) During the first year of continuous work, (____) days;

b) Two through five years of service, ( ) days;
c) Sixthrough ten years of service, (___) days;
d) After ten years of service, one additional day of paid vacation for each additional year of service to a

maximum of 30 days.

3490.3 Employees who have completed six months in regular status may take their vacation time all at once,
or gradually, with the prior written approval of their supervisor. No vacation may be taken until the employee has
completed at least six months in regular employee status unless approved by the General Manager in writing.

3490.4 Vacation time may be accumulated or postponed. The total accumulated vacation time shall not ex-
ceed that amount earned annually by the employee. Only one week of accumulated vacation may be used in
addition to regular vacation time during any given year.

3490.5 At termination of employment for any reason, the District shall compensate the employee for his/her
accumulated vacation time at his/her straight time rate of pay at the time of termination.

3490.6 The District will not require an employee to take vacation time in lieu of sick leave during periods of
ilness. However, the employee may elect to take vacation time in case of extended illness where sick leave has
been fully used. The District will not consider granting a leave of absence for medical reasons until all accumu-
lated sick leave and vacation time have been used.

3490.7 If a holiday falls on a workday during an employee's vacation period, that day shall be considered as a
paid holiday and not vacation time.

3490.8 Vacations may be scheduled at any time during the year upon written approval of the [PERSONNEL
DIRECTOR or other responsible managing employee].

3490.9 Vacations are provided by the District to employees as a period of exemption from work with pay for
the purpose of rest, relaxation and recreation. This respite is a benefit and is intended as an aid in maintaining
the long-term and consistent productivity and contentment of the employee. As such, pay in lieu of vacation time
away from work shall not be permitted except in situations of hardship or cumulation in excess of (____) hours.
Said pay off shall be submitted for written approval by the General Manager.



E}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BO5E LAME = MAIL FO BOX 51+ GEATON. CALIFORKEA PS404 0 TOTAI1=1947 & FAX T0T831-3713

GRATON
CEEEETETT PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Workers’ Compensation Leave [Not applicable to Sworn Public Safety Employees
Due to Labor Code Section 4850]
POLICY NUMBER: 3495

3495.1  If an employee is injured at work and is temporarily unable to perform his or her usual and customary
work, the employee will be allowed to take an unpaid leave of absence while receiving workers’ compensation
benefits. Certification from a recognized medical professional confirming the necessity of the leave must be pro-
vided to [DISTRICT] within fourteen (14) days after the leave begins. The duration of the leave will be deter-
mined on a case-by-case basis, considering both the injured employee's medical condition and [DISTRICT]
business needs.

3495.2 The employee may elect during such absence to apply sick leave on a prorated basis to such absence
and receive compensation in an amount equal to the difference between compensation received as regular sala-
ry and the amount received as Workers' Compensation benefits, not to exceed the amount of available accrued
sick leave. Similarly, the employee may elect to use any accrued paid leave time and accrued time off after the
sick leave is exhausted.

3495.3 The employee may return to work only after a recognized medical professional certifies that the em-
ployee is capable of resuming all of the essential functions of the employee's position. [DISTRICT] may, in its
discretion, provide modified or light duty work if the employee's release contains such limitation. If the employee
has been released without limitation, the employee will be offered the same position he or she held previously,
unless the job no longer exists or has been filled so that [DISTRICT] can operate safely and efficiently or the
employment relationship has otherwise been terminated.

34954  Workers’ compensation leave will run concurrently with any family and medical leave. [Not applicable
to sworn public safety employees.] During the period of leave, [DISTRICT] will continue payment of all premiums
for employee benefit plans in place at the time the leave begins. [DISTRICT] will also continue the employer con-
tribution for employee benefit premiums, as if the employee were not in leave status, for the duration of the
leave. The employee must reimburse [DISTRICT] for any portion of benefits they would have paid through pay-
roll deduction. Such reimbursement must be received by [DISTRICT] within 30 days of the date of the invoice or
written notification. If [DISTRICT] does not receive the reimbursement from the employee within 30 days,
[DISTRICT] can cancel any policies and/or plans for which they have not been reimbursed.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 ROSS LANE * MAIL: PO BOX 334, GRATON, CALIFORNIA 95444 = 707/823=1542 = FAX 707/823-3713

GRATON

community services district

PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Employee Assistance During Response to Emergency Situations
POLICY NUMBER: 3500

3500.1 Employees are to be trained to handle emergencies in the field or at District facilities as the purposes of
such activities are to improve District operation and safeguard the value of District assets. Hence, employees
often work under adverse conditions and under stress at times to the degree that is beneficial to the District.

3500.1.1  Employees working in the field or at District facilities may be required to work unusual
hours and shifts including nights and weekends. Due to these unusual hours, emergency situations
involving the employee or his/her family may occur while working. Employees are trained and are to
be prepared for such incidents.

3500.2 Itis the policy of the District to provide a safe and environmentally friendly working experience.
Employees may be subject to injury or to notifications that members of their families are in need of assistance.
is the policy of the district to assist employees in these situations as much as possible to minimize the mental
and emotional impacts upon them.

t

3500.2.1  An employee who experiences an injury on the job is to inform his/her supervisor or
another management employee as soon as reasonably possible by phone or in person. In case of
injury beyond first aid level, the employee is to be transported to the designated first aid treatment
facility. The nature of the injury or incident and any actions needed to be taken shall be reported. If
involving a criminal act or an equipment accident, an accident report shall be completed as soon as
possible and within 24 hours.

3500.2.2 In cases where an employee’s family member is involved in an emergency situation and
the employee believes that he/she must leave the job to respond, the employee shall inform his/her
supervisor or another management employee immediately and before leaving the work site. If no
response is required, the employee is encouraged to inform his/her supervisor in order to have them
aware of the situation and to provide supportive assistance in an appropriate manner. An Employee
Assistance Program (EAP) may be available and the employee is encouraged to contact the identified
agency or the Human Resources Department for assistance.

3500.2.3  Expenses to the District for an EAP may be provided by the District for initial administrative
services. Specific services available to the employee shall be identified and appropriate expense
information made known by the EAP provider.

3500.2.4 Absences from work due to injury or emergencies of close family members may be

covered by either workers compensation, sick leave or the Federal FMLA regulations. The

employee shall consult with the Human Resources Department as soon as practical to determine what
applicable leave or laws apply to their situation. A doctor’s certification may be required for use of
leaves and for returning to work in some cases.



3500.3 Employees, supervisors and managers shall be provided training and information on dealing with
injury, emergencies and trauma on the job in order to prepare them for unusual situations. Such training is
not to be viewed as for personal safety and security but for handling sensitive and emergency situations
until additional assistance may be obtained.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
wmurlip secdcer dhine PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Health and Welfare Benefits
POLICY NUMBER: 3505

3505.1 Medical Expense Insurance. Health and dental insurance to cover non-occupational injuries and sick-
ness for probationary and full-time employees in all job classifications, and their dependents, shall be provided by
the District. The scope of coverage and the portion of premiums to be paid by the District is subject to periodic
review and revision by the Board of Directors.

3505.2 Workers' Compensation Insurance. All District employees will be insured against injuries received while
on the job as required by State law.

3505.3 Retirement Plan. Upon achieving full-time employee status, employees shall be enrolled in the District's
employee retirement plan. The terms of the retirement plans provided to District employees is subject to periodic
review and revision by the Board of Directors.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: lliness and Injury Prevention Program
POLICY NUMBER: 3510

3510.1 Program Goal and Outline.
The goal of the District is to provide safe and healthful working conditions for all of its employees. Therefore, the
District will maintain a safety and health program conforming to the best practices of agencies of this type. The
District's safety and health program will include:
3510.1.1  Providing mechanical and physical safeguards to the maximum extent possible.
3510.1.2  Conducting a program of safety and health inspections to find and eliminate unsafe work-
ing conditions or practices, to control health hazards, and to comply fully with the safety and health
standards and law for every job.
3510.1.3  Training all employees in good safety and health practices.

3510.1.4  Providing necessary personal protective equipment, and instructions for use and care.

3510.1.5 Developing and enforcing safety and health rules, and requiring that employees cooperate
with these rules as a condition of employment.

3510.1.6  Investigating promptly and thoroughly, every accident to determine its cause and correct
the problem so it will not happen again.

3510.1.7  Developing a system of recognition and awards for outstanding safety service and/or per-
formance.

3510.2 Program Responsibility.
Although the District recognizes that the responsibility for safety and health is shared, the General Manager [or
other responsible managing employee] shall be responsible and have full authority for implementing this policy

and the District's Injury and lllness Prevention Program.

3510.2.1  The District accepts responsibility for leadership of the safety and health program, for its
effectiveness and improvements, and for providing the safeguards required to ensure safe conditions.



3510.2.2  Supervisory personnel are responsible for developing proper attitudes toward safety and
health for themselves and in those they supervise, and for ensuring that all operations are performed
with the utmost regard for the safety and health of all personnel involved, including themselves.

3510.2.3  No employee will be required to work at a job he/she knows is not safe or healthful. Em-
ployees are responsible for wholehearted, genuine operation of all aspects of the safety and health
program -including compliance with all rules and regulations - and for continuously practicing safety
while performing their duties. Any employee found not practicing safety while performing their duties
will be subject to appropriate discipline.

3510.3 Injury and lliness Records.

The District's record keeping system for its Injury and lliness Prevention Program shall conform to Cal/OSHA
standards. Records shall be used to measure and evaluate the success of said program.

3510.3.1  Areport shall be obtained on every injury or illness requiring medical treatment. (See also
Section 3510.8.)

3510.3.2  Each injury or illness shall be recorded on the "Cal/lOSHA Log and Summary of Occupa-
tional Injuries and llinesses," Cal/lOSHA Form 200, according to its instructions.

3510.3.3 A supplementary record of the occupational injuries and ilinesses shall be prepared on
OSHA Form 5020, "Employer's Report of Injury or lliness," with the same information as in 3510.32,
above.

3510.3.4  Annually, the summary Cal/OSHA Form 200 shall be prepared and posted no later than
February 1 in a place easily observable by employees. Said form shall remain posted until March 1.

3510.3.5 All records specified in this section shall be maintained in the District's files for a minimum
of five years after their preparation.

3510.4 Documentation of Activities.

Records shall be maintained of steps taken to establish and maintain the District's Injury and lliness Prevention
Program. They shall include:

3510.4.1  Records of scheduled and periodic inspections as required by Cal/OSHA [California Code
of Regulations, Title 8, Chapter 4] to identify unsafe conditions and work practices. The documentation
must include the name of the person(s) conducting the inspection, the unsafe conditions and work
practices identified, and the action taken to correct the unsafe conditions and work practices. The rec-
ords are to be maintained for at least three (3) years.

3510.4.2  Documentation of safety and health training required by Cal/OSHA [California Code of
Regulations, Title 8, Chapter 4] for each employee. The documentation must specifically include em-
ployee name or other identifier, training dates, type(s) of training and the name of the training provider.
These records must also be kept for at least three years.



3510.5 Program Communication System.

Readily understandable communication shall be maintained with all affected employees on matters relating to
occupational safety and health, including provisions designed to encourage employees to inform the District of
hazards at the worksite without fear of reprisal. Communications with employees shall include meetings, training
programs, posted written information, and a system of anonymous notification by employees about hazards.

3510.5.1  Written communications to employees shall be in a language they can understand. If an
employee cannot read in any language, said communication shall be made orally in a language he/she
can readily understand.

3510.5.2 The District's Code of Safe Practices, below, shall be posted at a conspicuous location in
the District's maintenance office, and shall be provided to each supervisory employee who shall keep it
readily available.

3510.5.3 Periodic meetings (at least one per quarter) of supervisory employees shall be held under
the direction of the General Manager for the discussion of safety problems and accidents that have oc-
curred. Documentation of these meetings shall be maintained for three years.

3510.54  Supervisory employees shall conduct "toolbox" or "tailgate" safety meetings, or equivalent,
with their crew(s) at least every ten working days to emphasize safety. Documentation of these meet-
ings shall be maintained for three years.

35105.5  General employee meetings shall be conducted (at least one per quarter) at which safety
is freely and openly discussed by those present. Such meetings should be regular, scheduled, and
announced to all employees so that maximum employee attendance can be achieved. Documentation
of these meeting shall be maintained for three years. Discussions at these meetings should concen-
trate on:

3510.5.5.1 Occupational accident and injury history within the District, with possible com-
parisons to other similar agencies.

3510.5.5.2 Feedback from employees.

3510.5.5.3 Guest speakers from the District's workers' compensation insurance carrier or
other agencies concermned with safety.

3510.5.5.4 Brief audio-visual materials that relate to the District's operations.

3510.5.6  Training programs shall be conducted when new equipment, machinery or tools are pur-
chased. Employees shall be instructed in the safe operation of said equipment, machinery or tools.
Documentation of training programs shall be maintained for three years.

3510.5.6.1 New employees shall be trained by their supervisor in the safe operation of
the equipment, machinery and tools with which they will be working prior to being allowed
to work independently. Documentation of new employee training shall be maintained for
three years.



3510.5.7  Posters and bulletins relating to and encouraging safe and healthy practices shall be post-
ed on a rotational basis at a conspicuous location in the District's maintenance office.

3510.5.8 News articles and publications devoted to safety shall be distributed to employees. This
policy shall also be distributed to all employees upon its adoption, to all new employees at the time of
their hiring, and annually thereafter.

3510.5.9 A safety suggestion box shall be maintained where employees, anonymously if desired,
can communicate their concemns to the District's General Manager.

3510.6 Hazard Assessment and Control.

Periodic safety inspections shall be conducted to identify existing hazards in the workplace, or conditions,
equipment and procedures that could be potentially hazardous. The inspections shall be conducted by person-
nel who, through experience or training, are able to identify actual and potential hazards and who understand
safe work practices.

3510.6.1  Safety inspectors will observe if safe work practices are being followed and will ensure that
unsafe conditions or procedures are identified and corrected properly.

3510.6.2  Safety inspections will be conducted at least annually. The frequency of the inspections will
depend on the operations involved, the magnitude of the hazards, the proficiency of employees,
changes in equipment or work processes, and the history of workplace injuries and illnesses.

3510.6.3 A written assessment shall be prepared after said inspections which will document identi-
fied hazards and prescribe procedures for the elimination of same, and measures that can be taken to
prevent their recurrence.

3510.6.4 The General Manager [or other designated program manager] will review written inspec-
tion reports and/or assessments and will assist in prioritizing actions and verify completion of previous
corrective actions. He/she shall also review the overall inspection program to determine trends.

3510.7  Accident Investigation.

All accidents shall be thoroughly and properly investigated by the Field Operations Supervisor [or other respon-
sible managing employee who should be trained in accident investigation], with the primary focus of understand-
ing why the accident or near-miss occurred and what actions can be taken to preclude recurrence. A written re-
port of said investigation shall be prepared which adequately identifies the cause(s) of the accident or near-miss
occurrence.

3510.7.1  The investigation must obtain all the facts surrounding the occurrence: what caused the
situation to occur; who was involved; was/were the employee(s) qualified to perform the functions in-
volved in the accident or near-miss; were they properly trained; were proper operating procedures es-
tablished for the task involved; were procedures followed, and if not, why not; where else this or a simi-
lar situation might exist, and how it can be corrected.



3510.8

General

3510.7.2  The accident investigator must determine which aspects of the operation or process re-
quire additional attention (what type of constructive action can eliminate the cause(s) of the accident or
near-miss).

3510.7.3  Actions already taken to reduce or eliminate the exposures being investigated should be
noted, along with those remaining to be addressed.

3510.7.4  Any interim or temporary precautions should also be noted. Any pending corrective action
and reason for delaying its implementation should be identified.

3510.7.5 Corrective action should be identified in terms of not only how it will prevent a recurrence of
the accident or near-miss, but also how it will improve the overall operation. The solution should be a
means of achieving not only accident control, but also total operation control.

Code of Safe Practices.

3510.8.1  All employees shall follow these safe practices rules, render every possible aid to safe op-
erations, and report all unsafe conditions or practices to the Foreman, Field Operations Supervisor, or
General Manager [or other responsible managing employees].

3510.8.2  Supervising employees shall insist on employees observing and obeying every rule, regu-
lation, and order as is necessary to the safe conduct of the work, and shall take such action as neces-
sary to obtain observance.

3510.8.3  Anyone known to be under the influence of drugs or intoxicating substances which impair
the employee's ability to safely perform the assigned duties shall not be allowed on the job while in that
condition, and will be subject to the discipline specified in Policy #2190.

3510.8.4 Horseplay, scuffling, and other acts which tend to have an adverse influence on the safety
or well-being of the employees shall be prohibited.

3510.8.5 Work shall be well planned and supervised to prevent injuries in the handling of materials
and in working together with equipment.

3510.8.6  No one shall knowingly be permitted or required to work while the employee's ability or
alertness is so impaired by fatigue, illness, or other causes that it might unnecessarily expose the em-
ployee or others to injury.

3510.8.7  Employees shall not enter manholes, underground vaults, chambers or other similar plac-
es that receive little ventilation, unless it has been determined that it is safe to enter.

3510.8.8  Employees shall be instructed to ensure that all guards and other protective devices are in
proper places and adjusted, and shall report deficiencies promptly to the Foreman or Field Operations
Supervisor [or other responsible managing employee].



3510.8.9  Crowding or pushing when boarding or leaving any vehicle or other conveyance shall be
prohibited.

3510.8.10 Workers shall not handle or tamper with any electrical equipment, machinery, or air or wa-
ter lines in a manner not within the scope of their duties, unless they have received instructions from
the Foreman or Field Operations Supervisor [or other responsible managing employee].

3510.8.11 All injuries shall be reported promptly to the Foreman or Field Operations Supervisor [or
other responsible managing employee] so that arrangements can be made for medical or first aid
treatment.

3510.8.12 When liting heavy objects, the large muscles of the leg instead of the smaller muscles of
the back shall be used.

3510.8.13 Materials, tools, or other objects shall not be thrown from buildings or structures until prop-
er precautions are taken to protect others from the falling objects.

3510.8.14 Employees shall cleanse thoroughly after handling hazardous or unhealthy substances,
and follow special instructions from authorized sources.

3510.8.15 Work shall be so arranged that employees are able to face a ladder and use both hands
while climbing.

3510.8.16 Gasoline shall not be used for cleaning purposes.
3510.8.17 No burning, welding, or other source of ignition shall be applied to any enclosed tank or
vessel, even if there are some openings, until it has first been determined that no possibility of explo-
sion exists, and authority for the work is obtained from the Field Operations Supervisor [or other re-
sponsible managing employee].
3510.8.18 Any damage to scaffolds, falsework, shoring or other supporting structures shall be imme-
diately reported to the Foreman or Field Operations Supervisor [or other responsible managing em-
ployee].

Use of Tools and Equipment
3510.8.19 All tools and equipment shall be maintained in good condition.
3510.8.20 Damaged tools or equipment shall be removed from service and tagged "DEFECTIVE."
3510.8.21 Pipe or Stillson wrenches shall not be used as substitute for other wrenches.
3510.8.22 Only appropriate tools shall be used for the job.

3510.8.23 Wrenches shall not be altered by the addition of handle-extensions or "cheaters."

3510.8.24 Files shall be equipped with handles and not used to punch or pry.



3510.8.25 Screwdrivers shall not be used as chisels.
3510.8.26 Wheelbarrows shall not be used with handles in an upright position.

3510.8.27 Portable electric tools shall not be lifted or lowered by means of the power cord. Ropes
shall be used for this purpose.

3510.8.28 In locations where the use of a portable power tool is difficult, the tool shall be supported by
means of a rope or similar support of adequate strength.

Machinery and Vehicles
3510.8.29 Only authorized persons shall operate machinery or equipment.

3510.8.30 Loose or frayed clothing, or long hair, dangling ties, finger rings, etc., shall not be worn
around moving machinery or other sources of entanglement.

3510.8.31 Machinery shall not be serviced, repaired or adjusted while in operation, nor shall oiling of
moving parts be attempted, except on equipment that is designed or fitted with safeguards to protect
the person performing the work.

3510.8.32 Where appropriate, lock-out procedures shall be used.

3510.8.33 Employees shall not work under vehicles supported by jacks or chain hoists, without pro-
tective blocking that will prevent injury if jacks or hoists should fail.

3510.8.34 Air hoses shall not be disconnected at compressors until hose line has been bled.

3510.8.35 All excavations shall be visually inspected before backfilling, to ensure that it is safe to
backfill.

3510.8.36 Excavating equipment shall not be operated near tops of cuts, banks, and cliffs if employ-
ees are working below.

3510.8.37 Tractors, backhoes and other similar equipment shall not operate where there is possibility
of overtuming in dangerous areas like edges of deep fills, cut banks, and steep slopes.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

A0 NOEE LAME » MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATOM, CALIFORERY Thddd « TOTMI1-1943 = FAX HAI1-9703

rarkmuRl s SEEEEL dHInT PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Smoke-free Workplace
POLICY NUMBER: 3515

35151 Smoking is prohibited within the buildings, facilities and vehicles of [DISTRICT NAME]. Those who
smoke are requested to do so outdoors away from entrances or windows of buildings and covered parking lots.

3515.2  Extra care should be taken when working around combustible materials, or out in the field near equip-
ment or supplies.

3515.2.1  Personnel who smoke in the field should use extreme caution and dispose of cigarettes in
a responsible and safe manner, not littering or throwing residual parts on the ground or street or areas
of drains, etc.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

A0 NOEE LAME » MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATOM, CALIFORERY Thddd « TOTMI1-1943 = FAX HAI1-9703

GRATON
= PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Substance Abuse
POLICY NUMBER: 3520

3520.1  Policy Statement: The purpose of this policy is to assure worker fitness for duty and to protect District
employees and the public from risks posed by the use of alcohol and controlled substances. This policy is also
intended to comply with all applicable Federal regulations governing workplace anti-drug programs in the trans-
portation industry. The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) of the Department of Transportation (DOT) has
enacted 49 CFR Part 382 that mandate urine drug testing and breathalyzer alcohol testing for safety-sensitive
positions and prevents performance of safety-sensitive functions when there is a positive test result. The De-
partment of Transportation has also enacted 49 DFR Part 40 that sets standards for the collection and testing of
urine and breath specimens. In addition, the Department of Transportation has enacted 49 CFR Part 29, “The
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988,” which requires the establishment of drug free workplace policies and the
reporting of certain drug-related offenses to the Department of Transportation. This policy incorporates those
requirements of safety-sensitive employees and others when so noted.

[District] recognizes that the use of alcohol and/or controlled substances in the workplace is not condu-
cive to safe working conditions. In order to promote a safe, healthy and productive work environment for all em-
ployees, it is the objective of the District to have a work force that is free from the influence of alcohol and con-
trolled substances.

3520.1.1  Applicability: This policy applies to all employees when they are on District property or
when performing any District related business. Certain provisions, where identified, will apply only to
safety-sensitive employees. It also applies to off-site lunch periods and breaks when a safety-sensitive
employee is scheduled to return to work.

A safety-sensitive employee is:

a) one in any classification requiring the use of a Class “A” or Class “B” commercial driver’s license,
as listed in Appendix A;

b) one who has voluntarily driven a District vehicle requiring a commercial license within the last 12-
month period, or who desires in the future to voluntarily drive a District vehicle requiring a com-
mercial license; or,

c) one who performs safety-sensitive functions as specified in Appendix A. A safety-sensitive em-
ployee is considered to be performing a safety-sensitive function during any period in which that
employee is actually performing, ready to perform, or immediately available to perform any safety-
sensitive functions.

3520.1.2  Prohibited Substances: “Prohibited substances” addressed by this policy include the fol-
lowing:

a) Drugs: marijuana, amphetamines, opiates, phencyclidine (PCP) and cocaine.

b) Alcohol. The use of beverages or substances, including any medication, containing alcohol such



that it is present in the body at a level in excess of that stated in DOT guidelines while actually per-
forming, ready to perform, or immediately available to perform any District business is prohibited.
“Alcohol” is defined as: the intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol, or other low mo-
lecular weight alcohol, including methyl or isopropyl alcohol.

Legal Medications. Using or being under the influence of any legally pre-scribed medication(s), or
non-prescription medication(s) while performing district business or while on District property is
prohibited to the extent that such use or influence affects job safety or effective and efficient job
performance. This prohibition includes the use of medically prescribed marijuana. An employee
who feels his/her performance of work-related duties may be impaired by use of any legal sub-
stance which carries a warning label that indicates that mental functioning, motor skills and/or
judgment may be adversely affected should report it to his/her supervisor, and medical advice
should be sought before performing work-related duties. In the above instance, an employee using
legal prescribed medication or non-prescription medication may continue to work if the supervisor
determines that the employee does not pose a safety threat and that job performance is not af-
fected by such use.

3520.1.3  Prohibited Conduct:

a)

Manufacture, Trafficking, Possession and Use. Engaging in unlawful manufacture, distribution or
dispensing of a controlled substance or alcohol on District premises, in a District vehicle or while
conducting District business off the premises is absolutely prohibited. Violation may result in termi-
nation. Law enforcement shall be notified, as appropriate, where criminal activity is suspected. En-
gaging in unlawful possession or use of a controlled substance or alcohol on District premises, in a
District vehicle or while conducting District business off the premises is absolutely prohibited. Vio-
lation will result in removal from duty and referral to a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP), and
may result in discipline up to and including termination of employment.

Impaired/Not Fit for Duty. Any employee who is reasonably suspected of being impaired, under
the influence of a prohibited substance, or not fit for duty shall be removed from job duties and be
required to undergo a reasonable suspicion controlled substance or alcohol test. Employees failing
to pass this reasonable suspicion controlled substance or alcohol test shall remain off duty and be
referred to an SAP. A controlled substance or alcohol test is considered positive (failed) if the indi-
vidual is found to have a quantifiable presence of a prohibited substance in the body above the
minimum thresholds defined in the DOT guidelines.

Alcohol Use. No safety-sensitive employee may report for duty or remain on duty when his/her
ability to perform assigned functions is adversely affected by alcohol or when his/her breath alco-
hol concentration is 0.04 or greater. No employee shall use alcohol during working hours. No safe-
ty-sensitive employee shall use alcohol within four (4) hours of reporting for duty. Violations of this
provision is prohibited and will subject the employee to disciplinary action, including removal from
safety-sensitive duty and referral to an SAP.

Compliance with Testing Requirements. All safety-sensitive employees are subject to controlled
substance testing and breathe alcohol testing. Any safety-sensitive employee who refuses to
comply with a request for testing, who provides false information in connection with a test or who
attempts to falsify test results through tampering, contamination, adulteration, or substitution shall
be removed from duty immediately and be referred to an SAP. Refusal to submit to a test can in-
clude an inability to provide a urine specimen or breathe sample without a valid medical explana-
tion, as well as a verbal declaration, obstructive behavior or physical absence resulting in the ina-
bility to conduct the test.

Treatment/Rehabilitation Program. An employee with a controlled substance and/or alcohol prob-
lem will be afforded an opportunity for treatment in accordance with the following provisions:



f) Positive Controlled Substance and/or Alcohol Test: A Rehabilitation Program is available for em-
ployees who have tested positive for a prohibited substance on a one-time basis only. Employees
will be terminated immediately on the occurrence of a second event with a verified positive test re-
sult. Program costs and subsequent controlled substance and/or alcohol testing costs will be paid
by the employee. When recommended by the SAP, participation and completion of the rehabilita-
tion program is mandatory. Failure of an employee to attend and complete a prescribed program
will result in termination from employment. Prior to return-to-duty testing, an employee must follow
the rehabilitation program recommended by the SAP and agree to and sign a Retun-To-Duty
Agreement. The duration and frequency of follow-up testing will be determined by the SAP but will
not be shorter than one (1) year or longer than five (5) years.

g) Voluntary Admittance: All employees who feel they have a problem with controlled substances
and/or alcohol may request voluntary admission to a rehabilitation program. Requests must be
submitted to the General Manager or his/her designee for review. Program costs and subsequent
controlled substance and/or alcohol testing costs will be paid by the employee. An employee com-
pleting a rehabilitation program must agree to and sign a Return-To-Duty Agreement, pass a re-
tum-to-duty controlled substance and/or alcohol test and be subject to unannounced follow-up
testing for thirty-six (36) months following return to duty. A positive result on the return-to-duty test
or on the unannounced follow-up tests will result in termination from employment. Participants in
the rehabilitation program may use accumulated sick leave, vacation and floating holidays, if any.

3520.1.4  Notifying The District of Criminal Drug Conviction: Pursuant to the “Drug Free Workplace
Act of 1988," any employee who fails to immediately notify the District of any criminal controlled sub-
stance statute conviction shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of em-
ployment.

3520.1.5  Proper Application of the Policy: The District is dedicated to assuring fair and equitable
application of this Substance Abuse Policy. There-fore, supervisors are required to administer all as-
pects of the policy in an unbiased and impartial manner. Any supervisor who knowingly disregards the
requirements of this policy, or who is found to deliberately misuse the policy with respect to his/her sub-
ordinates shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

3520.1.6  Testing for Prohibited Substances: Analytical urine controlled substance testing and
breathe testing for alcohol will be conducted as required under DOT guidelines. All employees shall be
subject to testing prior to employment and for reasonable suspicion. All safety-sensitive employees shall
be subject to testing randomly and following an accident, as defined in the DOT guidelines. In addition,
all safety-sensitive employees will be tested prior to returning to duty after failing a controlled substance
and/or alcohol test. Employees who have returned to duty will be subject to unannounced follow-up
tests for up to five (5) years, as determined by an SAP. Safety-sensitive employees who perform safety-
sensitive functions as defined in the DOT guidelines shall also be subject to testing on a randomly se-
lected and unannounced basis.

Testing shall be conducted in a manner to assure a high degree of accuracy and reliability and using
techniques, equipment, and laboratory facilities which have been approved by the Department of Health
and Human Services (DHHS), including split-sample testing. All testing will be conducted consistent
with the procedures put forth in the DOT guidelines.

An initial controlled substance screen will be conducted on each specimen. For those specimens that
are positive, a confirmatory Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry (GC/MS) test will be performed.



The test will be considered positive if the controlled substance levels present are above the minimum
thresholds established in the DOT guidelines.

Tests for alcohol concentration will be conducted utilizing an approved Evidential Breath Testing de-
vice (EBT) operated by a trained Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT). If the initial test indicated an alcohol
concentration of 0.02 or greater, a confirmation test will be performed to confirm the result of the initial
test. A safety-sensitive employee who has a confirmed alcohol concentration of 0.02, but less than 0.04
will be removed from his/her position for at least twenty-four (24) hours unless a retest results in an al-
cohol concentration of 0.02 or less. An alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater will be considered a pos-
itive alcohol test and in violation of DOT guidelines and this policy.

Any employee who has a confirmed positive controlled substance or alcohol test will be removed from
his/her position, informed of educational and rehabilitation programs available, and evaluated by an
SAP.

The District affirms the need to protect individual dignity, privacy and confidentiality throughout the test-
ing process.

Circumstances under Which Employees May be Tested:

a) Pre-Employment Testing. All job applicants for any safety sensitive position who have been of-
fered District employment, including current safety-sensitive employees who promote, demote
or transfer to another safety sensitive position, shall undergo urine controlled substance testing
prior to employment. Receipt of a satisfactory test result is required prior to employment and
failure of a controlled substance test will disqualify the candidate from further consideration for
employment. Current employees who promote, demote or transfer from non-safety-sensitive to
safety-sensitive position shall test negative prior to assignment to a safety-sensitive classifica-
tion. The District will obtain records from previous employers of new employees in conform-
ance with DOT guidelines. Probationary employees who receive a positive alcohol and/or sub-
stance abuse test, or who fail to provide “clean” records from previous employers will fail to
complete the District’s probationary period.

b) Reasonable Suspicion Testing. All employees will be subject to urine and/or breathe testing
when there is a reason to believe that controlled substances or alcohol use is adversely affect-
ing job performance. A reasonable suspicion referral for testing will be made on the basis of
documented objective facts and circumstances which are consistent with the effects of sub-
stance abuse. Examples of reasonable suspicion include, but are not limited to, the following:
1. Adequate documentation of unsatisfactory work performance or on-the-job behavior.

2. Physical signs and symptoms consistent with prohibited substance use.

3. Occurrence of a serious or potentially serious accident that may have been caused by hu-
man error.

4. Fights (i.e., physical contact), assaults and flagrant disregard or violations of established
safety, security, or other operational procedures.

Reasonable-suspicion determinations will be made by a supervisor who is trained to detect the

signs and symptoms of controlled substance and alcohol use and who reasonably concludes

that an employee may be adversely affected or impaired in his/her work performance due to

prohibited substance abuse or misuse.

c) Post-Accident Testing. Safety-sensitive employees will be required to undergo controlled sub-
stance and/or breathe alcohol testing if they are involved in an accident with a District vehicle
that results in a fatality. This includes all safety-sensitive employees who are on duty in the ve-
hicles. In addition, a post-accident test will be conducted if an accident results in injuries requir-



ing transportation to a medical treatment facility; or where one or more vehicles incurs disabling
damage that requires towing from the site; or the safety-sensitive employee receives a citation
under State or local law for a moving traffic violation arising from the accident.

Following an accident, the safety-sensitive employee will be tested as soon as possible, but not
to exceed eight (8) hours for alcohol and thirty-two (32) hours for controlled substances. Any
employee who leaves the scene of the accident without appropriate authorization prior to sub-
mission to controlled substance and alcohol testing will be considered to have refused the test
and be subject to termination of employment. Post-accident testing of safety-sensitive employ-
ees will include not only the operation personnel, but any other employees whose performance
could have contributed to the accident.

Random Testing. Employees working in safety-sensitive classifications will be subjected to
randomly selected, unannounced testing. The random selection will be by a scientifically valid
method. Each safety-sensitive employee will have an equal chance of being tested each time
selections are made. Safety-sensitive employees will be tested either just before departure, or
during duty, or just after the safety-sensitive employee has ceased performing his/her duty.
When safety-sensitive employees are off work due to long-term lay-offs, illness, injury, or vaca-
tion, the employee’s name will be placed back into the pool and another employee name se-
lected.

The number of safety-sensitive employees selected for random testing will be the amount re-
quired in the DOT guidelines. Currently, 25% of the employee pool is tested for alcohol and
50% for substance abuse. The employee pool will either be all [district] safety-sensitive em-
ployees or, if the District participates in a consortium of employers, all safety-sensitive employ-
ees within the consortium.

Return-to-Duty Testing. All employees who previously tested positive for a controlled sub-
stance or alcohol test must test negative and be evaluated and released to duty by the SAP be-
fore returning to duty. Employees will be required to undergo unannounced follow-up controlled
substance and/or alcohol breath testing following returning to duty. The SAP will determine the
duration and frequency. However, it shall not be less than six tests during the first 12 months,
nor longer than 60 months in total, following return to duty.

Employee Requested Testing. Any employee who questions the result of a required controlled
substance test may request that an additional test be conducted. This additional test may be
conducted at the same laboratory or at a different DHHS certified laboratory. The test must be
conducted on the split sample that was provided at the same time as the original sample. All
costs for such testing are to be paid by the employee unless the second test invalidated the
original test. The method of collecting, storing, and testing the split sample will be consistent
with the procedures set forth in the DOT guidelines. The safety-sensitive employee’s request
for a retest must be made to the Medical Review Officer (MRO) within 72 hours of notice of the
initial test result. Requests after 72 hours will only be accepted if the delay was due to docu-
mentable facts that were beyond the control of the employee.

Records Retention. The District shall maintain complete records of alcohol and/or controlled
substance test results for each employee in a secure location with controlled access. Employee
records are confidential and will be available to the DOT or any state or local officials with regu-
latory authority over the District or any of its drivers only. Records will be kept for a minimum of
five (5) years regarding the following: driver alcohol tests; positive controlled substance tests;
documentation on refusals to take alcohol or controlled substance tests; and, employee evalua-
tions and referrals. Records will be kept for a minimum of two (2) years regarding the alcohol
and controlled substance collection process. Records will be kept for a minimum of one (1)
year regarding the following: collection process; collection logbooks; documents of random se-



lection process; calibration documents for breath testing devise; and, documentation of breath
alcohol technician training.

3520.1.7  Employee Assessment: Any employee who tests positive for the presence of controlled
substances or whose breath alcohol concentration is above the minimum thresholds set forth in the
DOT guidelines will be assessed by an SAP. An SAP is a District selected licensed physician, psy-
chologist, social worker, employee assistance professional, or addiction counselor with knowledge of
and clinically experienced in the diagnosis and treatment of drug and alcohol related disorders. The
SAP will evaluate each employee to determine what assistance, if any, the employee needs in resolving
problems associated with prohibited substance or alcohol abuse or misuse.

If an employee is returned to duty following rehabilitation, he/she must agree to and sign a Return-to-
Duty Agreement, pass a return-to-duty controlled substance and/or alcohol test and be subject to unan-
nounced follow-up tests for a period of one (1) to five (5) years, as determined by the SAP. The cost of
any rehabilitation and subsequent controlled substance and/or alcohol testing is borne by the employee
and is on a one-time basis only. An employee will be immediately terminated from employment on the
occurrence of a second verified positive test result. Employees may use accumulated sick leave, vaca-
tion, administrative leave, personal necessity leave, and/or floating holidays, if any, to participate in the
prescribed rehabilitation program.

3520.1.8  Test Related Time-Off Work Provisions: Any employee who is relieved from duty due to a
positive drug or controlled substance test must use accumulated compensated leave (i.e., vacation, sick
leave, administrative leave, personnel necessity leave or floating holidays, if any) during the regularly
scheduled work time missed. If the employee has insufficient accumulated compensated leave to cover
the regularly scheduled work time missed due to a positive alcohol or controlled substance test, such
time shall be without pay. In the event there is a false positive test the District, upon verification, will
compensate the employee for any regularly scheduled work time missed as a result thereof.

3520.1.9  Contact Person: Any questions regarding this policy should be directed to the following
District representative:

Name:

Title:

Address:

Telephone:

3520.10 Definitions:

a) Accident - An unintended happening or mishap where there is loss of human life (regardless of
fault), bodily injury or significant property damage.

b) Alcohol - The intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol or other low molecular weight al-
cohol including methyl or isopropyl alcohol.

c) Alcohol Concentration - The alcohol in a volume of breath expressed in terms of grams of alcohol
per 210 liters of breath as indicated by an evidential breath test under this policy (e.g., 0.02 means
0.02 grams of alcohol in 210 liters of expired deep lung air).

d) Alcohol Use - Consumption of any beverage, mixture, or preparation, including any medication con-
taining ethyl alcohol. Since ingestion of a given amount of alcohol produces the same alcohol con-
centration in an individual whether the alcohol comes from a mixed drink or cough syrup, the DOT
prohibits the use of any substance containing alcohol, such as prescription or over-the-counter
medication or liquor-filled chocolates. Prescription medications containing alcohol may have a
greater impairing effect due to the presence of other elements (e.g., antihistamines).



Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT) - A person trained to proficiency in the operation of the Evidential
Breath Testing (EBT) device that the technician is using in the alcohol testing procedures. BAT’s
are the only qualified personnel to administer the EBT tests.

Chain of Custody - The procedures to account for the integrity of each urine specimen by tracking
its handling and storage from point of collection to final disposition.

Collection Site - A place designated by the District where individuals present themselves for the
purpose of providing a specimen of urine and/or breathe.

Commercial Motor Vehicle - A motor vehicle, or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to
transport passengers or property if the motor vehicle: (1) has a gross combination weight ratio of
26,001 or more pounds inclusive of a towed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of more than
10,000 pounds; or, (2) has a gross vehicle weight rating of 26,001 or more pounds; or, (3) is de-
signed to transport 16 or more passengers, including the driver; or, (4) is of any size and is used in
the transportation of materials found to be hazardous for the purposes of the Hazardous Materials
Transportation Act and which require the motor vehicle to be placarded under the Hazardous Mate-
rials Regulations.

Confirmation Test - For alcohol testing, a second test following a screening test with a result of 0.02
or greater, that provides quantitative data of alcohol concentration. For controlled substances test-
ing this is a second analytical procedure to identify the presence of a specific drug or metabolite
which is independent of the screen test and which uses a different technique and chemical principle
from that of the screen test in order to ensure reliability and accuracy. (Gas chromatography/mass
spectrometry (CG/MS) is the only authorized confirmation method of cocaine, marijuana, opiates,
amphetamines, and phencyclidine.)

Controlled Substance (Drug) Test - A method of detecting and measuring the presence of alcohol
and other controlled substances, whether legal or illegal, in a person’s body. A controlled substance
test may be either an initial test or confirmation test. An initial controlled substance test is designed
to identify specimens having concentrations of a particular class of drug above a specified concen-
tration level. It eliminates negative specimens from further consideration.

Covered Employee - A person, including a volunteer or applicant, who performs a safety-sensitive
function for the District.

Department of Transportation Guidelines - The controlled substance and alcohol testing rules - 49
CFR Part 382 (FWHA - Commercial Motor Vehicle) - setting forth the procedures for controlled
substance and alcohol testing (49 CFR Part 40) in all transportation industries.

District - [district name].

District Time - Any period of time in which an employee is actually performing a District function.
Any period of time in which a safety-sensitive employee is actually performing, ready to perform, or
immediately available to perform any safety-sensitive functions.

Driver - Any person who operates a commercial motor vehicle for the District. This includes full
time, regularly employed drivers; and casual, intermittent or occasional drivers.

Drug (Controlled Substance) Metabolite - The specific substance produced when the human body
metabolizes (changes) a given drug (controlled substance) as it passes through the body and is
excreted in urine.

Evidential Breath Testing Device (EBT) - The device to be used for breath alcohol testing.

Medical Review Officer (MRO) - A licensed physician responsible for analyzing laboratory results
generated by the District’s substance abuse policy testing program. The MRO is knowledgeable
about substance abuse disorders and has appropriate medical training to interpret and evaluate
positive test results.

Performing (Safety-Sensitive Function) - A safety-sensitive employee is considered to be perform-
ing a safety-sensitive function and includes any period in which the safety sensitive employee is ac-
tually performing, ready to perform, or immediately available to perform such functions.



t) Post-Accident Alcohol and/or Controlled Substance testing - Testing conducted after accidents on
employees whose performance could have contributed to the accident. For drivers this is deter-
mined by a citation for a moving traffic violation and for all fatal accidents even if the driver is not
cited for a moving traffic violation. See “Accident.”

u) Pre-Employment Controlled Substance testing - Testing conducted after an offer to hire has been
extended to a job applicant, but before actually performing District functions as an employee. Also
required when employees transfer to a safety-sensitive position.

v) Prohibited Drugs (Controlled Substances) - Marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, or phen-
cyclidine.

w) Prohibited Substances - Synonymous with drug abuse and/or alcohol misuse or abuse.

X) Random Alcohol and/or Controlled Substance Testing - Testing con-ducted on a random unan-
nounced basis just before, during or just after performance of safety-sensitive functions.

y) Reasonable Suspicion Alcohol and/or Controlled Substance Testing - Testing conducted when a
trained supervisor observes behavior or appearance that is characteristic of alcohol misuse or con-
trolled substance abuse.

z) Refuse to Submit (to an Alcohol and/or Controlled Substance Test) - Failure by an employee to
provide an adequate breath or urine sample for testing without a valid medical explanation after that
employee received notice of the requirement to be tested, or engages in conduct that clearly ob-
structs the testing process (i.., verbal declarations, obstructive behavior or physical absence re-
sulting in the inability to conduct the test).

aa) Rehabilitation - The total process of restoring an employee to satisfactory work performance
through constructive confrontation, referral to the SAP and participation in SAP recommendations
such as education, treatment and/or support groups to resolve personal, physical or emotion-
al/mental problems which contributed to job problems.

bb) Return-to-Duty and Follow-Up Alcohol and/or Controlled Substance testing - Testing conducted
when an employee who has violated the prohibited alcohol or controlled substance conduct stand-
ards returns to performing duties. Follow-up tests are unannounced, and at least six tests must be
conducted in the first 12 months after an employee returns to duty. Follow-up testing may be ex-
tended for up to 60 months following return-to-duty upon the SAP recommendation.

cc) Return-to-Duty Agreement - A document agreed to and signed by the General Manager or his/her
designee, the employee, and the SAP, that outlines the terms and conditions under which the em-
ployee may return to duty after having had a verified positive controlled substance test result, or an
alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater on an alcohol test.

dd) Safety-Sensitive Employee (Function and/or Position) - An employee is considered to be perform-
ing a safety-sensitive function during any period in which that employee is actually performing,
ready to perform, or immediately available to perform any safety-sensitive functions. (A complete
list of safety-sensitive classifications and functions is listed in Appendix A of this policy.)

ee) Screening (Initial) Test - An analytical procedure in alcohol testing to determine whether an em-
ployee may have a prohibited concentration of alcohol in their system. In controlled substance test-
ing, it is an immunoassay screen to eliminate negative urine specimens from further consideration

ff) Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) - A licensed physician (Medical Doctor or Doctor of Osteopa-
thy), or a licensed or certified psychologist, social worker (with knowledge of and clinical experience
in the diagnosis and treatment of drug and alcohol related disorders, the license alone does not au-
thorize this), Certified Employee Assistance Professional (CEAP), or addiction counselor certified
by the National Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors Certification Commission
(NAADAC) with knowledge of and clinical experience in the diagnosis and treatment of alcohol and
con-trolled substances related disorders.



gg) Supervisor - Foreman, Superintendent, Division Manager or General Manager who has had one

hour of training on the signs and symptoms of alcohol abuse and an additional hour training on the
signs and symptoms of controlled substance abuse

hh) Vehicle - Bus, electric bus, van, automobile, rail car, trolley car, trolley bus, or vessel used for mass

transportation.

3520.2Procedures:

3250.2.1  Reasonable Suspicion Testing:

a)

An employee who may possibly be under the influence of alcohol and/or controlled substances is
observed by a supervisor. Any employee may identify someone suspected of alcohol and/or con-
trolled substance abuse to any supervisor (employees should realize, however, that it is against
District policy to make false or malicious statements about other employees and doing so can result
in disciplinary action). The supervisor must witness first-hand the employee’s signs and symptoms.
The supervisor is then obligated to ensure that the matter is immediately investigated. If possible,
two supervisors determine (independently or together) that the employee in question may be under
the influence of alcohol and/or controlled substances.

When the supervisor(s) suspect and believe that the employee may be under the influence of alco-
hol and/or controlled substances, the employee is then immediately suspended from duty (with pay)
and driven by a District employee (or others designated) to the District specified collection site. Be-
cause of a testing facility requirement, the employee in question must show proof of identification,
such as a driver’s license photo or state-issued photo identification card. Whenever practical, the
General Manager (or his/her designee) should be notified in advance of the employee being taken
to the collection site.

At the collection site, the employee will be required to submit a urine sample in the event that con-
trolled substances are suspected, or a breath sample in the event that alcohol intoxication is sus-
pected by the on-duty technician. Care will be taken to provide the employee with maximum privacy
without compromising the integrity of the sample.

The District will take precautions to prevent the employee being tested from going back to work and
driving their own car home if any of the tests are positive. Instead, the employee will be taken home
from the collection by a District employee (or others designated).

The employee whose test results are negative (0.02 alcohol concentration or less) will be reinstated
immediately. The employee whose confirmation test results indicate an alcohol concentration
greater that 0.02 but less than 0.04, will not be permitted to return to duty or perform a safety-
sensitive function for twenty-four (24) hours after administration of the test. The employee whose
confirmation test result indicates an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater for alcohol will be re-
ferred to a District specified SAP who will assess the employee’s condition and make a recommen-
dation for treatment which, if accepted by the District, must be followed by the employee. Failure to
follow the accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to return-to-duty and unannounced fol-
low-up testing will result in the employee’s termination of employment.

The employee whose controlled substance test results are verified negative will be reinstated im-
mediately. The employee whose controlled substance test is verified positive by the Medical Re-
view Officer will be referred to a District specified SAP who will assess the employee’s condition
and make a recommendation for treatment which, if accepted by the District, must be followed by
the employee. Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to return-to-duty
and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the employee’s termination of employment.

3520.2.2  Random Testing:



a)

b)

The compliance company notifies the General Manager, who in turn notifies the supervisor to send
the safety-sensitive employee to the collection site for alcohol and/or controlled substance testing.
The supervisor notifies the safety-sensitive employee to go to the collection site for alcohol and/or
controlled substance testing immediately. Because of a testing facility requirement, the safety-
sensitive employee sent to the collection site must have proof of identification, such as a drivers li-
cense photo or state-issued photo identification card.

At the collection site, the safety-sensitive employee will be required to submit a urine sample (in the
event that controlled substances are to be tested for) or a breath sample (in the event that alcohol is
being tested for) to the on-duty technician. Care will be taken to provide the safety-sensitive em-
ployee with maximum privacy without compromising the integrity of the sample.

The safety-sensitive employee whose test results are negative (0.02 alcohol concentration or less)
will be released to return to work. The safety-sensitive employee whose confirmation test results in-
dicate an alcohol concentration greater than 0.02 but less than 0.04, will not be permitted to return
to duty or perform a safety-sensitive function for 24 hours after administration of the test. The safe-
ty-sensitive employee whose confirmation test result indicates an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or
greater will be referred to a District specified SAP who will assess the safety-sensitive employee’s
condition and make a recommendation for treatment which, if accepted by the District, must be fol-
lowed by the safety-sensitive employee. Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refusal
to submit to return-to-duty and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the safety-sensitive em-
ployee’s termination of employment.

The safety-sensitive employee whose controlled substance test results are verified negative will be
released to return to work. The safety-sensitive employee whose controlled substance test is veri-
fied positive by the Medical Review Officer will be referred to a District specified SAP who will as-
sess the safety-sensitive employee’s condition and make a recommendation for treatment which, if
accepted by the District, must be followed by the safety-sensitive employee. Failure to follow the
accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to return-to-duty and unannounced follow-up test-
ing will result in the safety-sensitive employee’s termination of employment.

3520.2.3 Post- Accident:

a)
b)

The safety-sensitive employee notifies a supervisor than an accident has occurred.

The supervisor determines that the circumstances of the accident warrant a post-accident test
when a citation was issued or a fatality occurred. Thereafter, the supervisor directs the safety-
sensitive employee to immediately go to the collection site for alcohol and controlled substance
testing. Because of a testing facility requirement, the safety-sensitive employee in question must
have proof of identification, such as a driver’s license photo or state-issued photo identification card.
At the collection site, the safety-sensitive employee will be required to submit a urine sample for
controlled substances and a breath sample for alcohol testing to the on-duty technician. Care will
be taken to provide the safety-sensitive employee with maximum privacy without compromising the
integrity of the sample.

The General Manager (or his/her designee) will be notified that an accident has occurred and that
the safety-sensitive employee was instructed to go to the collection site.

The safety-sensitive employee whose test results are negative (0.02 alcohol concentration or less)
will be released to return to work. The safety-sensitive employee whose confirmation test results in-
dicate an alcohol concentration greater than 0.02 but less than 0.04, will not be permitted to return
to duty or perform a safety-sensitive function for 24 hours after administration of the test. The safe-
ty-sensitive employee whose confirmation test result indicates an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or
greater will be referred to a District specified SAP who will assess the safety-sensitive employee’s
condition and make a recommendation for treatment which, if accepted by the District, must be fol-
lowed by the safety-sensitive employee. Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refusal



to submit to return-to-duty and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the safety-sensitive em-
ployee’s termination.

The safety-sensitive employee whose controlled substance test results are verified negative will be
released to return to work. The safety-sensitive employee whose controlled substance test is veri-
fied positive by the Medical Review Officer will be referred to a District specified SAP who will as-
sess the safety-sensitive employee’s condition and make a recommendation for treatment which, if
accepted by the District, must be followed by the safety-sensitive employee. Failure to follow the
accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to return-to-duty and unannounced follow-up test-
ing will result in the safety-sensitive employee’s termination of employment.

3520.2.4 Return-To-Duty and Follow Up

a)

The safety-sensitive employee notifies a supervisor than an accident has occurred. The supervisor
determines that the circumstances of the accident warrant a post-accident test when a citation was
issued or a fatality occurred. Thereafter, the supervisor directs the safety-sensitive employee to
immediately go to the collection site for alcohol and controlled substance testing. Because of a
testing facility requirement, the safety-sensitive employee in question must have proof of identifica-
tion, such as a driver’s license photo or state-issued photo identification card.

At the collection site, the safety-sensitive employee will be required to submit a urine sample for
controlled substances and a breath sample for alcohol testing to the on-duty technician. Care will
be taken to provide the safety-sensitive employee with maximum privacy without compromising
the integrity of the sample.

The General Manager (or his/her designee) will be notified that an accident has occurred and that
the safety-sensitive employee was instructed to go to the collection site.

The safety-sensitive employee whose test results are negative (0.02 alcohol concentration or less)
will be released to return to work. The safety-sensitive employee whose confirmation test results
indicate an alcohol concentration greater than 0.02 but less than 0.04, will not be permitted to re-
tum to duty or perform a safety-sensitive function for 24 hours after administration of the test. The
safety-sensitive employee whose confirmation test result indicates an alcohol concentration of
0.04 or greater will be referred to a District specified SAP who will assess the safety-sensitive em-
ployee’s condition and make a recommendation for treatment which, if accepted by the District,
must be followed by the safety-sensitive employee. Failure to follow the accepted recommenda-
tions or refusal to submit to return-to-duty and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the safe-
ty-sensitive employee’s termination.

The safety-sensitive employee whose controlled substance test results are verified negative will be
released to return to work. The safety-sensitive employee whose controlled substance test is veri-
fied positive by the Medical Review Officer will be referred to a District specified SAP who will as-
sess the safety-sensitive employee’s condition and make a recommendation for treatment which,
if accepted by the District, must be followed by the safety-sensitive employee. Failure to follow the
accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to return-to-duty and unannounced follow-up test-
ing will result in the safety-sensitive employee’s termination of employment.

3520.2.5 Chain of Custody for Controlled Substance Specimens:

a)
b)

c)

At the time a specimen is collected, the employee will be given a copy of the specimen collection
procedures.

Urine will be in a wide-mouthed clinic specimen container which will remain in full view of the em-
ployee until split, transferred to, sealed and initialed in two tamper-resistant urine bottles.
Immediately after the specimens are collected, the urine bottles will, in the presence of the employ-
ee, be labeled and then initialed by the employee. If the sample must be collected at the site other
than the controlled substance and/or alcohol testing laboratory, the specimens will then be placed



in the transportation container. The container will be sealed in the employee’s presence and the
employee will be asked to initial or sign the container. The container will be sent to the designated
testing laboratory on that day or the earliest business day by the fastest available method.

d) A chain of custody form will be completed by the on-duty technician during the specimen collection
process and attached to and mailed with the specimen.

3520.2.6 Specimen Collection of Strange and/or Unrecognizable Substances:

a) Anemployee is observed with a strange and/or unrecognizable substance.

b) The supervisor, in the presence of a witness, places the strange and/or unrecognizable substance
into a clear plastic bag. The bag is sealed, labeled and signed by both the supervisor and the wit-
ness.

c) Anincident report is written by the supervisor and signed by both the supervisor and the witness.

d) The plastic bag containing the specimen and a copy of the incident report is taken to the collection
site for transportation to the laboratory for analysis.

3520.2.7 Alcohol Concentration:

a) The employee and the on-duty Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT) complete the alcohol testing form
to ensure that the results are properly recorded.

b) After an explanation of how the breathalyzer works, an initial breath sample is taken.

c) Ifthe results of the initial test show an alcohol concentration of 0.02 or greater, a second or confir-
mation test must be conducted. The confirmation test must not be conducted less than fifteen (15)
minutes after, nor more than twenty (20) minutes after the screening test.

d) The confirmation test will utilize Evidential Breath Testing (EBT) devices that print out the results,
date and time, a sequential test number, and the name and serial number of the EBT device to en-
sure the reliability of the results.

3520.2.8 Deviations from Procedures: Unless otherwise provided in DOT guidelines, deviations from

the foregoing procedures shall not invalidate the results of any prohibited substance tests verified positive
by the Medical Review Officer.

APPENDIX “A”
Safety-Sensitive Classifications and Functions

[To be added by General Manager]

Safety-Sensitive Function

Operating any vehicle where a Class A or Class B driver’s license would be required.

Employee’s Name Printed



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 EQIES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 51+ GEATON. CALIFCQIERIA Taddd o TOTAAT =143 = FAX T07A831-9713

GRATON
e PERSONNEL

POLICY TITLE: Workplace Violence Prevention Policy
POLICY NUMBER: 3525

3525.1 Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to maintain a zero tolerance standard of violence in the work-
place. This policy provides District employees with guidance that will maintain an environment at and within Dis-
trict premises and facilities as well as events that are free of violence and the threat of violence. This policy ap-
plies to all full-time and part-time employees and includes volunteers, temporary and provisional employees as
well as contracted employees.

3525.2 Policy: The District prohibits violent behavior of any kind or threats of violence, either implied or direct, in
District premises and facilities as well as at District sponsored events. Such conduct by a District employee will
not be tolerated. An employee who exhibits violent behavior may be subject to criminal prosecution and shall be
subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. Violent threats or actions by a non-employee may
result in criminal prosecution. The District will investigate all complaints filed and will also investigate any possi-
ble violation of this policy of which District management are made aware. Retaliation against a person who
makes a good faith complaint regarding violent behavior or threats of violence made to him/her is also prohibit-
ed.

3525.3 Definitions:

a) Workplace Violence: Behavior in which an employee, former employee or visitor to a workplace inflicts
or threatens to inflict damage to property, serious harm, injury or death to others at the workplace.

b) Threat: The implication or expression of intent to inflict physical harm or actions that a reasonable per-
son would interpret as a threat to physical safety or property.

c) District premises or District facilities means all property of the District including, but not limited to the of-
fices, facilities and surrounding areas on District-owned or -leased property, parking lots, and storage
areas. The term also includes District-owned or -leased vehicles and equipment wherever located, as
well as, pump station, sites, sewer line, excavation sites.

d) Intimidation: Making others afraid or fearful through threatening behavior.

e) Zero-tolerance: A standard that establishes that any behavior, implied or actual, that violates the policy
will not be tolerated.

f)  Court Order: An order by a Court that specifies and/or restricts the behavior of an individual. Court or-
ders may be issued in matters involving domestic violence, stalking or harassment, among other types
of protective orders, including Temporary Restraining Orders.

35254  Prohibited Behavior:
a) Violence in the workplace may include, but is not limited to the following list of prohibited behaviors di-
rected at or by a co-worker, supervisor or member of the public:
1) Direct threats or physical intimidation.
2) Implications or suggestions of violence.



) Stalking, including following to and from work.

Possession of weapons of any kind on District premises, including parking lots, other exterior
premises or while engaged in activities for District in other locations, or at District sponsored
event

Assault of any form.

Physical restraint or confinement.

Dangerous or threatening horseplay.

Loud, disruptive or angry behavior or language that is clearly not part of the typical work envi-
ronment.

9) Blatant or intentional disregard for the safety or well-being of others.

10) Commission of a violent felony or misdemeanor on District premises.

11) Any other act that a reasonable person would perceive as constituting a threat of violence.
Records shall be maintained of steps taken to establish and maintain the District's Injury and
liness Prevention Program. They shall include:

e

oo N O O
= ===

b) Domestic violence, while often originating in the home, can significantly impact workplace safety and the
productivity of victims as well as co-workers. For the purposes of this document, "domestic violence" is
defined as abuse committed against an adult or fully emancipated minor. Abuse is the intentional or
reckless attempt to cause bodily injury, sexual assault, threatening behavior, harassment, or stalking, or
making annoying phone calls to a person who is in any of the following relationships:

1)  Spouse or former spouse;
2) Domestic partner or former domestic partner;
3) Cohabitant or former cohabitant and or other household members;
4) A person with whom the victim is having, or has had, a dating or engagement relationship;
5) A person with whom the victim has a child.
The District recognizes that domestic violence may occur in relationships regardless of the marital sta-
tus, age, race, or sexual orientation of the parties.

c) Reporting Acts or Threats of Violence:
An employee who:

1) is the victim of violence, or

2) believes they have been threatened with violence, or

3) witnesses an act or threat of violence towards anyone else shall take the following steps:

i. Ifan emergency exists and the situation is one of immediate danger, the employee
shall contact the Police Department by dialing 9-1-1, or push the emergency button lo-
cated undemeath the front counter and may take whatever emergency steps are
available and appropriate to protect himself/herself from immediate harm, such as
leaving the area.

ii. If the situation is not one of immediate danger, the employee shall report the incident
to the appropriate supervisor or manager as soon as possible and complete the Dis-
trict's Workplace Violence Incident Report Form.

d) Procedures for Future Violence:

1) Employees who have reason to believe they, or others, may be victimized by a violent act
sometime in the future, at the workplace or as a direct result of their employment with the Dis-
trict, shall inform their supervisor by immediately completing a Workplace Violence Incident
Report Form so appropriate action may be taken. The supervisor shall inform the General
Manager and the local law enforcement officials.



2) Employees who have signed and filed a restraining order, temporary or permanent, against
an individual due to a potential act of violence, who would be in violation of the order by com-
ing near them at work, shall immediately supply a copy of the signed order to their supervisor.
The supervisor shall provide copies to the General Manager and to the Police Department.

e) Incident Investigation:

1) Acts of violence or threats will be investigated immediately in order to protect employees from
danger, unnecessary anxiety concerning their welfare, and the loss of productivity. The Gen-
eral Manager will cause to be initiated an investigation into potential violation of work
rules/policies. Simultaneously, the General Manager will refer the matter to local police for
their review of potential violation of civil and/or criminal law.

Procedures for investigating incidents of workplace violence include:

1)
2)
3)
4)

5)

Visiting the scene of an incident as soon as possible.

Interviewing injured and threatened employees and witnesses.

Examining the workplace for security risk factors associated with the incident, including any
reports of inappropriate behavior by the perpetrator.

Determining the cause of the incident.

Taking mitigating action to prevent the incident from recurring.

Recording the findings and mitigating actions taken.

In appropriate circumstances, the District will inform the reporting individual of the results of
the investigation. To the extent possible, the District will maintain the confidentiality of the re-
porting employee and the investigation but may need to disclose results in appropriate cir-
cumstances; for example, in order to protect individual safety. The District will not tolerate re-
taliation against any employee who reports workplace violence.

f) Mitigating Measures:

Incidents which threaten the security of employees shall be mitigated as soon as possible following their
discovery. Mitigating actions include:

Notification of law enforcement authorities when a potential criminal act has occurred.
Provision of emergency medical care in the event of any violent act upon an employee.
Post-event trauma counseling for those employees desiring such assistance.

Assurance that incidents are handled in accordance with the Workplace Violence Preven-
tion policy.

Requesting District Counsel file a restraining order as appropriate.

g) Training Instruction:

1)

The District shall be responsible for ensuring that all employees, including managers and

supervisors, are provided training and instruction on general workplace security practices.

Managers and supervisors shall be responsible for ensuring that all employees are provid-

ed training and instructions on job specific workplace security practices.

Training and instruction shall be provided as follows:

e To all current employees when the policy is first implemented. Employees will be re-
quired to sign a written acknowledgment that the policy has been received and read.

e Toall newly hired employees, supervisors and managers, or employees given new job
assignments for which specific workplace security training for that job assignment has
not previously been provided. Employees will be required to sign a written acknowl-
edgment that the policy has been received and read.

e To affected employees whenever management is made aware of a new or previously
unrecognized hazard.

3) Workplace security training and instruction includes, but is not limited to, the following:



e Preventive measures to reduce the threat of workplace violence, including procedures
for reporting workplace security hazards.

e Methods to diffuse hostile or threatening situations.

e Escape routes.

e Explanation of this Workplace Violence Prevention Policy.

In addition, specific instructions shall be provided to all employees regarding workplace security hazards unique
to their job assignment.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 KOS LARE » MIL FO BON Tha, CGEATOM, CALIFGRRIA 954448 v MITEIT=154] = FAX M1E]1-3711

POLICY TITLE: Attendance at Meetings
POLICY NUMBER: 4100

4100.1 Members of the Board of Directors are expected to and shall attend all regular and special meetings of
the Board unless there is good cause for absence.

To be counted as present for any meeting, Board Members must be present for the duration of the meeting.

Good cause for absence, including late arrivals or early departures, includes temporary illness or other unavoid-
able circumstances of which the President of the Board is notified prior to the meeting. Good cause also includes
Board authorized meeting absences such as attendance at a conference directly related to the functions and
interests of the District or at the meeting of another public agency in order to participate in an official capacity.

A Board Member who will be absent for good cause may notify the President by electronic transmission (email),
telephone communication, or letter. The President shall notify the General Manager and the Board of all ab-
sences that are excused for good cause. The minutes shall indicate whether an absence was excused.

A vacancy shall occur if a Board Member is absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings without good
cause, except as otherwise provided for by law or as authorized by the Board.



AR

GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT s
. AR,

GF'GPLTDH_
1§ 1hlirk dETIMNT BOARD

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

POLICY TITLE: Committees of the Board of Directors
POLICY NUMBER: 4105

4105.1 Temporary Advisory Committees:

The Board President shall appoint any such temporary advisory committees as may be deemed necessary or
advisable by the President or the Board. The purpose of a temporary advisory committee and the time allowed
to accomplish that purpose shall be outlined at the time of appointment. A temporary advisory committee shall
be considered dissolved when its purpose has been accomplished or when the timeframe for its existence has
expired, whichever occurs first.

4105.1.1  Atemporary advisory committee shall be comprised solely of members of the Board, and
shall consist of less than a majority of Board Members.

4105.1.2  Atemporary advisory committee may make recommendations to the Board. The Board
may not delegate any decision-making power to a temporary advisory committee.

4105.1.3  Atemporary advisory committee shall meet on an as needed basis and shall not have a
meeting schedule fixed by charter, ordinance, resolution, or formal action of the Board.

4105.2 Standing Committees:

The following shall be standing committees of the Board: Forestville Water District-Graton Community Services
District Ad Hoc Committee (Ad Hoc Committee). The Board President shall appoint and publicly announce the
members of the standing committees for the ensuing year no later than the Board's regular meeting in January.
Standing committees may be assigned to review District functions, activities, and operations pertaining to their
designated concerns, as specified below. Said assignment may be made by the Board President, a majority
vote of the Board, or on their own initiative. Any recommendations from standing committees shall be submitted
to the Board via a written or oral report. All meetings of standing committees are subject to the requirements of
all applicable open meeting laws, including but not limited to the Brown Act.

4105.21  The mission of the Ad Hoc Committee is to develop and implement opportunities for col-
laboration and cooperation between Forestville Water District and Graton Community Services District
to better serve internal and external customers, both present and future. Its vision is to function as a
harmonious and unified team. Its strategy is commitment to interpersonal excellence through: Account-
ability, Collaboration, Communications, Cooperation, Fiscal Responsibility, Integrity, Learning, Mutual
Support, Reliability, Respect, Shared Responsibilities, and Trust.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 KOS LARE » MIL FO BON Tha, CGEATOM, CALIFGRRIA 954448 v MITEIT=154] = FAX M1E]1-3711

POLICY TITLE: Duties of the Board President
POLICY NUMBER: 4110

41101 Presiding Officer:
The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as the presiding officer at all Board meetings.

In the absence or disability of the President, the Vice President of the Board of Directors shall serve as the pre-
siding officer over all meetings of the Board. If the President and Vice President of the Board are both absent or
disabled, the remaining members present shall select one of themselves to act as temporary presiding officer of
the meeting.

The presiding officer shall have the same rights as the other members of the Board in voting, introducing mo-
tions, resolutions and ordinances, and any discussion of questions that follow said actions. The presiding officer
may move, second, debate, and vote from the chair.

4110.2 Duties Regarding Meetings:
The President shall preside over and conduct all meetings of the Board of Directors, shall carry out the resolution
and orders of the Board of Directors, and shall exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as the
Board of Directors shall prescribe including, but not limited to, the following:

a) Call the meeting to order at the appointed time;

b) Announce the business to come before the Board in its proper order;

c) Enforce the Board's policies in relation to the order of business and the conduct of meetings;

d) Recognize persons who desire to speak, and protect the speaker who has the floor from

disturbance or interference;

e) Explain what the effect of a motion would be if it is not clear to every member;

f)  Restrict discussion to the question when a motion is before the Board;

g) Rule on parliamentary procedure;

h) Put motions to a vote, and state clearly the results of the vote; and

i) Preserve order and decorum.

4110.3  Responsibilities:
Responsibilities of the President include, but are not limited to, the following:
a) Sign all instruments, act, and carry out stated requirements and the will of the Board;

b) Sign the minutes of the Board meeting following their approval;
Appoint and disband all committees, subject to Board ratification;
Call such meetings of the Board as he/she may deem necessary, giving notice as prescribed by law;
Coordinate the preparation of meeting agendas with the General Manager;
Confer with the General Manager or designee on crucial matters which may occur between

Board of Directors meetings;
g) Be responsible for the orderly conduct of all Board meetings;

RS R IR



h) Be the spokesperson for the Board; and
i) Perform other duties as authorized by the Board.

In the absence or disability of the President, the alternate presiding officer may temporarily carry out these re-
sponsibilities until such time as the President is able to resume his or her responsibilities.

The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as the presiding officer at all Board meetings.

In the absence or disability of the President, the Vice President of the Board of Directors shall serve as the pre-
siding officer over all meetings of the Board. If the President and Vice President of the Board are both absent or
disabled, the remaining members present shall select one of themselves to act as temporary presiding officer of
the meeting.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 KOS LARE » MIL FO BON Tha, CGEATOM, CALIFGRRIA 954448 v MITEIT=154] = FAX M1E]1-3711

POLICY TITLE: Ethics Training
POLICY NUMBER: 4115

41151 All Directors, designated staff, and members of all commissions, committees and other bodies that are
subject to the Brown Act shall receive two hours of training in general ethics principles and ethics laws relevant
to public service within one year of election or appointment to the board of directors and at least once every two
years thereafter, pursuant to Government Code Sections 53234 et seq. as may be amended from time to time.

4115.1.1  Allethics training shall be provided by providers whose curricula have been approved by
the California Attorney General and the Fair Political Practices Commission.

41151.2  Ethics training may consist of either a training course or a set of self-study materials with
tests, and may be taken at home, in person, or online.

4115.1.3  Attendees shall obtain proof of participation after completing the ethics training. Applicable
costs for attending the training shall be reimbursed by the District.

4115.1.3.1 District staff shall maintain records indicating both the dates that attendees
completed the ethics training and the name of the provider that provided the training.
These records shall be maintained for at least five years after the date of training and may
be public records subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act.

4115.1.4  District staff shall provide the prospective attendees with information on available training
that meets the requirements of this policy at least once every year.

4115.1.5  Asingle training course may be used to satisfy the obligation to receive training for multiple
agencies or positions.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 KOS LARE » MIL FO BON Tha, CGEATOM, CALIFGRRIA 954448 v MITEIT=154] = FAX M1E]1-3711

POLICY TITLE: Members of the Board of Directors
POLICY NUMBER: 4120

4120.1  Meeting Preparation:

Directors shall thoroughly prepare themselves to discuss agenda items at meetings of the Board of Directors.
Directors may request information from staff before meetings.

412011 Requests by individual Directors for substantive information and/or research from District
staff will be channeled through the General Manager.

4120.1.2  The General Manager shall be responsible for providing the requested information and
shall make all information equally available to all Directors.

4120.1.3  If writings are distributed to a majority of the Board in connection with an agenda item,
those writings shall be made available to the public in the manner required by law.

4120.2 Meeting Decorum:

4120.2.1 Directors shall at all times conduct themselves with courtesy to each other, to staff, and to
members of the audience present at Board meetings.

4120.2.2 Directors shall defer to the presiding officer for conduct of meetings of the Board, but shall
be free to question and discuss items on the agenda. All comments should be brief and confined to the
matter being discussed by the Board.

4120.2.3 Directors may request for inclusion into the meeting minutes brief comments pertinent to
an agenda item only at the meeting that item is discussed.

4120.3 Abstentions and Failure to Vote:

Directors should not abstain from the Board's decision-making responsibilities unless a personal or financial con-
flict of interest exists. Directors abstaining due to a disqualifying conflict of interest will not be counted as part of a
quorum and will be considered absent for the purposes of determining the outcome of a vote on the matter. Di-
rectors who fail to vote in the absence of a declared conflict of interest will be counted as part of a quorum and in
effect consent that a majority of the quorum will determine the outcome of a vote on the matter.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

230 KOS LARE » MIL FO BON Tha, CGEATOM, CALIFGRRIA 954448 v MITEIT=154] = FAX M1E]1-3711

POLICY TITLE: Training, Education and Conferences
POLICY NUMBER: 4125

41251 Members of the Board of Directors are encouraged to attend educational conferences, seminars, train-
ings, and professional meetings when the purpose of any such activity is to improve District operation. There is
no limit as to the number of Directors attending a particular activity when it is apparent that attendance is benefi-
cial to the District, as long as a majority of the members of a body do not discuss issues related to their local
agency’s business. Directors shall not attend conference or training event when it is apparent that there is no
significant benefit to the District. Directors shall not attend or engage in any tour or journey for pleasure at public
expense (e.g. “junkets” or other such events that are not beneficial to the District.

4125.2 ltis the policy of the District to encourage Board development and excellence of performance by reim-
bursing actual expenses incurred for tuition, travel, lodging and meals as a result of training, educational cours-
es, participation with professional organizations, and attendance at local, state and national conferences associ-
ated with the interests of the District. Cash advances or use of District credit cards for these purposes is not
permitted.

4125.2.1  The District Bookkeeper shall prepare claims to reimburse Directors for conference tuition
and registration expenses, and for per diem expenses. Per diem expenses, when appropriate, shall in-
clude meals, lodging, and travel. All expenses for which reimbursement is requested by Directors, or
which are billed to the District by Directors, shall be submitted to the District Bookkeeper, together with
validated receipts. All reimbursements shall be made in accordance with applicable State and federal
law, including but not limited to Internal Revenue Service Guidelines.

4125.2.2  Attendance by Directors at seminars, workshops, courses, professional organization meet-
ings, and conferences shall be approved by the Board of Directors prior to the District incurring any re-
imbursable costs.

4125.2.3 Expenses to the District for Board of Directors' training, education, and conferences should
be kept to @ minimum by utilizing recommendations for transportation and housing accommodations
recommended by the District Bookkeeper, and by:

4125.2.3.1  Utilizing hotel(s) recommended by the event sponsor in order to obtain dis-
counted rates.

4125.2.3.2 Directors traveling together whenever feasible and economically beneficial.

4125.2.3.3 Requesting reservations sufficiently in advance, when possible, to obtain dis-
counted air fares and hotel rates.



4125.3 A Director shall not be reimbursed for expenses incurred at any educational conference,
seminar, training, or professional meeting event if such event occurs after the District has an-
nounced that Director’s pending resignation, or if such event occurs after an election in which it has
been determined that the Director will not retain his or her seat on the Board.

41254 Upon returning from educational conferences, seminars, trainings, and professional meet-
ings where expenses are reimbursed by the District, Directors will either prepare a written or verbal
report for presentation at the next regular meeting of the Board. Said report shall detail what was
learned at the session(s) that will be of benefit to the District. Materials from the session(s) may be
delivered to the District office to be included in the District library for the future use of other Directors
and staff.



E}RATUNCUMMUNJT‘H SERVICES DISTRICT

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

GRATOMN
[ 1 ialrl AHTINT BOARD

POLICY TITLE: Voluntary Candidate Expenditure Ceiling
POLICY NUMBER: 4130

4130.1 In accordance with Government Code §85400 (Proposition 208), the voluntary expenditure ceiling
for candidates for the Board of Directors of Graton Community Services District, and controlled committees
of such candidates, shall be one dollar ($1) per resident for each election in which the candidate is seeking
election to the Board of Directors.

4130.2 Proposition 208 establishes a two-tiered scheme of campaign contribution limitations applicable to
candidates running for local office based on whether the recipient candidate accepts or rejects the
voluntary expenditure ceiling established by the local jurisdiction. The decision by a candidate as to
whether to accept the ceiling must be made before a candidate accepts any contributions.

4130.2.1 If a candidate for the Board of Directors elects to abide by the ceiling, he/she may accept
contributions from businesses, political action committees (PAC’s), or individuals in an amount up
to $250.

4130.2.2 If a candidate for the Board of Directors elects not to abide by the ceiling, he/she may
accept contributions from businesses, political action committees (PAC’s), or individuals in an
amount up to $100.



_GEAT'DNCGM MUNITY SERVICES DisSTRICT

Q10 BOEE LAME = MAIL PO AOR 53 GRATCN, CALFCMMIY T84 v TETRT=114] & FiX TOdyE 1910

BOARD

POLICY TITLE: Board Actions and Decisions
POLICY NUMBER: 4200
4200.1  Actions by the Board of Directors include but are not limited to the following:

4200.1.1 Adoption or rejection of regulations or policies;

4200.1.2 Adoption or rejection of a resolution;

4200.1.3 Adoption or rejection of an ordinance;

4200.1.4 Approval or rejection of any contract or expenditure;

4200.1.5 Approval or rejection of any proposal which commits District funds or facilities, including em-
ployment and dismissal of personnel; and,

4200.1.6 Approval or disapproval of matters that require or may require the District or its employees to
take action and/or provide services.

4200.2 Action can only be taken by the vote of the majority of the Board of Directors. Three (3) Directors rep-
resent a quorum for the conduct of business.

4200.2.1 A member abstaining in a vote is considered as absent for that vote. A member abstaining
due to a conflict of interest does not count towards a quorum.

4200.2.1.1 Example. If three of five Directors are present at a meeting, a quorum exists and
business can be conducted unless the abstention is due to a conflict of interest. However, if
one Director abstains on a particular action and the other two cast "aye" votes, no action is
taken because a "majority of the Board" did not vote in favor of the action.

4200.2.1.2 Example. If an action is proposed requiring a two-thirds vote and two Directors ab-
stain, the proposed action cannot be approved because four of the five Directors would have
to vote in favor of the action.

4200.2.1.3 Example. If a vacancy exists on the Board and a vote is taken to appoint an indi-
vidual to fill said vacancy, three Directors must vote in favor of the appointment for it to be ap-
proved. If two of the four Directors present abstain, the appointment is not approved.



I_GEATDNCGM MUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Q10 BOEE LAME = MAIL PO AOR 53 GRATCN, CALFCMMIY T84 v TETRT=114] & FiX TOdyE 1910

BOARD

4200.3 The Board may give directions that are not formal action. Such directions do not require formal
procedural process. Such directions include the Board's directives and instructions to the General
Manager.

4200.3.1 The President shall determine by consensus a Board directive and shall state it for
clarification. Should any two Directors challenge the statement of the President, a voice vote
may be requested.

4200.3.2 A formal motion may be made to place a disputed directive on a future agenda for
Board consideration, or to take some other action (such as refer the matter to the General
Manager for review and recommendation, etc.).

4200.3.3 Informal action by the Board is still Board action and shall only occur regarding mat-
ters that appear on the agenda for the Board meeting during which said informal action is tak-
en.

4200.3.4 Nothing in this policy prevents the Board from providing direction to the General
Manager in response to public comments or under Board member or General Manager com-
ments, as allowed under the Brown Act. No vote or action shall be taken.



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 & FAX T07811-3713

iEE e C deinn BOARD

POLICY TITLE: Board Meeting Agenda
POLICY NUMBER: 4205

4205.1 Agenda preparation. The General Manager, in cooperation with the Board President, shall prepare an
agenda for each regular and special meeting of the Board of Directors in accordance with the Brown Act. Any
Director may contact the General Manager no later than 12:00 p.m. on the Wednesday prior to the meeting
date and request an item to be placed on the agenda.

4205.2 Public requests. Any member of the public may request that a matter directly related to District busi-
ness be placed on the agenda of a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors, subject to the follow-
ing conditions:

4205.2.1 The request, if any, must be in writing and be submitted to the General Manager together with
supporting documents and information, if any, at least five (5) business days prior to the date of the
meeting.

4205.2.2 The General Manager shall be the sole judge of whether the public request is or is not a "mat-
ter directly related to District business."

4205.2.3 The General Manager shall determine the timing of when the item will be placed on the
agenda.

4205.2.4 The public member requesting the agenda item may appeal the General Manager’s decision
at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. Any Director may request that the item be placed
on the agenda of the Board’s next regular meeting.

4205.2.5 No matter which is legally a proper subject for consideration by the Board in closed session
will be accepted under this policy.

4205.2.6 The Board of Directors may place limitations on the total time to be devoted to a public re-
quest issue at any meeting, and may limit the time allowed for any one person to speak on the issue at
the meeting.

4205.3 Agenda descriptions. All Board agendas shall include an unambiguous description of each item on the
agenda to be discussed, including closed session items. The General Manager shall ensure that the description
gives notice to the public of the essential nature of business to be considered.



4205.4 Agenda posting. Agendas for regular meetings shall be posted 72 hours in advance of the meeting and
agendas for special meetings shall be posted 24 hours in advance of the meeting. The posting must occur at
the post office, within the District Office and on the District Website homepage through a provided direct link.
The internet posting shall occur on the District’s primary website homepage through a prominent, direct link to
the current agenda. The agenda shall also be accessible in an open format by that date.

4205.5 Agenda packages. When distributing agenda packages and other materials to members of the Board
of Directors, those materials should be provided to all members at the same time. Agenda packages, except for
closed session materials, should also be made available to the public once distributed to the Board.

4205.6 Public comment.

4205.6.1 For regular meetings the Board shall provide the public with an opportunity to address not on-
ly any item on the agenda but any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the District.

4205.6.2 For special meetings, the Board shall provide the public with an opportunity to address any
item on the agenda.

4205.6.3 The Board may not prohibit public criticism, but shall control the order of the proceedings, in-
cluding placing reasonable time limits on public comment.

4205.6.4 The Board may not require members of the public to give names or sign a register as a condi-
tion of attendance or speaking.

4205.7 Closed sessions. The Board may conduct a closed session during a noticed meeting for certain mat-
ters, as identified on the agenda, where it is necessary to conduct business in private. Major reasons for per-
missible closed sessions, as authorized by the Brown Act, include real property transactions, labor negotiations,
and pending litigation. The Board shall allow public comment on any closed session item before going into
closed session.

4205.8 Items not on the agenda. The Board shall not discuss or take action on any item that does not appear
on the posted agenda except that the Board may act on items not on the agenda to address emergency situa-
tions, subsequent need items, and hold-over items from a continued previous meeting held within the prior five
days. The Board may also respond to public comments and make announcements.



pRﬂTDNEDMMU NITY SERVICES DISTRICT

P10 RS LAME = WAL FOORCK 170, CRATOH. CALIFORNA $144d + TRV T=1547 o Fi ToiEe41d

BOARD
POLICY TITLE: Board Meeting Conduct
POLICY NUMBER: 4210

4210.1 Rules of order. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be conducted by the President in a manner
consistent with the policies of the District. Policy No. 4230, “Rules of Order for Board and Committee Meetings,”
shall be used as a general guideline for meeting protocol.
4210.2 Agenda timing. All Board meetings shall commence at the time stated on the agenda and shall be
guided by same. The placement of an item on the agenda shall not be deemed a requirement that the items
proceed in any particular order. The Board President, with concurrence of a majority of the Board, may alter the
order in which agenda items shall be considered for discussion and/or action by the Board.
4210.3 Conduct of meetings. The following concepts shall be applied to Board meetings:

4210.3.1 The meetings shall be conducted in an open and fair manner.

4210.3.2 The public shall be given ample opportunity to participate in the meetings.

4210.3.3 Due process principles shall apply to quasi-judicial proceedings, or as otherwise required by
law.

4210.3.4 The meetings shall proceed in a manner that enables the Board to consider problems to be
solved and make wise decisions intended to solve the problems.

4210.3.5 The Board may receive, consider and take any needed action with respect to reports of ac-
complishment of District operations.

4210.3.6 Noticed public hearings shall be conducted in an orderly fashion, with the Board President es-
tablishing the order of the proceedings.

4210.3.7 The Board may weigh and determine the credibility of evidence and public comment.

4210.4 Public comment. Public comment on items on the agenda, and general public comment at a regular
Board meeting for matters within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors, shall be as followed:

4210.4.1 Three minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of 20 minutes to each sub-
ject matter.

4210.4.2 The Board president may allow additional per speaker and per subject comment time when



I_GEATDNEDMMU NITY SERVICES DISTRICT

190 RO LAME = MAR PO BN 110, CRATOM. COLIFDINA S04« TRVAET- 1943 « Fal Tkt

BOARD
necessary for a full and fair proceeding.

4210.4.3 No disruptive conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting. Persistence in disruptive
conduct shall be grounds for summary termination, by the Board President, of that person's privilege
of address.

4210.5 Disruption of meetings. Willful disruption of any of the meetings of the Board of Directors shall not be
permitted. If the President finds that there is willful disruption of any meeting of the Board, he/she may do the
following:

4210.5.1 Notify the disrupting parties to immediately stop the conduct and that they will be asked to
leave the meeting if the behavior continues.

4210.5.2 If the behavior continues after notice, order the disrupting parties out of the room and conduct
the Board's business without them present.

4210.5.3 In cases of extreme disruption, clear the room of all members of the public, and conduct the
Board's business without them present.

4210.5.4 Duly accredited representatives of the news media, whom the President finds not to have
participated in the disruption, shall be permitted to remain in the meeting.



E}RATUNCUMMUNJT‘H SERVICES DISTRICT

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

GRATOMN
[ 1 ialrl AHTINT BOARD

POLICY TITLE: Brown Act Compliance — Open Meeting Requirements
POLICY NUMBER: 4215

4215.1 The Brown Act. The Legislature adopted the Brown Act, commonly referred to as California’s “Open
Meetings Laws” in 1964. The Brown Act is contained in Government Code section 54950 et seq. The Brown
Act is broadly construed and compliance is constitutionally mandated.

4215.2 Compliance with Brown Act. All meetings of the Board of Directors shall comply with the Brown Act.

4215.2.1 Meetings occur whenever the majority of the Board of Directors meets to discuss District
business.

4215.2.2 Member of the Board includes newly elected and appointed officials prior to assuming office.

4215.2.3 All Board meetings shall be open and freely accessible to the public, including those with dis-
abilities.

4215.2.4 Meetings through the use of intermediaries, serial communications, or emails are prohibited.
4215.2.5 The Board shall only take action during a properly noticed meeting.

4215.3 Committees. Committees created by formal action of the Board shall comply with the Brown Act



_{}EATDNEUMMUMW SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 & FAX T07811-3713

GRATOM

POLICY TITLE: Minutes of Board Meetings
POLICY NUMBER: 4220

4220.1 Duty to keep minutes. The Secretary or Deputy Secretary of the Board of Directors shall keep minutes
of all regular and special meetings of the Board.

4220.1.1 Copies of a meeting’s minutes shall be distributed to Directors as part of the information
packet for the next regular meeting of the Board, at which time the Board will consider approving the
minutes as presented or with modifications. Once approved by the Board, the official minutes shall be
kept in a locked cabinet.

4220.1.2 Unless directed otherwise, an audio tape recording of regular and special meetings of the
Board of Directors will be made. The device upon which the recording is stored shall be kept in a
locked cabinet for a minimum of 60 days. Members of the public may inspect recordings of Board
meetings without charge on a playback machine that will be made available by the District.

4220.1.3 Motions, resolutions or ordinances shall be recorded in the minutes as having passed or
failed. The motion makers, and individual votes will be recorded. A unanimous vote shall be recorded
as a vote in favor by each member.

4220.1.4 All resolutions and ordinances adopted by the Board shall be numbered consecutively, start-
ing new at the beginning of each year.

4220.1.5 In addition to other information that the Board may deem to be of importance, the following in-
formation (if relevant) shall be included in each meeting’s minutes:
e Date, place and type of each meeting;
Directors present and absent by name;
Administrative staff present by name;
Call to order,
Time and name of late arriving Directors;
Time and name of early departing Directors;
Names of Directors absent during any agenda item upon which action was taken;
Summary record of staff reports;
Summary record of public comment regarding matters not on the agenda, including names of
commentators;
Approval of the minutes or modified minutes of preceding meetings;
e Approval of financial reports;



FEATDNCUMMUNIT‘H SERVICES DISTRICT

230 BQES LAME = MAIL PO BOK 514 GEATON CALIFORRIA T84 o TO7A11=1943 & FAX T07811-3713

GRATOM

Record by number (a sequential range is acceptable) of all warrants approved for payment;
Complete information as to each subject of the Board’s deliberation;

Record of the vote of each Director on every action item for which the vote was not unani-
mous;

Resolutions and ordinances described as to their substantive content and sequential number-
INg;

Record of all contracts and agreements, and their amendment, approved by the Board;
Approval of the annual budget;

Approval of all polices, rules and/or regulations;

Approval of all dispositions of District assets;

Approval of all purchases of District assets; and,

Time of meeting’s adjournment.



_GEﬁT'DNCDMMUHIT‘r‘ SERVICES DISTRICT

110 BO5T LAME = MAIL: PO ROX T GEATON, CALIFORRNA 954448 o TOTMIE=E%463 = FAX 1078153713

GRATON

POLICY TITLE: Review of Administrative Decisions
POLICY NUMBER: 4225

42251 Code of Civil Procedure § 1094.6. The provisions of California Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6
shall be applicable to judicial review of all administrative decisions of the Board of Directors pursuant to the pro-
visions of §1094.5 of said code. The provisions of §1094.6 shall prevail over any conflicting provision and any
otherwise applicable law, rule, policy or regulation of the District, affecting the subject matter of an appeal.

422511 In accordance with §1094.6, the time to seek judicial relief shall be 90 days following
the date in which the Board’s decision becomes final.

42251.2 No person aggrieved by a Board decision shall be allowed to seek judicial relief unless
they shall have first raised that issue before the Board and provided the Board with an opportunity to
address the issue.

4225.1.3 No person aggrieved by a Board decision shall be allowed to seek judicial relief unless
they shall have first exhausted all available administrative remedies made available by the District.

4225.2 Applicability. This policy affects those administrative decisions rendered by the Board of Directors
following a proceeding at which notice and an opportunity to be heard has been provided.

4225.3 Purpose. The purpose of this policy is to ensure efficient administration of the District, and the ex-
peditious review of decisions rendered by the Board of Directors.

42254 Claims. Nothing in this policy shall be deemed to waive the claims filing requirements of the District
when damages are being sought.



E}RATUNCGMMUNJT‘H SERVICES DISTRICT ==

Ay
L

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)
GRATON
[ 1 ialrl AHTINT BOARD
POLICY TITLE: Rules of Order for Conduct of Board and Committee Meetings
POLICY NUMBER: 4230
4230.1 General:
4230.1.1 Action items shall be brought before and considered by the Board by motion in accord-

4230.2

4230.3

ance with this policy. These rules of order are intended to be informal and applied flexibly. The Board
prefers a flexible form of meeting and, therefore, does not conduct its meetings under formalized rules -
Robert's Rules of Order.

4230.1.1.1 If a Director believes order is not being maintained or procedures are not ad-
equate, then he/she should raise a point of order - not requiring a second - to the President. If
the ruling of the President is not satisfactory to the Director, then it may be appealed to the
Board. A majority of the Board will govern and determine the point of order.

Obtaining the Floor:

4230.2.1 Any Director desiring to speak should address the President and, upon recognition by
the President, may address the subject under discussion.

Motions:

4230.3.1 Any Director, including the President, may make or second a motion. A motion shall be
brought and considered as follows:

4230.3.1.1 A Director makes a motion; another Director seconds the motion; and the
President states the motion.

4230.3.2 Once the motion has been stated by the President, it is open to discussion and debate.
After the matter has been fully debated, and after the public in attendance has had an opportunity to
comment, the President will call for the vote.

4230.3.2.1 If the public in attendance has had an opportunity to comment on the pro-
posed action, any Director may move to immediately bring the question being debated to a
vote, suspending any further debate. The motion must be made, seconded, and approved by
a majority vote of the Board.



4230.4 Secondary Motions: Ordinarily, only one motion can be considered at a time and a motion must be
disposed of before any other motions or business are considered. There are a few exceptions to this general
rule, though, where a secondary motion concerning the main motion may be made and considered before vot-
ing on the main motion.

4230.4.1 Motion to Amend: A main motion may be amended before it is voted on, either by the
consent of the Directors who moved and seconded, or by a new motion and second.

4230.4.2 Motion to Table: A main motion may be indefinitely tabled before it is voted on by mo-
tion made to table, which is then seconded and approved by a majority vote of the Board.

4230.4.3 Motion to Postpone: A main motion may be postponed to a certain time by a motion to
postpone, which is then seconded and approved by a majority vote of the Board.

4230.4.4 Motion to Refer to Committee: A main motion may be referred to a Board committee for
further study and recommendation by a motion to refer to committee, which is then seconded and ap-
proved by a majority vote of the Board.

4230.4.5 Motion to Close Debate and Vote Immediately: As provided above, any Director may
move to close debate and immediately vote on a main motion.

4230.4.6 Motion to Adjourn: A meeting may be adjourned by motion made, seconded, and ap-
proved by a majority vote of the Board before voting on a main motion.

42305 Decorum:

4230.5.1 The President shall take whatever actions are necessary and appropriate to preserve
order and decorum during Board meetings, including public hearings. The President may eject any
person or persons making personal, impertinent or slanderous remarks, refusing to abide by a request
from the President, or otherwise disrupting the meeting or hearing.

4230.5.2 The President may also declare a short recess during any meeting.
4230.6 Amendment of Rules of Order:
4230.6.1 By motion made, seconded and approved by a majority vote, the Board may, at its dis-

cretion and at any meeting: a) temporarily suspend these rules in whole or in part; b) amend these
rules in whole or in part; or, ) both.



AR

GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT s
. AR,

GF'GPLTDH_
1§ ihbiel dHTIMNT BOARD

230 ROWSE LANE » Ml FO BOR 534 CGEATOM, CALPFIRRIA 39448 v PITE1=154] = FhY MIEI1-471)

POLICY TITLE: Types of Board Meetings
POLICY NUMBER: 4235

4235.1 Regular meetings: Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the third Monday of
each calendar month at 6 p.m. The date, time and place of regular Board meetings may be reconsidered annu-
ally at the annual organizational meeting of the Board, or such other time as the Board may determine due to a

change in District needs and circumstances.

4235.2 Special meetings: Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Board Presi-
dent or by a majority of the Board.

4235.2.1 All Directors shall be notified of the special Board meeting and the purpose or purposes
for which it is called. Notice of the meeting shall be in writing, received by them at least 24 hours prior
to the meeting.

4235.2.2 An agenda shall be prepared and posted at least 24 hours before the meeting, as
specified in Policy No. 4205 and shall be delivered with the notice of the special meeting to the Board
of Directors.

4235.2.3 Notice of the meeting shall be provided to the local newspaper and any other media
outlet or person who has requested to receive notices of meetings by serving a copy of the agenda at
least 24 hours before the meeting.

4235.2.4 Only those items of business listed in the call for the special meeting shall be consid-
ered by the Board at any special meeting.

4235.3 Emergency Meetings: In the event of an emergency situation involving matters upon which prompt
action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption of public facilities, the Board of Directors may
hold an emergency special meeting without complying with the 24-hour notice requirement. An emergency situ-
ation means a crippling disaster which severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as determined by a major-
ity of the Board.

4235.3.1 When possible, notice shall be provided to the media outlets by telephone at least one
hour before the meeting.

4235.3.2 Actions taken during an emergency meeting shall be by roll call vote.

4235.3.3 The Board may meet in closed session if agreed to by 2/3 vote of the members present,
or if less than 2/3 present, by unanimous vote.



423534 Following an emergency meeting, the minutes of the meeting, a list of persons notified
or attempted to be notified of the meeting, and actions taken must be posted for ten (10) days in the
District office.

42354 Adjourned Meetings: A majority vote of the quorum of the Board of Directors may adjourn any
Board meeting at any place in the agenda to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment, except that
if no quorum is present or no Directors are present at any regular or adjourned regular meeting, the Board pres-
ident or General Manager may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place. Notice of the ad-
journed meeting shall be posted on or near the door of the meeting within 24 hours after the adjournment and
the adjourned meeting shall be noticed in the same manner as a special meeting.

4235.5 Annual Organizational Meeting: The Board of Directors shall hold an annual organizational meet-
ing at its regular meeting in December [or other appropriate month]. At this meeting the Board will elect a Presi-
dent, Vice President and Clerk from among its members to serve during the coming calendar year, and will ap-
point the General Manager [or other responsible managing employee] as the Board's Secretary and the Fi-
nance Division Manager as the District’'s Treasurer.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICTA%\

250 ROSS LANE * MAIL: PO BOX 534, GRATON, CALIFORNIA 95444 « 707/823-1542 » FAX 707/823-3713
GRATON CSD

WASTEWATER
PARKS & RECREATION

06/16/21
RESOLUTION NO. 210621B

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE GRATON
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE
LEGAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH MEYERS NAVE FOR LEGAL
SERVICES

WHEREAS, state law permits the Board of Directors to contract for legal services
and appoint other officers of the Graton Community Services District as may be
appropriate;

WHEREAS, District has contracted with Meyers Nave for General Counsel legal
services and appointed Meyers Nave as District Counsel since 2012;

WHEREAS, the District and Meyers Nave desire to execute an Amendment,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, to amend the legal services contract
to modify the billing rates upon which fees are calculated for Meyers Nave’s services.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Graton Community Services
District Board of Directors that the District hereby resolves as follows:

Section 1. Approval of Amendment to Legal Services Contract.

The Board of Directors hereby approves the Amendment to the Legal Services Contract
with Meyers Nave, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein, and authorizes
the District Manager to execute said amendment.

Section 2. Effective Date
This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

DIRECTORS:

[ ]CLEMMER [ ]LEASE [ JUPCHURCH [ |BUTLER

AYES _;NOES __ ;ABSTAIN _ :ABSENT

WHEREUPON, the President declared the above and foregoing Resolution duly adopted
and



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT/ﬁ

250 ROSS LANE ¢ MAIL: PO BOX 534, GRATON, CALIFORNIA 95444 ¢ 707/823-1542 ¢ FAX 707/823-3713

GRATON CSD

WASTEWATER
PARKS & RECREATION

SO ORDERED.

Approved:

Dave Clemmer
President, Board of Directors
Graton Community Services District

Attest:

Jennifer Butler
Secretary, Board of Directors
Graton Community Services District



EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION 210621B

AMENDMENT TO LEGAL SERVICES CONTRACT

WHEREAS, the Graton Community Services District (“GCSD”) and Meyers Nave
(“MN”) (sometimes individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively referred to as
“Parties”) entered into a Legal Services Contract (“Contract”) in August 2012, attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, for legal services reasonably required to
represent and advise GCSD in connection with General Counsel Services and additional
related services;

WHEREAS, GCSD and MN desire to amend the Contract to modify the billing rates
upon which fees are calculated for MN’s services.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the
Parties hereby agree as follows:

1. This Amendment (“Amendment’) shall become effective as of July 1, 2021.
2. The Billing Rate Sheet under Attachment 1 to the Contract, is hereby amended in its

entirety to read as follows:

MEYERS NAVE RATE SHEET

General Legal Services Hourly Rate
Principals $435
Senior Of Counsel $360
Of Counsel $325
Associate $295
Paralegal $240
Law Clerk $200

Our rates adjust annually by the greater of 3% or the relevant local CPI
increase over the prior 12 month period.

Effective July 1, 2021

Page |1



Date:

Date:

All other terms, conditions and provisions in the Contract remain in full force and
effect. If there is a conflict between the terms of this Amendment and the Contract,
the terms of the Contract will control unless specifically modified by this
Amendment.

This Amendment and the Contract represent the entire and integrated agreement
between GCSD and MN, and supersede all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral pertaining to the matters herein.

This Amendment may be executed in counterparts and/or by facsimile or other
electronic means, and when each Party has signed and delivered at least one such
counterpart, each counterpart shall be deemed an original, and, when taken together
with other signed counterpart, shall constitute one agreement, which shall be binding
upon and effective as to all Parties.

The Parties have executed this Amendment as of the last date noted below.

Graton Community Services District

By:

Jose Ortiz
General Manager

Meyers Nave

By:

Steven T. Mattas
Principal

3523152.1



P.O. Box 261

Forestville, CA95436-0261

Phone (707) 887-1551 Fax (707) 887-1552
info@forestvillewd.com

6/15/21

Attn: FWD/ GCSD Ad Hoc Commiittee
Re: Mutual Aid Agreement

From: Tony Lopes FWD GM

| am writing in response to GCSD Board Chair’s request for FWD to assist with providing an employee or
employees to work at the GCSD sewer facility due to being short of certified operators. | reviewed the FWD/GCSD
mutual aid agreement dated December 10, 2019. Pursuant to section (Il paragraph B, part 1&2, where it describes
personnelassistance, FWD will agree to provide an employee, or multiple employeesif needed forabigger project,
to assist GCSD.

I, the General Manger, will agree to make these employees available onlyon a Tuesday, Wednesday or
Thursday, in orderto not disrupt our regular operations. | will coordinate a schedule with the CPO, or GM of GCSD of

the available dates of any assistance.

| have selected one of ouremployees who has worked at GCSDin the past, John Southard grade 3 operator, and
calculated his hourly rate and included all benefits that he receives as part of his entire compensation package. The
combined hourly rate of this individual is $ 59.58 perhour of service, which rate ensures thatthe budget of FWD is
properly compensated by GCSD for his services. OurLPO hourly rate will be $ 72.19, and ourgrade 2 operatorrateis
$ 59.36. FWD will not participate in any on call services for GCSD, but if any emergency arises please contact me, and
| will decide if we can offer assistance. Operating our own facility, | understand how important this situation is for
GCSD as any small district could experience this problem.

FWD would like to see a concerted effort made by GCSDto resolve their operator shortage, as to not have this
assistance continue for an extended period of time.

This agreement shalltake effect onthe date of the last authorizing signature affixed hereto and shall continue fora
period of thirty (30) days. Such term may be extended by mutual agreement in writing signed by the parties.

By signing below, GCSD agrees to reimburse FWD at the hourly rates specified above for each employee provided by
FWD and to otherwise abide by the terms set forth herein and the terms of the Mutual Aid Agreement between the

parties.

Forestville Water District Chair of the Board of Directors:



goRESTVfLLE P.0. Box 261
?;L Forestville, CA 95436-0261

Phone {707) 887-1551 Fax (707) 887-1552
Graton Communities Services District Chair of the Board of Directors:

l info@forestvillewd.com



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

250 ROSS LANE * MAIL: PO BOX 534, GRATON, CALIFORNIA 95444 = 707/823-1542

June 16", 2021
Prepared by John Gibson

May 12 - June 15", 2021
Operations Report

May 13" Tony and Corey with Forestville Water District met with GCSD operators to go over the intertie
pipeline location and valves. Opened valves leading down the pipeline and tested flow from Forestville to
GCSD, no leaks detected. Pulled both aerators in pond #1 and deragged.

May 18" Lindsay Curuckshank turned in his 2-week resignation. Thank you, Lindsay, for your 12+ years of
service and dedication to the District.

May 25" Upon arrival to the plant PTG was in alarm “Fuel Fault”, reset the fault and restarted the PTG system
in a pasteurization loop. This alarm failed to call out.

May 26" Completed the 2" quarter groundwater monitoring sampling procedures at the four monitoring wells.
Logged groundwater data and delivered samples to Brelje and Race Laboratory.

June 2" Completed two sewer lateral inspections for 3180 Edison St. and 203 Donald St. Issued certificates of
compliance.

June 2" FF A actuator in alarm “actuator in trouble” Troubleshooting the system checking fuses, wiring
connections, breakers, etc. Contacted CAL Troll and began communications with technicians on possible
reasons the actuator failed. Shut off breakers to the unit. The nest day disconnected and pulled the motor from
FFA actuator using the Case 480 tractor to lower the unit to the ground. Megged and ohmed the motor and
found it to be no good. Continued communications with CAL Troll to order a replacement actuator unit.

June 4™ Fuzzy Filter B perforated medea plate and corkscrew vibrating when actuated up and down during a
wash cycle. Drained the FF and lowered the plate. Removed the inspection plate and inspected the wear shoes
on the perforated filter media plate, all wear shoes in good condition. Added additional grease to the corkscrew
and actuated up and down through the gear box. No vibrations occurred after servicing the corkscrew.

June 8" Benedetti Tire Pros in Sebastopol serviced the 2002 Ford ranger with a check engine light on. Repaired
a vacuum leak, replaced the belt, fan clutch, and water pump.

June 8" - 9" Troubleshooting the SAF froth pump failures. Checked overload settings, changed booster
parameters, tested leg voltage. SAF froth pump and motor control SMVector frequency inverter showing an
overload code. Shut down the system and on Monday will switch over to the backup froth generator.



GRATONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

250 ROSS LANE * MAIL: PO BOX 534, GRATON, CALIFORNIA 95444 = 707/823-1542

June 10" Two representatives from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) met myself and David
Clemmer at the plant for an inspection. Opened all records that were asked for including O&M manuals,
ammonia study, emailed a copy of out storage pond technical report completed by GHD. Explained all
processes throughout the plant starting from the collection system though the headworks, secondary treatment
ponds, tertiary filtration, pasteurization disinfection, Storage, discharge, and reclamation. Toured the plant and
walked the outfall line to Atascadero Creek. The EPA representatives Mike and Tyler had high compliments
about the plant processes and recordkeeping. Noted that we were more organized and had better records than a
lot of other wastewater facilities that they have inspected. They had one main concern that they continued to
emphasize and will write up in their report, our level of staffing. “Graton needs more operators.”

June 14™ Moved froth chemical feed pump and lines from the faulted SAF froth system over to the backup SAF
unit. Replaced the polymer feed hose from the process storage tank to the chemical feed pump. Tested the SAF
froth generator, the froth motor and pump rotating in the wrong direction. Disconnected two leads from the 3
phase 480V motor and rotated, reconnected wiring and restarted the system. Froth pump and motor now
rotating in the correct direction and operational.

June 15" Met Tony, Corey, John, and Ricky from Forestville at the Graton plant. Went over operations and
needs for the plant. John and Ricky stayed to train and assist. Assisted Pumpman in reinstalling and aligning the
75 Hp Effluent pump. Bolted back to the frame and pipe flanges, reinstalled the coupler. Tested the pump, the
75 Hp pump ran and tested good. A leak formed at the 45 joint on the effluent side and will need repair, also a
valve will need to be installed on the effluent side as well to aid in priming of the pump when the storage
holding pond level is low.

Forestville and Pumpman also aided in the removal of the 30 Hp transfer pump and motor assembly for service.
While Pumpman was here with the boom truck they and Forestville also aided in the removal of the faulted
actuator from atop of Fuzzy Filter A. Unbolted and disconnected the wiring on the actuator, placed in manual
mode and manually unscrewed the actuator up and off of the filter corkscrew. Lowered the actuator to the
ground with the boom. When the new actuator is installed CALTroll can take the old one back for service.



Operator

Lindsay

Lindsay

Lindsay

Lindsay

John

John

John

John

Date

5/13/2021

5/31/2021

5/25/2021

5/30/2021

5/5/2021

6/2/2021

6/5/2021

6/7/2021

GCSD Overtime Report for May 12th - June 15th, 2021

Time OT Hrs. Alarm Call

6:10 1

19:30 1

3:37 1

5:42 2

19:00 2

6:43 1

21:57 1

FF common high
alarm

FF common high
alarm, Surge tank
high alarm.

FF common high
alarm

SAF froth pump
failed

Surge tank high,
FF high

Power outage, all
systems in alarm
and loss of
communication.

SAF froth pump
failed

Operator Response

Logged in remotely, both filters in alarm. Purge pump in
alarm on SCADA. Reset and cleared alarms. Monitored
systems as they came back online.

Working on a Holiday

Logged in and acknowledged alarmes. Filters in alarm for
excessive purge and unable to clear alarms, shutdown
processes.

Acknowledged alarm, filters off.

Logged in, unable to clear/reset froth pump in alarm.
Responded to plant, plant shutdown due to alarm. Reset
and restarted the SAF system. Restarted PTG in
pasteurization loop. Restarted the Fuzzy Filters.

Logged in Filter b in extended purge due to high turbidity.
Reset alarm turbidity still elevated above 2 NTUs.
Shutdown the filter before draining the purge tank and
responded to the plant. Drained and cleaned the turbidity
meters, reset alarms and restarted systems, flushed the
Fuzzy Filters. Turbidity back within limits.

Acknowledged alarm, plant off.

Logged in, unable to restart the froth pump and clear
alarm. Shut down system processes.



GCSD Overtime Report for May 12th - June 15th, 2021

John 6/8/2021 19:37 3 SAF froth pump  Multiple callouts for SAF froth pump fail. Called out at 19:3
failed

John 6/10/2021 0.55 Working over 10 hours in a day.



	GCSD Regular Meeting Draft Agenda_06_21_2021.pdf (p.1-4)
	May 31 2021 Transaction Detail.pdf (p.5-6)
	..., 00005, 50000, 50700, 50701

	May 31 2021 - GCSD Monthly Cost Report.pdf (p.7-8)
	May 31 2021 YTD Budget to Actual.pdf (p.9-10)
	77101, 00001, 19000, 19800

	GCSD Regular Meeting DRAFT Minutes 05_17_2021.pdf (p.11-14)
	GCSD Special Meeting DRAFT Minutes 06_01_2021.pdf (p.15-16)
	Resolution 210621A Adopt Revised Policies.pdf (p.17-18)
	GCSD Policy Manual.pdf (p.19-216)
	General Policies.pdf (p.1-21)
	1000 Adoption, Amendment of Policies.pdf (p.1)
	1005 Association Memberships.pdf (p.2)
	1010 Basis of Authority.pdf (p.3)
	1015 Duties of Board Secretary.pdf (p.4)
	1020 Board Staff Communication.pdf (p.5-7)
	1025 Claims Against the District.pdf (p.8-10)
	1030 Code of Ethics.pdf (p.11-13)
	1035 Conflict of Interest.pdf (p.14)
	1040 Correspondence to the Board.pdf (p.15)
	1045 Legal Counsel and Auditor.pdf (p.16)
	1050 Overview of the General Manager's Role.pdf (p.17)
	1055 Annexation Procedures.pdf (p.18-21)

	Administration Policies.pdf (p.22-78)
	2430 Electronic Document Retention Policy.pdf (p.1)
	2100 Accounts Receivable Policy.pdf (p.2)
	2105  Asset Protection and Fraud in the Workplace.pdf (p.3-8)
	2110 Budget Preparation.pdf (p.9)
	2115 Credit Card Use.pdf (p.10)
	2120 Employment of Outside Contractors and Consultants.pdf (p.11)
	2125 Expense Authorization.pdf (p.12)
	2130 Investment of District Funds.pdf (p.13-14)
	2135 Purchasing.pdf (p.15)
	2140 Receiving-Depositing Remittances.pdf (p.16)
	2145 Records Retention.pdf (p.17-24)
	2150 Reserve Policy.pdf (p.25-26)
	2155 Debt Management.pdf (p.27-30)
	2160 Internal Controls.pdf (p.31-32)
	2200 Disposal Surplus Property or Equipment.pdf (p.33)
	2205 District Electronic Resources.pdf (p.34-37)
	2210 Use Rental of District Facility.pdf (p.38-39)
	2305 Emergency Response Guideline for Hostile or Violent Incidents.pdf (p.40-42)
	2310 Workers' Compensation.pdf (p.43)
	2400 Customer Relations.pdf (p.44)
	2405 Press Relations.pdf (p.45)
	2410 Public Complaints.pdf (p.46)
	2415 Social Media Use.pdf (p.47-50)
	2420 Webpage.pdf (p.51-55)
	2425 California Public Records Act Response Procedures.pdf (p.56-57)

	Personnel Policies.pdf (p.79-175)
	3100 Accommodations for Disability.pdf (p.1)
	3102 Demotion-Non-disciplinary.pdf (p.2)
	3104 Disciplinary Action.pdf (p.3-7)
	3106 Driver Training and Record Review.pdf (p.8-9)
	3108 Drug and Alcohol Testing.pdf (p.10-11)
	3110 Employee Information Emergency Data.pdf (p.12)
	3112 Employee Promotion.pdf (p.13)
	3114 Employee Records.pdf (p.14)
	3116 Employee Status.pdf (p.15-16)
	3118 Equal Opportunity.pdf (p.17)
	3120 Grievance Procedure.pdf (p.18-21)
	3122 Hours of Work-non exempt.pdf (p.22-23)
	3124 Recommendation Letters.pdf (p.24)
	3126 Nepotism.pdf (p.25)
	3128 Payroll Deductions for Salaried Employees.pdf (p.26)
	3134 Recruitment and Hiring.pdf (p.27-30)
	3136 Separation from District Employmen.pdf (p.31-33)
	3138 Temporary Reclassifications.pdf (p.34)
	3140 Unlawful Harrassment.pdf (p.35-37)
	3142 Whistleblowing Policy.pdf (p.38-41)
	3200 Dress Code & Personal Standards.pdf (p.42-43)
	3205 Housekeeping.pdf (p.44)
	3210 Outside Employment.pdf (p.45)
	3220 Uniforms and Protective Clothing.pdf (p.46)
	3300 Internet, E-mail and Electronic Communications-Final.pdf (p.47-48)
	3405 Bereavement Leave.pdf (p.49)
	3410 Catastrophic Time Bank.pdf (p.50)
	3420 Educational Assistance.pdf (p.51)
	3425 Family and Medical Leave.pdf (p.52-53)
	3430 Holidays.pdf (p.54)
	3435 Jury Duty.pdf (p.55)
	3440 Leave for Crime Victims and Family Members.pdf (p.56)
	3445 Military Leave.pdf (p.57)
	3450 Pregnancy Disability Leave.pdf (p.58-59)
	3455 Rest & Meal Periods.pdf (p.60)
	3460 Sick Leave.pdf (p.61-62)
	3463 Investment of District Funds.pdf (p.63-64)
	3465 Time Keeping - Time Records.pdf (p.65)
	3470 Time Off for Children - School Activities.pdf (p.66)
	3475 Time off to Vote.pdf (p.67)
	3485 Use of Make up Time.pdf (p.68)
	3490 Vacations.pdf (p.69)
	3495 Workers' Compensation Leave.pdf (p.70)
	3500-Employee Assistance During Response to Emergency Situations.pdf (p.71-72)
	3505 Health & Welfare Benefits.pdf (p.73)
	3510 Illness & Injury.pdf (p.74-80)
	3515 Smoke-Free Workplace.pdf (p.81)
	3520 Substance Abuse.pdf (p.82-93)
	3525 Workplace Violence Prevention Policy.pdf (p.94-97)

	Board Policies.pdf (p.176-198)
	4100 Attendance at Meetings.pdf (p.1)
	4105 Committees of the Board of Directors.pdf (p.2)
	4110 Duties of Board President.pdf (p.3-4)
	4115 Ethics Training.pdf (p.5)
	4120 Members of the Board of Directors.pdf (p.6)
	4125 Training, Education and Conferences.pdf (p.7-8)
	4130 Voluntary Candidate Expenditure Ceiling.pdf (p.9)
	4200 Board Actions and Decisions.pdf (p.10-11)
	4205 Meeting Agenda.pdf (p.12-13)
	4210 Meeting Conduct.pdf (p.14-15)
	4215 Brown Act.pdf (p.16)
	4220 Minutes of Board Meetings.pdf (p.17-18)
	4225 Review of Decisions.pdf (p.19)
	4230 Rules of Order.pdf (p.20-21)
	4235 Types of Board Meetings.pdf (p.22-23)


	Resolution 210621B MN Contract Amendment.pdf (p.217-218)
	MN Contract Amendment- 2021 Rates.pdf (p.219-220)
	FWD GCSD Mutual Aid Operator Agreement.pdf (p.221-222)
	Operations Report - May 12th - June 15th, 2021.pdf (p.223-224)
	OT Report May 12th - June 15th, 2021.pdf (p.225-232)

